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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHE

REVENUE UYg A
HKS &1

5,538

million B& T
10.5% increase from 2015

B-_T—HEFH10.5%

DIVIDENDS PER SHARE TOTAL EQUITY ##Ezs

ﬁiﬁﬂéﬁ?ﬁl HKS 7
7 3,238
O'ZO miﬁion BET

1.9% decrease from 2015

41.7% decrease from 2015
BT —AFTE1.9%

BT —RFNE4.7%

2016
HIGHLIGHTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE NET ASSETS PER SHARE

FIREF s BREEFE
i_ —_

HKS S5 —F-NFRE HKS 755
1.05 25.7
7T JT
79.8% decrease from 2015 2.3% decrease from 2015

B E— FET£79.8% BT —AFT2.3%

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

TOTAL EMPLOYEE

FEER NUMBERS
HKS 7S WET A
million B&JT 3’1 OO

77 4% decrease from 2015
B —RFTE77.4%

full time staff 288 T
2015: 3,500
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PBHE

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
RATRERSE AELEF
(HK$ million B HE7T)
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1,012
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EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE
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5,013
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14 13
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SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBME

SEGMENT REVENUE
kU ON
50%

24%

6%

19% 1%

SEGMENT PROFIT/(LOSS)
2 ®EF (FR)
(HK$ million & &)

2016

428

175
115 16

9
(14) @)
2 (]

MW Construction and engineering [ Food and beverage
B

SREN M TIZ
Insurance and investment W Others
REE IR E Hit

m Property
mE

49%

30%

12% 2%

SEGMENT PROFIT/(LOSS)
2 ®EF (EHR)
(HKS$ million ¥ & & 7T)

2015

1,605

194
124 s 50

8 117
29) (257)

B Subsidiaries
=G|

[ Associates and joint ventures
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March
for the last five years.

T RELEBREBERAR([ARAD REMBAR (5HE [ AEE ) RBERFRABE=A=T—"BILFE BEE -

maE  XENRAMMBERRE -

Financial Information (HK$ million) Bi%&EH GE8%EET)

Total assets BEE 14,520 15,329 13,926 12,796 10,592
Total liabilities Bak 6,282 6,930 6,849 6,585 5,274
Total equity B 8,238 8,399 7,077 6,211 5318
Non-controlling interests R ER 488 510 463 390 324
Shareholders’ funds REED 7,750 7,889 6,614 5,821 4,994
Share capital e
~ in number (million) -¥E(BER) 302 300 293 281 278
- in value (HK$1.25 per share) —ZE(SlRE%1.257) 377 375 366 352 347
Revenue A 5,538 5,013 4,113 4,189 3,850
Profit attributable to equity holders ARFIRIERE A
of the Company oyl 315 1,537 470 1,012 658
Per Share Basis (HK$) SREE(BY)
Earnings - basic B —-EK 1.05 5.21 1.65 3.64 2.37
Dividends B2 0.70 1.20 0.85 0.85 0.95
Net assets value BEFE
- excluding non-controlling interests ~ — ANEIEIEIEIRIES 25.7 26.3 22.6 20.7 18.0
2016 2015
—E-ARF —T-hF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEET BB BT
Segment Revenue* SERA
Construction and engineering R N AR 4,658 4,684
Insurance and investment R RIEE 90 154
Property WES 1,741 1,111
Food and beverage EER 598 700
Others Hth 2,242 2,893
Total B 9,329 9,542
Segment Profit/(Loss)* AR (BR)*
Construction and engineering EE MM TIE 290 318
Insurance and investment fRB M3 E 16 50
Property LES 403 1,576
Food and beverage B (5) 26
Others Hith (141) (140)
Total #azE 563 1,830
# Included share of revenue/results of associates and joint ventures

BEMEBERRRAEREZIA A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
TEEHR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Co-Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr KO Chan Gock, William
Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles

Professor POON Chung Kwong

SECRETARY
Mr MUI Chin Leung

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Berkadia Commercial Mortgage LLC

Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

SOLICITORS
Appleby
Robertsons

REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon'’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2318 1818

Facsimile: (852) 2757 5138
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG
Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 25

ADR DEPOSITARY BANK

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 30170

College Station, TX77842-3170
Stock Symbol: CHVLY

WEBSITE

http://www.chevalier.com

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Announcement of Results
Interim Results
Final Results

Book Close Dates
Interim Dividend

Annual General Meeting

Final Dividend

Annual General Meeting 2 September 2016

Payment of Dividends

Interim dividend of
HK$0.20 per share

Final dividend of
HK$0.50 per share

27 November 2015
27 June 2016

16 to 18 December 2015
30 August to

2 September 2016
12 to 15 September 2016

23 December 2015

23 September 2016
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
B R Z BT

Dear Shareholders,

Unfazed by the volatile global and local economic environment,
the Group achieved encouraging operating results in the 2015/16
financial year due to positive contribution from our major lines
of businesses. The Group believes that steady growth will be
maintained in the forthcoming year with the Group taking advantage
of market trends in its most notable business areas.

In light of the unresolved issue of the shortage of skillful and
non-skillful labour, the lack of qualified professionals, and the
continuous prolonged debates on infrastructure projects in the
HKSAR Legislative Council which have delayed the schedules for
new construction works, there remain challenges in Hong Kong
for the construction industry in the coming year. With a view to
improving housing units supply and promoting local economy, the
Hong Kong Government has committed to increase the availability
of private and public housing units in the years to come by taking
forward new development and extension projects. This, together
with our cautious approach in tendering and our close monitoring
of construction costs and schedules, it is envisaged that the
Group’s construction and engineering segment will continue to
grow healthily in both revenue and profit in the years to come
notwithstanding the challenges that it may face.

Despite the slowdown in Mainland China’s economic growth in
2015, the PRC Government continues to focus on implementing
structural reforms so as to boost the long-term sustainability of
its economy. With the completion of the Group's residential units
in Chengdu, the Group is in good position to take advantage of
any significant turnaround of the property sector in the Mainland.
With the expected monetary easing and the relaxation of rules on
home purchasing in Mainland China, in order to maintain its future
growth momentum and take advantage of relevant PRC Government
policies, and the strong market demand for reliable and affordable
housing, construction of Phase Il of Chevalier City in Changchun is
underway and completion is expected to be in 2017/18.

The Group believes that there are significant investment
opportunities in the US senior housing business. The growing
demand for senior housing in the US has so far been driven by the
significant increase in the elderly population. Leveraging on our
experience and the economies of scale of our existing US senior
housing business and the highly fragmented ownership of senior
housing properties among small owners, the Group is confident that
it will be able to increase net operating income and bring in more
profit from this business. Given the current record low interest
rate and increase in demand for senior housing and health-related
services, the Group is optimistic about the long-term outlook of the
senior housing business worldwide yet will continue to cautiously
assess and invest in potential business when opportunities arises.
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For the coming year, the Group will continue to adopt an open-
minded approach to business investments in both the local and
overseas markets. With our solid foundation, strong cash position
and healthy balance sheet, the Group will invest and manage
its portfolios cautiously in the challenging external economic
environment so as to achieve business success and enhance
shareholder value.

As you may be aware, the Company announced on 12 January
2016 that Dr YC Chow is unable to perform his duties as Chairman
and Executive Director due to an unexpected medical condition.
| have been appointed as the Co-Chairman of the Company since
12 January 2016 in addition to my position of Managing Director of
the Company. The day-to-day operation of the Group is running as
normal. We are confident that the Group will continue to excel in
every respect under my leadership and that of the Board and senior
management during Dr Chow's absence.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to offer my sincerest gratitude to
our shareholders, business partners, and customers for their loyalty,
support, and confidence through the year. | would also like to thank
our employees for their hard work.

KUOK Hoi Sang
Co-Chairman and Managing Director

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

BB Rz R

RIR—F - AEEFEEEA MBI TS
REFABROEBRERE - BERENE
- TN RSHRRREENEEREBR -
AEBERRENINELERET - §2EE
BRENEREXBASG  WEREBHKD
RARTHIRBIE -

BTHFEEREE  ARBER=F—RF
—A+t-—RAEfi ATNEELERENR
B ARBEBITIIE R EE MMITEE R
BeRAAB_Z—RF-AT_Bi K
EARRFNEFELIRIN  TMEZEREE
EFE - AKBAEEFE—IWE  MREE
TRREHNE  AKEEAA  EZGRSM
BEABMEET  BEBESHTERBER

15

AANERREES SR HBHNEE 2 RE -
EBBHREPNBE-—FHAEE R
B IERET AATBRRSEINHES
TE-

b T AR B FARAETE
BiE

HtEBREEERLE | £% 2016 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEBNWRON

The Group's consolidated revenue was HK$5,538 million (2015:
HK$5,013 million), representing an increase of 10.5% when
compared with the last financial year. Taking into account its share of
revenue in its associates and joint ventures, total segment revenue
was HK$9,329 million (2015: HK$9,542 million), representing a
decrease of 2.2%. The increase in the Group's consolidated revenue
was mainly due to strong performance of the property segment.
Recognised contribution from the sales of residential properties in
Changchun, offset by the absence of the one-off gain from the sale
of a property through the disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary
and by further impairment against Australia’s fresh produce supply
business, caused profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
decrease to HK$360 million, comparing to HK$1,590 million in
2014/15. Profit attributable to the Company’s equity holders for
the year ended 31 March 2016 reduced to HK$315 million (2015:
HK$1,537 million), and earnings per share to HK$1.05 (2015:
HK$5.21).

CONSTRUCTION AND ENGINEERING

The construction and engineering segment’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2016 recorded a slight decrease to HK$4,658
million (2015: HK$4,684 million). The profit of this segment also
decreased by 8.8% from HK$318 million in 2014/15 to HK$290
million in 2015/16.

Benefiting from the buoyant construction industry in Hong Kong,
additional building construction contracts were secured during
the financial year. In addition, the building construction division
has implemented cost control measures and enhanced operation
efficiency to cope with upcoming challenges in the construction
industry.

Though the electrical and mechanical engineering business
maintained a steady margin in Macau, in view of the slowdown of
Macau's economy and the completion of several sizable projects in
Macau, the division has shifted its focus back to Hong Kong.

The aluminium windows and curtain walls division recorded a
steady growth in the profit contribution during the year due to the
sustainable development of the construction industry in Hong Kong.
The Group is optimistic about the prospects of this division in the
coming year.

As a result of the supply of kitchen cabinets to renowned property
developers in Hong Kong, installation of glass reinforced plastic
water tanks for the public and private sectors and renovation of
China Light & Power sub-stations, the building supplies division
recorded a heartening result in its business during the year.

The reduction in the number of HKSAR Government projects in
the sewage and water segment during the financial year has led
to fierce market competition. Despite this, the environmental
engineering division continued to dedicate and commit the team to
explore opportunities in different environmental projects such as the
integrated waste management facilities project.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In light of the HKSAR Government’'s commitment to increase
housing supply and its policy in the revitalisation of industrial
buildings, the lift and escalator division anticipated a continuous
upward trend in the demand for energy efficient and resource saving
lift and escalator products. The division will continue to explore and
seize opportunities in this business.

The construction and engineering industry has suffered from a
chronic skilled labour shortage due to an ageing population and
reluctance of the younger generation to join the field. In addition, the
market has had to cope with several ongoing mega infrastructure
projects and higher material costs. The Group has taken proactive
sweeping measures to attract and cultivate talents to tackle the
shortage of construction professional and increase in costs so as to
ensure the quality of services offered.

As at 31 March 2016, the total values of all outstanding construction
and engineering contracts of the Group’s subsidiaries amounted to
HK$5,735 million. Major contracts include:

1. Construction of the property development at Long Ping
Station, Yuen Long, New Territories;

2. Construction of a Government complex at Tuen Mun, New
Territories;

3. Electrical and mechanical works for the Wynn Palace in Macau;

4. Expansion of Tai Po Water Treatment Works Stream II, Tai Po,
New Territories; and

5. Design, supply and installation of curtain walls at Lot. 1949,
D.D. 221, Sha Kok Mei, Sai Kung, New Territories.

INSURANCE AND INVESTMENT

Revenue for the insurance and investment segment dropped
by 41.2% from HK$154 million in 2014/15 to HK$90.5 million in
2015/16, mainly due to less dividends received from securities
investment. Segment profit also dropped from HK$50.3 million to
HK$16.2 million when compared with last year. The decrease in
profit was caused by the loss in fair values of financial instruments.
The most notable contributions to revenue came from the employee
compensation and property insurance businesses.

The vibrant construction market contributed significantly to the
number of large scale infrastructure projects, which led to steady
growth of the employee compensation insurance business in this
segment. Our good reputation, reasonable pricing and efficient
customer service enabled our property insurance division to secure
new property insurance business from insurance brokers and
building contractors.

In light of the volatile and competitive market in Hong Kong, the
Group has adopted a prudent underwriting approach to strengthen
its competitiveness whilst maintaining sustainable growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRR D

The Group’'s investment in the insurance business in Vietnam,
namely Bao Minh Insurance Corporation, continued to perform
well during the year under review. Given the strategic relationship
with Bao Minh Insurance Corporation, the Group continues to seek
opportunities in further developing its business in Vietnam so as to
reap the benefits from Vietnam's rapid economic growth.

Taking into account the continuing volatility of the global financial
market in the coming financial year, the Group will continue to
adopt a proactive approach cautiously in the management of
the investment portfolio in such fast-changing and challenging
environment.

PROPERTY

During the year under review, the property segment’s revenue
increased by 56.7% from HK$1,111 million in 2014/15 to HK$1,741
million in 2015/16. Segment profit recorded a significant drop from
HK$1,576 million in 2014/15 to HK$403 million in 2015/16, such drop
was primarily due to the absence of the one-off gain of HK$1,248
million from the sale of a property through the disposal of a wholly-
owned subsidiary. Although the PRC Government targets a GDP
growth rate of 6.5% or above in the next 5 years, a noticeable
slow down with the economic growth in Mainland China in the last
quarter of the financial year under review exerted pressure at an
increased magnitude, and downward pressure on growth remain
amid the ongoing adjustments in the Mainland China property
market. Moreover, the de-stocking policy implemented by real
estate developers in the Mainland also posed significant pressure
on the Group’s property business in the Mainland. During the year
under review, sales remained slow with Beijing’s “My Villa” and
Chengdu’s “Chateau Ermitas”. However, the sales performance of
Changchun’s “Chevalier City”, which was classified as "“affordable
housing”, was positive due to strong demand for residential
housing. Pre-sales of residential units in Phase Il of “Chevalier City”
was launched in the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year.

City Hub, a joint development project which is held by a 50-50 joint
venture of the Group for the development of the site held by Urban
Renewal Authority in To Kwa Wan, has submitted application for
sale and is expected to be completed in 2017. The Group and the
joint investor will closely monitor the local property market and will
commence the pre-sale after obtaining the consent from the HKSAR
Government.

The property management division provided comprehensive and
high quality property management services to a wide range of
customers with a portfolio of over 30 million sq. ft. comprising of
commercial, industrial and residential buildings, shopping arcades,
car parks and other communal facilities. Given the increasing trend
in wages and keen industry competition, the management has taken
a conservative approach in cost control and with new contract bids.

The cold storage and logistics business has been working in line with
key account clients by providing additional quality in-store service
and all-in-one total logistics reefer service solution. Performance of
this business remained stable throughout the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The performance of the US senior housing business was mainly
affected by one-off re-financing fees incurred during the year. The
Group currently owns 23 senior housing facilities providing 1,017
assisted living beds, 733 memory care beds and 119 skilled nursing
beds to serve different needs of the aged population. Subsequent to
year end, in order to capture current low-interest-rate environment,
the Group completed a refinancing exercise for three properties
located in Oregon. Given the mega trend of ageing population,
the Group is optimistic about the senior housing business and will
continue to work closely with the operators to enhance the value of
its existing properties and make further acquisitions as opportunities
arise.

FOOD AND BEVERAGE

As a result of the dilution of interest in and deemed disposal of Cafe
Deco Group in December 2015, the Group held 25.28% interest in
Cafe Deco Group as at 31 March 2016. Segment revenue of the food
and beverage decreased by 14.6% to HK$598 million in 2015/16
from HK$700 million in 2014/15 and segment profit decreased from
a profit of HK$25.8 million in 2014/15 to a loss of HK$5.0 million in
2015/16.

During the year, the outlets under Cafe Deco Group in general
recorded a drop in same store sales compared to the same period
last year whilst competition remained stiff. The severe drag from
the protracted slowdown in inbound tourism, weak consumption
sentiment, keen competition within the sector and increasing
operating costs continued to be challenges for Hong Kong's food
and beverage business.

OTHERS

Segment revenue dropped by 22.5%, from HK$2,893 million in
2014/15 to HK$2,242 million in 2015/16. Compared with the last
financial year, segment result slightly dropped further from a loss of
HK$140 million to a loss of HK$141 million. In Chengdu, a total of 13
4S shops are operated by a group of associates, providing 8 import
and domestic car brands. Over 16,000 units of cars were sold and
the turnover reached RMB2,300 million during the year. However,
despite such high sales volume recorded, keen competition led to a
thin profit margin.

The Group faced a slight drop in its food trading business in the US,
which was caused by a slow retail market. The Group will continue
to search for high quality food products in Asia in order to stimulate
the needs of its existing customers and to expand its customer base
in the US.

The fresh produce supply business in Australia, which was operated
by the Group's associates, remained at a substantial loss during the
year. In view of the adverse situation, the Group had already made
full provision in the interim results.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased by 10.5% or HK$525 million, from
HK$5,013 million in 2014/15 to HK$5,538 million in 2015/16. The
increase was mainly contributed by property segment.

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased from HK$1,213 million in 2014/15 to
HK$1,212 million in 2015/16 and gross profit margin slightly
decreased from 24.2% t0 21.9%.

Other income, net

Net other income of HK$63.4 million was recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$155 million). The decrease was
mainly resulted from net fair value losses on investments at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
of HK$24.8 million (2015: net fair value gains of HK$35.5 million)
and the absence of interest income from an associate of HK$37.9
million.

Other losses, net

Net other losses of HK$131 million were recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2016 (2015: net other gains of HK$957 million).
The significant decrease was primarily due to the absence of the
one-off gain on disposal of Chevalier Engineering Service Centre
("CESC") through the disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group of HK$1,248 million and a lower increase in fair value gains
of investment properties of HK$32.0 million (2015: HK$193 million);
partially offset by the absence of impairment losses on amounts due
from joint ventures of HK$154 million and reduction of impairment
losses on available-for-sale investments to HK$17.2 million (2015:
HK$210 million).

Share of results of associates

The Group's share of results of associates dropped to HK$117
million in this year (2015: HK$249 million), which resulted from
the decreasing contribution in car dealership business in Mainland
China.

Finance costs, net

Net finance costs decreased by 14.5% or HK$13.8 million due to
the support of strong cash inflow from operations speeding up the
settlement of bank borrowings.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$315
million was achieved for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$1,537 million), a substantial decrease of 79.5% or HK$1,222
million over last year which had accounted for an one-off gain on
disposal of CESC amounted to HK$1,248 million in 2014/15.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Goodwill

The decrease in the carrying value of goodwill of HK$61.2 million
to HK$629 million as at 31 March 2016 was primarily due to the
deemed disposal of a subsidiary and impairment made amounted to
HK$57.2 million and HK$4.7 million respectively.

Interests in associates (under non-current assets) and amounts
due from/to associates (under current assets/liabilities)

Interests in associates consisted of interests in associates, including
goodwill, of HK$685 million (2015: HK$657 million) and non-current
portion of amounts due from associates of HK$236 million (2015:
HK$341 million).

The increment of interests in associates, including goodwill,
represented the share of profit of associates of HK$117 million
and deemed disposal of Cafe Deco Group from a subsidiary to an
associate of HK$57.9 million, net off by disposals of associates
of HK$29.9 million, share of other comprehensive expenses of
HK$14.7 million and dividends received from associates of HK$102
million.

The amounts due from/to associates (under non-current and current
assets/liabilities), net decreased from HK$323 million to HK$254
million as at 31 March 2016, mainly resulted from the net advance
to associates amounted to HK$38.6 million and impairment loss on
amount due from an associate amounted to HK$119 million during
the year.

Interests in joint ventures (under non-current assets) and
amounts due from/to joint ventures (under current assets/
liabilities)

Interests in joint ventures consisted of interests in joint ventures,
including goodwill, of HK$119 million (2015: HK$272 million) and
non-current portion of amounts due from joint ventures of HK$401
million (2015: HK$1,238 million).

The decrement of interests in joint ventures, including goodwill,
represented the acquisition of Dolce Field Limited, an immediate
holding company holding 51% joint venture, from a joint venture
partner of HK$174 million and share of loss of joint venture of
HK$25.4 million, offset by the step-up acquisition of Mass Harvest
Limited from a 49% to 60% joint venture of HK$65.8 million.

The amounts due from/to joint ventures (under non-current and
current assets/liabilities), net decreased from HK$1,238 million
to HK$348 million as at 31 March 2016 mainly resulted from the
capitalisation of HK$667 million and liabilities recognised of HK$167
million after the acquisition of Dolce Field Limited.
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Available-for-sale investments

The decrease in available-for-sale investments of HK$71.7 million to
year end balance of HK$129 million was basically due to fair value
loss of HK$48.5 million during the year.

Properties under development (under non-current and current
assets)

The additions of HK$58.0 million to properties under development
(under non-current and current assets) represented the acquisition
of Dolce Field Limited of HK$547 million and the additional
development costs of HK$363 million for property development
projects located in Chengdu and Changchun, Mainland China, offset
by completion of a property development project in Changchun,
Mainland China of HK$779 million.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

The increase in investment at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$142 million to year end balance of HK$506 million was basically
due to the addition of investments, partially offset by a slight net fair
value loss of the securities investments during the year.

Properties for sale

The additions of HK$1,189 million to properties for sale represented
the acquisition of Dolce Field Limited and completion of a property
development project in Changchun, Mainland China.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2016, bank balances and cash decreased to
HK$2,009 million (2015: HK$2,663 million), of which 91.7% (2015:
84.2%) of bank balances and cash were denominated in Hong
Kong and US dollars while 4.2% (2015: 10.9%) was denominated
in Renminbi. The settlement of bank borrowings by the strong bank
balances and cash caused a significant reduction in bank balances
and cash as at the end of the reporting period.

Bank borrowings (under current and non-current liabilities)

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's bank borrowings decreased
to HK$3,113 million (2015: HK$3,528 million) due to accelerated
settlement of borrowings by strong bank balances and cash.
90.8% and 8.3% (2015: 96.7% and 2.7%) of bank borrowings
were denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars, and Renminbi
respectively.

The Group's bank borrowings in respect of the portion due within
one year significantly increased to 30.9% as at 31 March 2016 which
was relatively high in ratio comparing to 16.7% as at 31 March 2015.

Majority of the borrowings in Hong Kong and Mainland China carry
floating interest rates, of which most of them are based on Hong
Kong or London Interbank Offered Rates or the People’s Bank of
China Benchmark Loan Rate, while majority of the borrowings in the
US carry fixed interest rates insured by the US Government.

Finance costs charged to the consolidated income statement during
the year dropped to HK$105 million (2015: HK$115 million).
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SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's net assets attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to HK$7,750 million (2015:
HK$$7,889 million), a decrease of HK$139 million or 1.8% when
compared with 2015. Such slight decrease mainly resulted from
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$315
million, offset by the payment of dividends (net of issue of shares
under scrip dividend schemes) of HK$334 million and exchange
difference on translation of operations of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures of HK$137 million during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

LEVERAGE RATIOS

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and the US.

As at 31 March 2016, of the Group's total debt amounted to
HK$3,113 million (2015: HK$3,528 million), HK$846 million (2015:
HK$860 million) was attributable to the senior housing business and
without recourse to the Company.

Analysis of the net debt is set out below:

Unsecured: I
— senior housing business —ZEREEG
— other business — H A 375
Secured: BHEM
— senior housing business —ZEREEG
— other business —HMZER
Total debt RIS
Bank balances and cash IRITHEGE MRS
Net debt SHHETE
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As at 31 March 2016, with the decrease in bank borrowings, total
debt to equity ratio decreased to 37.8% (2015: 42.0%), which was
expressed as a percentage of bank borrowings over the Group's
net assets of HK$8,238 million (2015: HK$8,399 million). Net
debt to equity ratio increased to 13.4% (2015: 10.3%), which was
expressed as a percentage of net bank borrowings (representing
total bank borrowings net of bank balances and cash) over the
Group's net assets. Ratio of total debt to total assets of HK$14,520
million (2015: HK$15,329 million) decreased from 23.0% to 21.4%
as at 31 March 2016.

With adequate banking facilities in place and recurrent cash
generation from its operations, the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet the funding requirements for its ongoing
operations as well as its future expansion.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. The Group's treasury activities are centralised in order
to achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds. Cash is
generally placed in short-term deposits with majority denominated in
Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi or US dollar. The Group's liquidity and
financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of bank borrowings, the Group will consider
new financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
INTEREST RATES

The major currencies used to operate the businesses are Australian
dollar, Euro, Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As at
31 March 2016, the Group had arranged foreign currency swap
contracts amounting to HK$239 million (2015: HK$363 million)
to hedge part of its foreign currency risk from various foreign
currencies used for business operations. The Group had outstanding
interest rate swap contracts which amounted to HK$800 million in
total as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$1,600 million), enabling the
Group to manage its interest rate exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, bank borrowings of HK$1,818 million
(2015: HK$1,962 million) and other unutilised banking facilities
were secured by charges on investment properties of HK$2,196
million (2015: HK$2,172 million), property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,282 million (2015: HK$1,216 million), no charge on interests
in joint ventures (2015: HK$174 million), other non-current assets
of HK$21.6 million (2015: 21.8 million), inventories of HK$82.0
million (2015: HK$23.0 million), debtors, deposits and prepayments
of HK$63.3 million (2015: HK$49.2 million) and deposits at bank of
HK$333 million (2015: HK$144 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENT

Details of the commitment are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. The commitment is to be financed by bank
borrowings and internal funds.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES AND
THEIR PROFORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

The Company and/or its subsidiaries have provided financial
assistance to, and guarantees for banking facilities granted to,
affiliated companies as at 31 March 2016, which together in
aggregate amounted to HK$655 million as loans and HK$607 million
as guarantees issued for banking facilities granted. These amounts
represented a percentage ratio of approximately 8.8% as at 31
March 2016 and exceeded the assets ratio of 8% under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In
accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an unaudited
proforma combined statement of financial position of those affiliated
companies with financial assistance from the Group and the Group's
attributable interest in those affiliated companies as at 31 March
2016 are presented below:

Non-current assets IERENEE
Current assets MBNEE
Current liabilities REEE
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Shareholders’ advances f&ERfE TR
Total equity 1Ak

As at 31 March 2016, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees,
amounted to HK$198 million.
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Proforma
combined
statement of Group’s
financial attributable
position interest
BEESH REE
B AR 3% PE(ERE
HK$ million HKS$ million
BEHERL BEBHERT
1,875 866
2,326 1,044
(1,792) (800)
(708) (314)
(1,196) (665)
505 131

R-ZZ—RE=A=1+—H KBARZHH
ERAEERHBERZRITEEREK1.98
(VI
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DR CHOW YEI CHING G.B.S., O.B.E., Executive Director, Co-
Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Executive Committee,
aged 80, founded Chevalier Group in 1970. Dr Chow was re-
designated from Chairman to Co-Chairman of the Company on 12
January 2016. Dr Chow was an independent non-executive director
of Television Broadcasts Limited and resigned on 1 March 2015. In
1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Business Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and an Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong.
In 1997, he was conferred the degree of Doctor of Laws honoris
causa by The University of Hong Kong. He is also a Consultative
Professor of Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of
Sichuan Union University in Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow was
awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Social Science by
City University of Hong Kong. In 2013, Dr Chow was also awarded
Doctor of Social Science honoris causa by Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. Dr Chow's enthusiasm in public services
is evidenced by his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The
Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the
Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001.
Dr Chow also actively participates in various professional bodies
and associations on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few,
he is the Founding President of International Ningbo Merchants
Association Company Limited, the Vice Patron of The Japan Society
of Hong Kong and the Permanent Honorary President of the National
Taiwan University — HK Alumni Association. In recognition of his
contributions to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was
awarded honourable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and
Japan. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia
Star by the HKSAR Government in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow
Vee Tsung, Oscar, Non-Executive Director of the Company and Miss
Lily Chow, Executive Director of the Company.

MR KUOK HOI SANG M.H., Executive Director, Co-Chairman and
Managing Director, a member of each of the Executive Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 66, joined Chevalier Group in 1972. Mr Kuok was appointed
as Co-Chairman of the Company on 12 January 2016. Mr Kuok is
the President of The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in
Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong — China Branch
of The International Association of Elevator Engineers, Vice
President of The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in
Hong Kong. He is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr Kuok was
awarded a Medal of Honour by the HKSAR Government in 2016
for his dedicated public service, particularly his contributions to the
development of the electrical and mechanical services industry.
Mr Kuok has extensive experience in business development and
is responsible for the strategic planning and management of the
operations of lift and escalator, building construction, building
supplies, aluminium windows and curtain walls, electrical and
mechanical engineering, civil engineering, property investment and
development as well as investment projects of Chevalier Group.
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MR TAM KWOK WING, Executive Director, Deputy Managing
Director and a member of the Executive Committee, aged 55, joined
Chevalier Group in 1986. Mr Tam oversees all legal affairs of the
Group and he is responsible for the operations of cold storage and
logistics; insurance services; property investment and development;
property management; and travel agency businesses.

Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Beijing University of
the People’s Republic of China; a Master of Arts Degree from City
University of Hong Kong; and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr Tam
is a Fellow Member of each of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators;
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors; the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom;
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Tam is also
a Chartered Member of the Chartered Institute of Housing.

At present, Mr Tam is the elected President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries; a Councilor of the General
Insurance Council in The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers and
the Immediate Past President of the Hong Kong Association of
Property Management Companies. He is also appointed as a
Member of each of the Occupational Safety and Health Council; the
Employees’ Compensation Insurance Levies Management Board;
the Property Management Industry Training Advisory Committee
of the Education Bureau; Advisory Committee on Water Supplies
and the Steering Committee on the Promotion of Electric Vehicles.
In addition, he is an Honorary Secretary of The Insurance Claims
Complaints Bureau. Mr Tam is also a member of The Board of
Supervisors of Bao Minh Insurance Corporation in Vietnam.

Mr Tam is also appointed as the Honorary Vice Consul of the
Kingdom of Bahrain to Hong Kong. He also serves as the Secretary
General of the Hong Kong Bahrain Business Association. In China,
Mr Tam is appointed as a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Committee of Xuhui District of Shanghai
as well as Changchun, and the Deputy Director of the latter's
Subcommittee for Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan Compatriots and
Foreign Affairs. Mr Tam is also a Council Member of the Guangdong
Chamber of Foreign Investors.
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MR HO CHUNG LEUNG, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 66, joined Chevalier Group in 1985. He
is responsible for the management of accounting, treasury, internal
audit and information technology activities of Chevalier Group. Mr
Ho is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

MR MA CHI WING, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 47, joined Chevalier Group in 1993.
Mr Ma has extensive experience in project management and is
currently in charge of the senior housing, car dealerships, hotel
investment and trading businesses of the Group. Mr Ma holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration from The University of
Warwick, U.K., a Bachelor Degree in International Business Studies
from City University of Hong Kong, a Corporate Finance Certificate
from UC Berkeley, the US, and a Professional Certificate in China
Construction from Tsinghua University, Mainland China.

MISS LILY CHOW, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 53, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She
is responsible for strategic planning and business development of
the Group. Miss Chow holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of British Columbia, Canada. Miss Chow is currently a
non-official member of Harbourfront Commission and Independent
Member of Appeal Board of the Travel Industry Council of Hong
Kong. She is also currently a member of the Ningbo Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Miss
Chow is the daughter of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Co-Chairman of the
Company and a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

DR KO CHAN GOCK, WILLIAM S.B.S., Ph.D., Non-Executive
Director, aged 70, joined the Company in 2009. Dr Ko graduated
from The University of Hong Kong in 1968. He served in the HKSAR
Government for more than 38 years, having worked in a wide
range of departments including the Water Supplies Department,
the Highways Department, the Civil Engineering and Development
Department and the Works Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as
the Director of Water Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil service in
January 2007.
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MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR, Non-Executive Director, aged 42,
joined Chevalier Group in 2000. Mr Chow was re-designated from
an Executive Director to a Non-Executive Director, and ceased to be
a member of each of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company on 1
October 2015. Mr Chow was an independent non-executive director
of Towngas China Company Limited and resigned on 8 May 2015.
He holds a degree in Master of Engineering from The University
of Oxford, U.K. and is currently a General Committee Member
of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and a General
Committee Member of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Shanghai Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference. Mr Chow is also
a court member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and The
University of Hong Kong. Mr Chow is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching,
the Co-Chairman of the Company and brother of Miss Lily Chow,
Executive Director of the Company.

DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH O.B.E., J.P., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee, aged 74, joined the Company in 2002. He is the
Independent Non-Executive Chairman of Joseph Chow & Partners
Ltd., an independent non-executive director of Build King Holdings
Limited, Road King Infrastructure Limited, and Harbour Centre
Development Limited. Dr. Chow is a civil and structural engineer
by profession. He has over 40 years of experience in the planning,
design and construction of many major engineering projects in the
U.K., Middle East, Mainland China and Hong Kong. He was formerly
the Chairman of the Hong Kong Construction Workers Registration
Authority and Honorary Senior Superintendent of the Hong Kong
Auxiliary Police Force. He was previously the President of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, Chairman of Hong Kong Engineers’
Registration Board, Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment
Authority and Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Governing
Committee, as well as a Member of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and Hospital Authority.

MR SUN KAI DAH, GEORGE, Independent Non-Executive Director,
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, aged 76, joined
the Company in 2006. He has extensive experience in business
management. He was the founder of Zindart Limited, a company
incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United States NASDAQ. He
retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer of Zindart Limited
in 1998.
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MR YANG CHUEN LIANG, CHARLES B.B.S., J.P., Independent
Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, aged 57, joined the Company in 2008.
Mr Yang obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration
from Cass Business School London, U.K. in 1983 and is currently
a partner at S. Y. Yang & Company, Practising firm of Accountants
and member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales as well as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. His community duties include the Director and Forth
Vice President & Admissions, Budgets & Allocations Committee
chairman of the Community Chest, member of the Social Welfare
Advisory Committee, Occupational Safety & Health Council, Appeal
Board Panel (Town Planning), an independent director of the
Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong, a member of Assessment
Committee of Mega Events Fund of Tourism Commission and
a member of Hospital Governing Committee of Caritas Medical
Centre. Mr Yang was selected as “Outstanding Accountant
Ambassador” by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was appointed as Justice of Peace by the HKSAR
Government in 2004 and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the
HKSAR Government in 2011.

PROFESSOR POON CHUNG KWONG G.B.S., J.P., Ph.D., D.Sc.,
Independent Non-Executive Director, aged 76, joined the Company
in 2012. Professor Poon obtained a Bachelor of Science (Honours)
degree from the University of Hong Kong, a Doctor of Philosophy
degree and a Higher Doctor of Science degree from the University
of London, U.K.. He was a postdoctoral fellow at the California
Institute of Technology and University of Southern California.
He also held the Honorary Degree of Doctor of Humanities from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. Professor Poon is
currently the chairman of Virya Foundation Limited (a registered
non-profit charitable organisation). He is an Emeritus Professor and
the President Emeritus of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and had devoted 40 years of his life to advancing university
education in Hong Kong before he retired in January 2009 from
his 18-year presidency at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Professor Poon was appointed a non-official Justice of the Peace
in 1989 and received the OBE award in 1991, the Gold Bauhinia
Star award in 2002, and the “Leader of the Year Awards 2008
(Education)”. In addition, Professor Poon was appointed as a
member of the Legislative Council (1985-1991) and a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (1998-2013). Professor Poon is a non-executive director
of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Henderson Land Development Company
Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited and
Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited. All of those companies
are public companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEYEXR

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at the date of AEERAREBBH 2 EEZWEFIIWOT -
this report are as follows:

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR () HERE BRME
OWN USE

Approximate

gross The Group's
Location floor area* Lease term interest
1t 2 BREEEAZ* ZNEH AEEREERE
sq. ft. F R %
Hong Kong
Bk
Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor, Office premise 174,600 Medium 100
19th to 23rd Floors and and carpark A
one-third interest in 201 MAERIFHES

car parking spaces of

Chevalier Commercial Centre,

8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
NEEEZRE/\FELTEEFRL

+$§ T__K ::_j-L:I:

ThEZ+=BR

h=7n—#% 2 201 E=Ef

Chevalier Warehouse Building, Industrial 118,300 Medium 100
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, T rh B
Fanling

MELTLBLRHE=RETEAAE

Ground Floor of Blocks A and B, Industrial 14,900 Medium 100
East Sun Industrial Centre, T rh HA

16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong
BEREEHT/SRIBEIRRL

AR BEEIH T
29-33 Tsing Yi Road, Tsing Yi Industrial 253,500 Medium 87.5
BRERE-_TNE=T=5% I 5
8 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung Cold storage 380,000 Medium 75
ERESH\R warehouse h
RERE
124-130 Kwok Shui Road and Cold storage 427,500 Medium 75
79-85 Yau Ma Hom Road, warehouse ===
Kwai Chung REEE
HREIRE—A_THNE—B=T%HK
i DR e ARV AN o
9 Henderson Road, Jardine's Lookout Residential 9,500 Long 100
BEILFERE NS F= $=3:1
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
RE =15 T= R

HtEBREEBRLE | F£H 2016 25



SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR
OWN USE (CONTINUED)

() ¥ERE BRW*(H)

Approximate
gross The Group's

Location floor area* Lease term interest
1t 2 R REHEBEAH* BHFH  AEEMLER
sq. ft. FHR %

26

Singapore

7 h0R

Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road,
Singapore 349481

The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,
Singapore 349473

Canada

nex

838 Hamilton Street, Vancouver, B.C.

4334-4340 Kingston Road,
Ontario, MIF 2M8

14535-14583 Yonge Street, Aurora,
Ontario

us
XH

430 East Grand Avenue,
South San Francisco, CA 94080

13258 Nelson Avenue,
City of Industry, Los Angeles,
CA 91746

4510 Duraleigh Road, Raleigh,
NC 27612

1700 Montana Drive, Charlotte,
NC 28216

3060 SE Stark Street, Portland,
OR 97214

14420 SW, Farmington Road,
Beaverton, OR 97005

535 U.S Highway 158W, Yanceyville,

NC 27379

2560 Willard Road, Winston-Salem,
NC 27107
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Industrial

T¥

Industrial

I%

Hotel
B

Office and workshop
for automobile
dealership

N OREEF S i< /N
RI%

Office and workshop
for automobile
dealership

ELOREEECS < /N
kI%

Industrial/
Warehouse

TI% /R

Industrial/
Warehouse

I%¥/8E

Senior Housing
RERE
Senior Housing
wERE
Senior Housing
zEhRE
Senior Housing
RERE
Senior Housing

ZERE

Senior Housing

zEhE

REPORT 2016

106,500

16,900

66,000

20,200

25,000

37,000

31,400

52,700

34,400

150,500

35,000

38,900

33,300

Freehold
KA

Freehold
KA KR

Freehold
KA

Freehold
KA ZERE

Freehold
KA

Freehold
KA FERE

Freehold
KA EETE

Freehold
KA SR
Freehold
KA ERE
Freehold
KAEETE
Freehold
KA
Freehold
KA
Freehold
KA FERE

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

98.6

100

100

100

98.6

98.6



() HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES/PROPERTIES FOR

SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

() BERE BRNE R

OWN USE (CONTINUED)
Approximate
gross The Group's
Location floor area* Lease term interest
1t 26 BEEBRAZ* BHEH  AEEfGES
sq. ft. . FAR %
Thailand
ZE
Chevalier House, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
540 Bamrungmuang Road, showroom KASERE
Debsirin Sub-district, MAERERIIZE
Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis
Mainland China
HEl Ayt
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai carpark N =5
LETHRERZEE—A~T/\BTE %X BfkiEEs
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, /N i Ef
69 Xianlie Zhong Road,
Gugngzhou
BRI RRILES
TNE=ZENE
(11) PROPERTIES FOR SALE n) #EME

Approximate

gross The Group's
Location floor area* Lease term interest
1t 2 REHEBENH BHFH  AEERGER
sq. ft. R %
Hong Kong
Units 1601-1603 on 16th Floor, 3,800 Medium 100
Chevalier House, 45-51 Chatham Road South, FhHA
Tsim Sha Tsui
%uﬂﬂ@%mﬁﬁﬂ-kﬁiﬂ-k—sﬁﬁiﬁf
TRE—RE—2—RE=FE
Mainland China
HEIRit
Phase | of Chevalier City — 240 apartment units, 727,000 Medium 96

136 residential units and 134 shop units, FhHR
Luyuan District, Changchun
REMHZEREBMHI240ERE - 136/EET R 134/ERH

My Villa - 22 villas and 8 shop units, 206,000 Medium 44
Huairou District, Beijing Hh HA
b AT R E B ED 22 5 B B s e SR 4

Chateau Ermitas — 47 villas, 79 residential units and 513,000 Medium 100
328 car parking spaces, Lushan Avenue, Chengdu rhHA

AT AL B H L B HA7ERE - 79@AFER
3281 == L
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SCHEDULE OF MIAJOR PROPERTIES

(111) PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT () BREAYE
Estimated
gross floor The
Stage of Expected date Approximate area after Group's
Location completion of completion Major usage sitearea  completion* interest
8+ 3ty TERERE X5E
i 2 EE BEETIAH TERR RN RO Pt
sq. ft EAR  sq. it FAR %
Mainland China
FEIRH
Luyuan District, Changchun  In progress 2017 to 2027 Residential and 2,550,000 5,863,000 96
REMHEE TigfTh i commercial
T4 FEREE
Shuangliu County, Chengdu  In progress 2018 Villa and residential 455,000 1,142,000 100
AT E R TigEfTH ZE-N\F REREE
¥ Excluding carparks * T EEFES
Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, T TEEMTE - FES AREE WERERE
resettlement buildings and clubhouses Frz EEmmiE
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with
the increasing stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out two levels of
corporate governance code, namely code provisions that a listed
company must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and
recommended best practices that a listed company is encouraged
to comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance.
The Company is in compliance with the code provisions of the CG
Code except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. All the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-Laws.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, an Independent Non-
Executive Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 27 August 2015 due to an overseas
commitment.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group's overall
objectives and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance and reviews the corporate governance
standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as annual
and interim results, notifiable transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.
Management profile of the Company as at the date of this report is
set out on pages 20 to 24.
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TEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) EEe(E)

The Board comprises six Executive Directors, two Non-Executive BEEEHABRTEE  MIBFRTEEN
Directors and four Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board BB IEMITEEMEK - EELHRAOE
met eight times during the year under review. The attendance of FEARBOTTNRGE SEFTEST
Directors at the Board Meetings, the Board Committees Meetings ex EFZEeEMRRERREeZAOL
and General Meeting is set out in the table below: BRI -

Meetings Attended/Held
BRLE BITRY

Annual
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting

£z E2g ENERES FHEES REZEE RRBEAS

Executive Directors
HiTEE
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Co-Chairman) 2/82 - - - 1/1
BTWEL (HEEE)
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and

Managing Director) 8/8 - 171 2/2 1/
B (B ETEFREFELIE)
Mr Tam Kwok Wing

(Deputy Managing Director) 8/8 - - - 11
BEISRSE (FIEFHHKE)
Mr Ho Chung Leung 8/8 - - _ 11
AR
l\/lr Ma Chi Wing 8/8 - - _ 1N
/ DTN W%E
Miss Lily Chow 6/8° - - - 11
JERIF/ N

Non-Executive Directors

HNTEF

Dr Ko Chan Gock, William 8/8 - - - N
BEEEL

Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 5/8° - 11 1nd 1
FEsEELE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUHRITEE

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph 7/8 3/3 1N 22 on
[EBRREE L

Mr Sun Kai Dah, George 8/8 3/3 11 2/2 1N
BEERSE

Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles 8/8 3/3 1N 2/2 ”hn
BEREE

Professor Poon Chung Kwong 7/8 - - - 1
ERAHE

a abstained from attending and voting in two board meetings and has been on medical a ZREEESHENHERE RN _ZE—RF
leave since January 2016 ﬁ BRI

b abstained from attending and voting in two board meetings b BE_NEEELHENNERE
¢ abstained from attending and voting in three board meetings c BE-DAEFLLERHERE

d  ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 1 October d RIZE-—AF+A—HEHHRERZESKE
2015
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other except that Dr Chow Yei Ching is the
father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow; while Miss
Chow is a sister of Mr Chow.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company met at
all times the requirements of the Listing Rules to have at least
three Independent Non-Executive Directors or representing at least
one-third of the Board and with at least one Independent Non-
Executive Director possessing appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise and professional qualifications.

The Company has received from its Independent Non-Executive
Directors annual confirmation of independence in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
their independence and concluded that all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company also provides reading materials
and updates to the Directors on the latest developments and
changes to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws and regulations
relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities.

During the year under review, the Company arranged a seminar
for the Directors given by PricewaterhouseCoopers on the matters
related to risk management and internal control. All Directors
attended and/or received the materials at the seminar. Directors’
training is an ongoing process and all Directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
Directors are requested to provide records of training they received
to the Company Secretary of the Company for records.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board shall have power to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a vacancy or for expansion of the Board. The Company
has set up a Nomination Committee for formulating nomination
policy for consideration by the Board and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection, appointment and re-appointment of
directors. All candidates must also meet the standards as set forth
in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to
be appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director should also
meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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REREHE

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company. New directors appointed by the
Board during the year are required to retire and submit themselves
for re-election at the annual general meeting or general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third are required to retire from office by rotation and no later
than the third annual general meeting since the last re-election or
appointment of such Director.

Mr Ho Chung Leung, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr Sun Kai Dah,
George and Professor Poon Chung Kwong shall retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 2 September 2016 (the “"AGM") in accordance with the
Company's Bye-Laws. Mr Sun Kai Dah, George has decided not to
stand for re-election and accordingly will retire as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and cease to be the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company after the
conclusion of the AGM. Save for Mr Sun, the other retiring Directors,
being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The re-designation of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar from an Executive
Director to a Non-Executive Director and the appointment of
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang as the Co-Chairman of the Company were
recommended by Nomination Committee to the Board for
consideration and confirmed by the Board of the Company on 31 July
2015 and 12 January 2016, respectively.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The code provision of CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr Chow Yei
Ching and the Managing Director is Mr Kuok Hoi Sang. The role of
the Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Board
while the Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group's
businesses.

As announced by the Company on 12 January 2016, Dr Chow
Yei Ching is for the time being unable to perform his duties as
Chairman due to an unexpected medical condition. Mr Kuok Hoi
Sang was appointed as the Co-Chairman of the Company with
effect from 12 January 2016 in addition to his position of Managing
Director of the Company. The Board considers this a temporary
arrangement and appropriate for the Company as it can preserve
the consistent leadership culture of the Company whilst allowing
efficient discharge of the executive functions of the chief executive.
Meanwhile, the day-to-day management and operation of the Group
are delegated to divisional management under the leadership of Mr
Kuok Hoi Sang in the role of Managing Director who is supported by
the Executive Directors and senior management.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Written terms of reference, which describe the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee, have been adopted and posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are
regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. Mr Yang Chuen Liang,
Charles, Independent Non-Executive Director, is the chairman of
the committee. He has extensive experience in financial reporting
and controls. Other members include Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dah,
George. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the nature and scope of audit performed by external
auditors and their appointments, reviewing the Group’s financial
information and overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewing and
monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 March 2016. At the meetings, they reviewed the connected
transactions (if any), last year’s final results and accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2015, the interim results and financial statements
for the six months ended 30 September 2015 and reviewed with
management the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed the auditing, financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The final
results and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
were reviewed by the Audit Committee in the meeting held on 20
June 2016. They also reviewed and approved the engagement of
external auditors for providing non-audit services, the remuneration
in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by external
auditors, risk management and internal control systems and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Written terms of reference, which describe the authority and
duties of the Remuneration Committee have been adopted and
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange,
and are regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph
(chairman of the committee), Messrs Yang Chuen Liang, Charles
and Sun Kai Dah, George; and one Executive Director, namely Mr
Kuok Hoi Sang. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure on the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company, and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy for
approval by the Board. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the operation model where it has the responsibility, powers
and discretion to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company.
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REREHE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2016 to review the remuneration packages
paid to Directors and senior management for the year ended 31
March 2016. Details of the emoluments of Directors and senior
management by bands are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Written terms of reference, which describe the authority and duties
of the Nomination Committee, have been adopted and posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and are
regularly reviewed and updated by the Board. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr Sun Kai Dah, George (chairman of the
committee), Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr Yang Chuen
Liang, Charles; and one Executive Director, namely Mr Kuok Hoi
Sang. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or reappointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive. The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to
consider, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination
Committee has discussed and reviewed annually the structure,
size and composition of the Board and agreed on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and made relevant
recommendations to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2016 to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, to assess the independence of all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, to recommend the re-election of directors
who would retire from office at the annual general meeting of the
Company and to make recommendations on new appointment or
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group's business to an Executive Committee
which was established in 1991. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee have been revised in March 2012 so as to
incorporate corporate governance functions as stipulated in the CG
Code. Members of the Executive Committee comprise six Executive
Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei Ching (chairman of the committee),
Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing, Ho Chung Leung, Ma
Chi Wing and Miss Lily Chow. Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar had
resigned as a member of the Executive Committee with effect from
1 October 2015.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.
The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operating systems or in achievement of the Group's
business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, which covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, on an annual basis.
It also considers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function. Significant issues in
the management letters from both internal and external auditors
will be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee to ensure
that prompt remedial action is taken. All recommendations will
be properly followed up to ensure they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and
procedures are in place to identify, assess, manage, control
and report risks. Such risks include strategic, credit, operational
(administrative, system, human resources, tangible and reputation),
market, liquidity, legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks is
continuously monitored by the Board through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority. The Board has clearly
defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each division
to ensure adequate checks and balances. The internal control
system has been designed to safeguard the Group’'s assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, to ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for producing reliable financial
information, and to ensure compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and industry standard.

During the year under review, there were no major issue but areas
for improvement have been identified by the Audit Committee and
both the internal and external auditors with appropriate measures
taken. The Board is of the view that the risk management and
internal control systems in place for the year and up to the date of
issuance of the annual report is effective and adequate.
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ERERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Company’s Internal Audit Department monitors the Group's
internal governance and strives to provide objective assurance to
the Board that appropriate, adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems are in place. It has unrestricted access
to review all aspects of the Group's activities and internal controls.
It also conducts special audits of areas of concern identified
by management or the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audit reports
are circulated to the Audit Committee and key management. The
Internal Audit Department is also responsible for following up the
implementation of recommendations and corrective actions. The
Audit Committee has free and direct access to the head of Internal
Audit Department without reference to the Co-Chairman, members
of the Board or senior management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and its subsidiaries and of the Group's financial
performance and cash flows. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors have adopted generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are fair and reasonable and prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The Auditor of the Company
acknowledge their reporting responsibilities in the Independent
Auditor’'s Report on the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 55 to 56.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the fees paid/payable to the
auditors in respect of the audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditors to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

BB EE & AR EE ()
ARARHABEZBAIERAREOARE
A UHORNEFSERREAHE BN
Ko B R E [\ 3 K OB BE ¥R B o A% AP P
ATERFIEIEGARE LS X ARERE
H TERERZESNEEE BN
BEETTESZ - REFZXBPIRAARR S
HEENT L MEBERBEHERTER
ZESRTEETIEABMERN - AEEZAEM
e s REREBESE I ETHNNTIE
N BREREEN AR AERRBANER
HMAMEANESESSHEETFAEMER
BRERAS -

ESNRBMEESMBRRNELE

EENENSAREREBE_T—NF=
A=+ ALFESFEVBHRE  NEER
NS N ZNNCIDNEE =N 307 Lo
AR AREBZ MBI R R RE © #RBLHAR
EMBRERE  EXERMAFERAETE
NREHEREE 2 G5 HE - (EH R
KRBz HIE R - WIS ELE AR
BUREMTEHEK - ARAZZBMERKE
HARRBE_T—R"F=A=+—HIF
B4R A MR X BN R ) R A AT
#1055 55 A E 56 BB BN ET -

BBz
BE_ZT-—RE=ZRA=+—HILHHFE
A - RASKEZ R 2 B IFR R
B EXN NS e T

Amount (HK$'000)

RIS EE SBE(BE T
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 7,030
ZH R PricewaterhouseCoopers
BERUKESTASHMREMBRE SR E R AR FREBHM
— other auditors 4,209
H B
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide network of 556
FERZEAR TS PricewaterhouseCoopers
BERUKESTINSHEMLEMBRESRKE R B PO EHA
— other auditors 1,588

Atz EE
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code") as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry
of all Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she has
complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. During the year
under review, the Company Secretary had duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. The requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s)
and deposited at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
themselves, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary and deposit the same at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail
to enquiry@chevalier.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting (“GM")
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or shall not be
less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also
be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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ERERRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Putting forward proposal at general meeting (“GM”) (continued)
The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the shareholders
concerned under applicable laws and rules.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a director is posted on the website of the
Company.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s Board and senior management maintains close
communications with investors, analysts, fund managers and the
media through various channels including individual interviews
and meetings. The Group also responds promptly to request for
information and queries from the investors.

The Board welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings to
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or senior
management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group to the
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and
annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial
and other information relating to the Group is disclosed on the
Company’s website at http://www.chevalier.com.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND BYE-LAWS OF THE
COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance Report prepared
by the Group pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide provided in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange.

Unless otherwise stated, this report focuses on our Hong Kong
operations which represent the core businesses of the Group.

Sustainability is essential to the Group’s development, as well as for
the viability of its business and the benefit to the community. We
are dedicated to offering premium products and services to achieve
all round customer satisfaction. The Group believes in environmental
protection and cares for the community through engaging in various
charitable initiatives to make positive contributions to society. We
also nurture our staff and offer career development opportunities to
further ensure business continuity.

During the year under review, the Group committed to a high
standard of corporate social responsibility and strictly complied with
relevant laws and regulations reporting. The two key subject areas
for reporting are: (A) Environmental and (B) Social.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The major source of our carbon emissions is the use of energy.
We have implemented various energy-saving measures to
help reduce our carbon emissions (please refer to the “Use of
Resources” and “The Environment and Natural Resources”
below).

Use of Resources

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in all business practices. The Group actively
participated in events organised by World Wide Fund for Nature
(WWEF), a well-established conservationist non-governmental
organisation, to contribute to the sustainable development of
our environment.

The Group is also taking part in various large-scale projects
related to water and wastewater, as well as solid waste
treatment and disposal, including but not limited to, the
construction of the Tai Po Water Treatment Works Stream I, the
construction of CLP Castle Peak “"B"” Power Station Coal Bunker
House Wash-down System, and the maintenance of electrical
and mechanical control systems at various sewage treatment
works and their outstations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has introduced a green policy to enhance the
awareness of environmental protection among staff with the
aim of saving energy, fully utilising resources and recycling
wastes in daily office operation.
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(A) ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED)

40

The Environment and Natural Resources (continued)

The Group has undertaken measures to reduce paper usage
including usage of electronic devices, and encouraging the use
of websites and online version of corporate communications.
Since 2008, Forest Stewardship Council-certified papers have
been used for the production of our annual and interim reports
to reduce the impact on the environment and community.

To reduce the power consumption of our lighting systems, the
Group has replaced all lighting basins continuously throughout
our offices with T5 florescent tube, saving 20% of electricity
energy as compared with T8 florescent tube. Most of our
office equipment carries Energy Label issued by the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department which would further
decrease energy consumption in our offices. To further support
environment protection, the Group purchased a new electric
vehicle in 2015. The new electric vehicle may help improve
roadside air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Our construction and engineering segment has put much effort
into protecting the environment at project sites. Measures
implemented, to name a few, included controls over noise,
waste water discharge, dust control, controlled chemical
waste disposal, and also the use of recyclable waste materials
and prevention of chemical leakage, etc. Another example
was the use of biodiesel in some of our machineries on site.
Environmental protection policies and plans were set up for
different projects. Some of our group companies have obtained
the 1SO14001 certification awarded by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency which also demonstrates our commitment to
environmental protection.

Our property management business has obtained the ISO14001
certification since 2006. Activities were held for recycling
and for the promotion of green living lifestyle for the Group
residents and/or tenants. In order to further save on energy and
expenditure, the Group has set a target for its audited sites to
reduce electricity consumption by 5% in the next 5 years by
changing light tubes from T8 to T5 and by turning off certain
low-usage lifts during non-peak hours. In some of our managed
sites, we have in place recycling programs for the collection of
second hand clothes, moon cake containers, lai see envelopes,
toner cartridges, batteries, electric bulbs/tubes and glass bottles
to promote recycling to our residents and/or tenants. Upon the
implementation of the Municipal Solid Waste Charging Scheme,
the property management business will make every endeavours
to support the implementation of such scheme.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

(B) SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment and Labour Standards

To attract, develop and retain qualified employees, the Group is
committed to offering professional development opportunities
and a healthy working environment for all employees and on-
site staff. In addition, we have implemented equal opportunity
employment practices.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total of approximately
3,100 full-time employees globally, with approximately 1,880 in
Hong Kong, 870 in Mainland China and 350 in other locations,
mainly the US, Canada and Thailand.

The Group reviews its compensation and benefits programs
regularly to ensure that its compensation and benefits packages
remain competitive. In addition, the Group continues to conduct
annual review of its pay and benefits packages of employees
including medical scheme, health check program, travel
insurance, training subsidies and retirement benefits to align
them with prevailing offers in the market.

Different recreational activities were also arranged by our
Human Resources Department. Interest classes and workshops
were organised in Hong Kong during the year under review to
increase the sense of belonging of our employees. The Group
strives to help our employees maintain a work life balance. A
staff recreation centre provides staff members with a place to
rest, relax and socialise. In addition, to promote our colleagues’
interest in reading, the Group continues to, during the year,
update and expand the variety of books and magazines in our
library to cover different topics.

The Group advocates a community spirit that thrives on mutual
respect and equal opportunities. The Group complies strictly to
equal opportunities legislation, such as the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, Race Discrimination Ordinance, Disability
Discrimination Ordinance and Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance. To ensure diversity and equality, we recruit,
remunerate and promote employees based on their experience,
skills and performance, without prejudice to age, race, disability,
gender or family status. In addition, the Group is strongly
committed to compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
does not engage in any forced or child labour.

The Group upholds high standards of business ethics and
promotes good personal conduct of its employees. Our Personal
Conduct and Staff Conduct Code in the Human Resources
Policies and Procedure Manual, can be easily accessed by staff
members through our intranet.
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(B) SOCIAL (continued)

42

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy
working environment to all employees and on-site staff. We
conduct regular monitoring of the work environment and staff
facilities. The Group has stringent regulation for employees
who are assigned to work on construction sites to minimise
and prevent exposure to occupational hazards and to ensure
a high standard of occupational safety. Safety and health care
trainings are provided from time to time for newcomers and
relevant personnel at our construction sites so as to improve
their awareness on safety in a working environment. Moreover,
we offer, and it is mandatory for our colleagues on sites to use,
special safety equipment such as safety helmets, ear plugs, dust
masks, goggles and safety shoes. Additional rest periods and
shelters, ventilation facilities and potable water for workers are
also provided during hot weather.

Occupational Health and Safety Committee

Our property management business has obtained OHSAS18001
as a recognition of its compliance with occupational health
and safety requirements since 2006. Head office and selected
sites are audited periodically by British Standards Institution
for renewal of the certificate. We have a Safety Committee
which consists of property management staff members from
head office and site level operation staff which formulates site
safety measures and policies. Regular meetings are scheduled
every 3 months for post-implementation review of audited sites,
as well as information exchange on accidents or injuries and
precautionary measures that have been taken by each of the
audited sites. Trainings are organised in each audited site every
3 months to enhance their awareness of occupational safety.
We have maintained a low accident rate in our audited sites
last year. Further, one of our group companies is the Immediate
Past President of the Hong Kong Association of Property
Management Companies which promotes the importance of
occupational safety through organising various occupational
safety-related activities.

Site Safety Subgroup

Our construction and engineering business ensures site safety
inspections are carried out on a regular basis and any finding in
major breaches and unsafe condition are rectified promptly. The
site safety subgroup, comprised of representatives from our
project companies and subcontractors, and operation meetings
are held frequently.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

(B) SOCIAL (continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training

The Group recognises that the knowledge and skills of our
employees are vital to the Group’'s continued business
development and success, we, therefore, encourage our staff
to pursue further with their professional development. The
Group nominates staff to attend internal and external training
programs from time to time and when appropriate. Our training
programs also range from professional and technical training to
personal development skills. The Group also provides education
subsidies to encourage staff in further developing their skills and
broaden their knowledge. To continuously attract new talents,
the Group also organises apprenticeship programs and provides
apprentices with on-the-job training.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group carefully selects qualified suppliers to ensure that the
entire production process is in line with our standards and rules.
We not only request our new suppliers to submit a review of all
relevant documents, but also conduct rigorous check to assess
their reliability. We carry out inspections and assessments
regularly to review the suppliers’ standards and terminate
collaboration with unqualified suppliers.

The Group upholds fair operating practices in its relationship
with subcontractors and suppliers through an efficient
procurement system. We have also adopted systems for
competitive tendering and subcontractors’ performance
monitoring and reporting. The Group conducts regular reviews
of terms and conditions of subcontracts and supply contracts
between the Group and our subcontractors and suppliers which
enables the development of effective and strong partnerships.
Such reviews cover the potential enhancement of social, ethical,
environmental and gender equality criteria in subcontracts and
supply contracts.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognises that good customer and after-sales
services are keys to the success and sustainability of the
Group. In order to cater for prompt response in meeting with
the needs of our customers, the Group has, therefore, set up
customer service teams for its different business units to handle
customers’ queries efficiently.

The Group respects the privacy of personal data and has
developed policies on the collection and usage of personal data.
Review and revision of the personal data and privacy policy are
carried out to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with
relevant laws.
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(B) SOCIAL (continued)
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Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

For our property management business, the Group discusses
issues with site managers and members of the Safety
Committee, and regularly provides updates to site managers
and/or person-in-charge for maintaining the recognition of
ISO9001, 1ISO14001, OHSAS18001 or to fulfil statutory
requirements. The Group also reminds site managers to
regularly review existing contractors’ terms and take necessary
precaution measures whenever applicable.

Customer needs and satisfaction have always been the priorities
of the Group. Our information technology and computer related
businesses provide comprehensive order processing, fulfilment
and back-office services to consumers. Our customer service
centre provides a wide range of information and assistance to
answer customers’ inquiries and to offer repair and maintenance
services to consumers.

Anti-Corruption

The Group adheres to stringent anti-corruption policies and
procurement practices as stated in the Group’'s Human
Resources Policies and Procedure Manual that includes
conflicts of interest, intellectual property rights, privacy and
confidentiality of information, bribery and corruption and
equal opportunities. As part of the Group's orientation, new
employees receive anti-corruption training. The Group's gift
policy under the “Acceptance of Advantage in Employment”
clearly states the required process and procedure for handling
and accepting gifts and advantages. No cases of corruption were
reported within the Group during the year under review.

Community

Community Investment

The Group has dedicated itself to take up its corporate social
responsibility for the communities where it is present. It
strives to repay society by participating in community services,
charitable sponsorships, in education, cultural and sports
activities and in the promotion of environmental protection.

To support the development of community services, the
Group sponsored a variety of charitable events during the year
under review, including "ACCA Community Day"” organised
by Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition,
the Group and Hong Kong Red Cross jointly organised the
“Chevalier Blood Donation Day” to help people in need. The
Group’s contribution to and care for the society has been widely
recognised and the Group has been conferred the award of
“Caring Company Logo"” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service since 2011.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

(B) SOCIAL (continued)

Community (continued)

Community Investment (continued)

Education and Culture

The Group strives to cultivate young talents and enrich
educational opportunities by sponsoring educational programs
of all kinds. The Group financed the scholarship scheme of CMA
Secondary School Education Trust and also sponsored academic
activities of City University of Hong Kong and of The University
of Hong Kong. In addition, the “Chevalier Culture & Education
Foundation”, aims to foster cultural, academic and educational
exchanges amongst Hong Kong and other countries. The Group
also sponsored the “Sada Masashi Charity Concert in Hong
Kong” organised by the Japan Universities Alumni Society Hong
Kong and “The Beautiful Global Village 2015", a charity musical
in support of New Sight Congo Eye Centre.

Sports and Environment

The Group has been a long-time patron of the Hong Kong Jockey
Club’s “Chevalier Cup Race Day"”. Moreover, the Group also
supported other sports activities such as “The Community
Chest Corporate Challenge” organised by the Community Chest
of Hong Kong.

The Group is committed to building a green community. We
give full support to various green advocates to promote public
awareness in environmental protection. The Group actively
participated in events, such as “Walk For Nature”, a nature
tour to Mai Po Nature Reserve to promote the importance
of preserving local ecology and raise staff's awareness of
environmental conservation. The Group also sponsored “The
Dragon Foundation Golf Tournament at Mission Hills Golf Club
2015".

Volunteering

In order to take the initiative in serving the community, the
Group has established a volunteer team — “Chevalier Cares”
since 2011. During the year under review, Chevalier Cares
arranged various visits with the non-profit organisations, such
as Hong Kong Young Women'’s Christian Association and Hong
Kong Family Welfare Society, Evangelical Lutheran Church of
Hong Kong and Wai Ji Christian Service. It has participated in
different voluntary programs and served the people in need
including the elderly, children, disabled and low income families.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Board presents to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are shown on pages 158 to 164.

The Group’'s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2016 analysed by operating segments are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the businesses of the Group during the year,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2016 (if any), a
description of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
discussion on the Group's prospects are provided in the Letter to
Shareholders on pages 8 to 9, Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 10 to 13, Financial Review on pages 14 to 19 and note 3
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions on
the Group's compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group, relationships with its key
stakeholders and environmental policy are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report and Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 29 to 38 and pages 39 to 45 respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 58. The Board
now recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.50 (2015:
a final dividend of HK$0.50 and a special dividend of HK$0.50) per
share in cash payable to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Thursday, 15 September
2016. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2015:
HK$0.20) per share paid on Wednesday, 23 December 2015, the
total dividends for the year amounted to HK$0.70 (2015: HK$1.20)
per share.

Subject to the approval by shareholders at the AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be payable in cash to shareholders on or about
Friday, 23 September 2016.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
30 August 2016 to Friday, 2 September 2016, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 29
August 2016.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend
(subject to the passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders
of the Company at the AGM), the Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 12 September 2016 to
Thursday, 15 September 2016, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 September 2016.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the year are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. The increase
in issued share capital of the Company during the year was due to
allotment of 1,937,605 new shares for scrip dividends on 30 October
2015.

RESERVES
Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 and note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$1,218,844,000 (2015:
HK$1,090,904,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2016 are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial summary and financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 to 5 and on pages 14 to 19 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers and the Group’s revenue for the year attributable
to the Group's five largest customers were less than 30%. None
of the Directors, their respective close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) or any shareholder (whom to the knowledge of
the Directors owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company) as at 31 March 2016 has any interest in the Group's five
largest customers.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2016 are
set out on pages 25 to 28.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed approximately 3,100 full-time staff under
its subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2016. Total staff costs
amounted to HK$1,079 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.
The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on
the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company performance
and individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses
awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes and retirement
schemes.

The remuneration package of the Directors and the senior
management is based on their contribution to the performance of
the Group and is supervised by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations of HK$2,218,000 to
charitable bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’'s Bye-Laws, every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/
her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Co-Chairman)
(re-designated from Chairman to Co-Chairman with
effect from 12 January 2016)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and Managing Director)
(appointed as Co-Chairman with effect from 12 January 2016)

Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

Non-Executive Directors

Dr KO Chan Gock, William

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
(re-designated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director
with effect from 1 October 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles
Professor POON Chung Kwong

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr Ho Chung Leung,
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr Sun Kai Dah, George and Professor
Poon Chung Kwong shall retire from office at the AGM and, being
eligible, may offer themselves for re-election. The Non-Executive
Directors are subject to the same retirement requirements as the
Executive Directors.

Mr Sun Kai Dah, George has informed the Board that he would
not offer himself for re-election and accordingly will retire as
an Independent Non-Executive Director and cease to be the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company
after the conclusion of the AGM. Save for Mr Sun, the other retiring
Directors, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this report are set out in the “Management Profile” section
on pages 20 to 24.
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DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transaction” below and “Related Party Transactions"” in note 42
to the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company's business to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a
party or were parties and in which a director of the Company or his
or her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any
business constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporation, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Company - Shares

Personal
interests

EPN

Name of Directors Capacity

EEEW 54

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 189,490,248*

JE TRAED EnEAA
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 113,460
84 BB A
TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 209,583
RBE R BEHEAA
HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000
Al SRR EnEAA

* Dr Chow Yei Ching beneficially owned 189,490,248 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 62.76% of the issued share capital of the Company.
These shares were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, no other person has interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes”) established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to
7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group. For members of the MPF Schemes, the
Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee,
at a maximum of HK$1,500 per month for the year ended 31 March
2016, to the mandatory contribution of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes
in countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group
is required to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a
certain percentage or sum of the monthly payroll.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement during the year amounted to
HK$36.0 million against which no forfeited contributions had been
deducted.

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this
report, the Group conducted the following transaction which
constituted a connected transaction for the Company under the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. Details of the transaction
had been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
11 December 2015 and are required under the Listing Rules to
be disclosed in this Annual Report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

Cafe Deco Holdings Limited (“Cafe Deco”), an indirect non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Food Group HK Limited (the
“Subscriber”) entered into the Subscription Agreement, pursuant
to which the Subscriber had agreed to subscribe for and Cafe Deco
had agreed to allot and issue 1,373 new shares of Cafe Deco at the
aggregate subscription price of HK$111 million (the “Subscription”).
On 11 December 2015, the Subscriber had separately entered into
the sale and purchase agreement (“IRHL SPA") with International
Restaurants Holdings Limited (“IRHL"), pursuant to which IRHL had
agreed to sell and the Subscriber agreed to purchase 40% of the
issued share capital of Cafe Deco at a consideration of approximately
HK$32.0 million. The introduction of the Subscriber as a new
controlling shareholder of Cafe Deco through the Subscription would
reduce the reliance of Cafe Deco on the financial support from the
Group and allow the Group to redirect its resources to other core
business segments of the Group. Following the completion of
the Subscription, the issued share capital of Cafe Deco held as to
25.28% by Sharp Rise Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and as to 74.72% by the Subscriber. The equity interest
of Cafe Deco held by the Group diluted from 60% to 25.28%. Cafe
Deco was no longer an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary and
became an associate of the Group.

Given IRHL held a 40% equity interest in Cafe Deco. IRHL was a
substantial shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and therefore a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level. Since IRHL had entered into the IRHL SPA with the
Subscriber on 11 December 2015, the Subscription constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Board has approved the Subscription and the independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that the terms of the
Subscription are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. Accordingly, the Subscription was exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules. Mr
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, being a Non-Executive Director of the
Company, had a 24.72% interest in the issued share capital of the
Subscriber. As such, he had abstained from voting on the Board
resolution for approving the Subscription.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Substantial shareholders
FERR

Capacity

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner

JE IR EnEEA
MIYAKAWA Michiko eneficial owner
BIESTF EmEA A

* Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow Yei Ching,
is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of 189,490,248 shares held by Dr
Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other
person has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 March 2016, with deviations from code provisions
A.4.1 and A.6.7 which have already been stated in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Annual Report. Detailed information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 38.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage
of the Company’s share which is in the hands of the public exceeds
25% of the Company's total number of issued shares as at 27 June
2016, the latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior
to the issue of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KUOK Hoi Sang
Co-Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHEVALIER
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 58 to 164, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYREERE

OPINION =R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view BMRE ZEEAVERRCBEFEVHER
of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March EHEBEEMPEHNE BERRINENEARR
2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then RIE—RFZA=1+—HBHOUBRKIAEEEE
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have EZALFEMNUBRELRESRE  WEER
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of BACRANEDIDE RN E Z RHHE -

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers EERKEBEE SR
Certified Public Accountants S
Hong Kong, 27 June 2016 BB ZE—RNEXNAZ+tH
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CONSQLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
relamk

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE—T—R"F=A=1+—HItFE

2016 PAONES)
—T—XRF —T—RF
IN[e} ] HK$'000 HK$’'000
B BETT PSR T
Revenue A 5 5,537,763 5,012,651
Cost of sales THERZA (4,325,855) (3,799,450)
Gross profit EAH 1,211,908 1,213,201
Other income, net HuA - F5E 6 63,410 155,103
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (B518),Mezs - JF5 7 (130,842) 957,049
Selling and distribution costs THE RAC AR (451,869) (518,263)
Administrative expenses TR (239,510) (221,954)
Operating profit il 453,097 1,585,136
Share of results of associates Pl NI E S 116,932 249,406
Share of results of joint ventures Frib G EEEE (25,407) (28,753)
544,622 1,805,789
Finance income BRI 8 23,646 19,315
Finance costs B & 8 (105,156) (114,626)
Finance costs, net HMBER ¥ 8 (81,510) (95,311)
Profit before taxation B2t A ) 9 463,112 1,710,478
Income tax expenses FriSfisz 10 (102,966) (120,155)
Profit for the year FERERN 360,146 1,590,323
Attributable to: BT
Equity holders of the Company RATIRIERE A 315,056 1,537,162
Non-controlling interests FEEAR e 2 45,090 53,161
360,146 1,590,323
Earnings per share BRER
— basic (HK$ per share) — AR (BRAE) 11 1.05 5.21
— diluted (HK$ per share) —8E (BRB%) 1 1.05 5.21
The notes on pages 66 to 164 are integral parts of these consolidated F66E X164 8 2 MIFE Tyt F4RE BSR4
financial statements. AP ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEmElER

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z—RFZA=+—HILFE

2016 PAONES)
—ZT—XRF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BRI
Profit for the year FERA 360,146 1,590,323
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FEHM2EXH
Item that may not be reclassified to profit or loss ARETEENREEEENER
Fair value surplus of properties for own use BREWEZ AR ERER 55,564 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HEnRENBEZBARNIER
to profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation of operations of WEGINTB AR - B AT
overseas subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures BRBEZERMEE L
SN S A RR (147,073) (93,044)
Share of other comprehensive expense of an associate Frih— B E AR EMEE
S (3,865) =
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments AEEE ZREN AR EEE) (48,538) (28,365)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AR E 2 AR RIERIE
transferred to consolidated income statement R SRANEGER 17,160 44,685
Fair value adjustments on the derivative financial IRERBEERELFOITER
instruments designated as cash flow hedge in B TLABBARZHEL
respect of interest rate swap contracts SO Rk (6,857) (1,437)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year, net of tax FEHEMEZESE  BEE (133,609) (78,161)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHNZHAE 226,537 1,512,162
Attributable to: Bk
Equity holders of the Company RAEIREIERB A 191,272 1,460,428
Non-controlling interests IRk 35,265 51,734
226,537 1,512,162
Note: Bt eE
Items shown within other comprehensive expenses are disclosed net of tax. PEAMZE S HPTR 2R B TR MR RIRR s -
The notes on pages 66 to 164 are integral parts of these consolidated 66821648 2 MFE it 4R 6 B mER 2 HK

Kt
=
N
D

°

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRIR IR

As at 31 March 2016
RZZE—R"F=A=1—H

2016 2015
—E—XKE —T—AF
IN[e} ] HK$'000 HK$’'000
B BET T BT T
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties "B 13 3,663,625 3,680,497
Property, plant and equipment LE Y S 14 1,899,365 1,970,089
Goodwill EES 15 629,014 690,184
Other intangible assets i\ EE 16 3,135 17,235
Interests in associates FrihEs & AR 2 17 921,070 998,480
Interests in joint ventures FriE & & 18 520,705 1,610,132
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE 19 129,428 201,092
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMB T A 27 - 18,073
Properties under development BRERAPYE 20 1,128,747 789,476
Deferred tax assets FEEFIAE 34 18,547 16,255
Other non-current assets HME s EE 21 121,123 154,169
9,034,759 10,045,682
Current assets RENEE
Amounts due from associates JE Ui B & BIBR IR 17 18,074 11,298
Amount due from a joint venture W —MEERERN 18 59 50
Amounts due from non-controlling interests  EU IEIZRR 2R BR X 25,039 33,800
Investments at fair value through profit or loss & A EFIABRERIE 7 IRE 22 505,848 364,334
Inventories FE 23 136,317 154,803
Properties for sale HEME 24 1,233,028 44,367
Properties under development BRERPYE 20 342,077 623,349
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWER - FitiRe RIERIE 25 1,087,487 1,235,726
Amounts due from customers for HELHITIRERZ P UER
contract work 208 26 119,283 133,437
Derivative financial instruments PTHEB T A 27 1,606 13,220
Prepaid tax TEfFRIR 6,834 6,492
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERIRE 28 2,009,282 2,662,622
5,484,934 5,283,498
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to associates FERTESE & A RIBRK 17 240 29,685
Amount due to a joint venture R —MHaERERER 18 53,230 -
Amount due to a non-controlling interest FEAS BE —SEIE IR R AR X - 3,538
Amounts due to customers for contract work  Ft& 4 TIR2FEM R X 12 08 26 934,670 951,485
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 27 9,557 13,247
Creditors, bills payable, deposits ERBRF - BNEER - FARS
and accruals KIERE A 29 1,297,737 1,456,697
Unearned insurance premiums and RIER R B KRB EA R B (4
unexpired risk reserves 80,976 113,730
Outstanding insurance claims RRRBRE 30 352,519 376,048
Deferred income EIEUA 17,227 25,499
Current income tax liabilities BHFEHAE 62,964 60,808
Bank borrowings RITIER 31 960,852 589,848
3,769,972 3,620,585
Net current assets REVEEFE 1,714,962 1,662,913
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 10,749,721 11,708,695

60 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
n‘l_\éﬂyjﬁ%;ﬂt\;ﬂr%

As at 31 March 2016

R-B—AF=A=+—~

2016 PAONES)
—ZT—XRF —T—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
FfaE BET T BT T
Capital and reserves RAR #E
Share capital &N 32 377,411 374,989
Reserves G 33 7,372,273 7,514,262
Shareholders' funds BRES 7,749,684 7,889,251
Non-controlling interests JEPERR A = 488,571 509,498
Total equity R 8,238,255 8,398,749
Non-current liabilities FkRBARG
Unearned insurance premiums LR B 80,560 108,355
Bank borrowings SRITIER 31 2,151,684 2,938,280
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 34 279,222 263,211
2,511,466 3,309,846
Total equity and non-current liabilities BERRIFRBEE 10,749,721 11,708,595
Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2016 and signed on its behalf KEEEN_T—"FAAZ+BHE YA
by: THEENERESE -
KUOK Hoi Sang HO Chung Leung
BEE AR
Director Director
3 EE
The notes on pages 66 to 164 are integral parts of these consolidated %665 21648 2 WL FERE M MK 2 EmK
financial statements. #ho o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_ZT—ARF=ZA=1T—HIFE

At 1 April 2015

Profit for the year

Fair value surplus of properties for
own use

Exchange difference on translation of
operations of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

Share of other comprehensive expense
of an associate

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments transferred to consolidated
income statement

Fair value adjustments on the derivative
financial instruments designated as
cash flow hedge in respect of interest
rate swap contracts

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividends paid

Issue of shares under scrip dividend
schemes

Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Capital contributions by non-controlling
interests

At 31 March 2016

R-Z—HEFMA—H

FREM

BRMEZ ARERR

BEEIINB AR - BELQTF
REBMRZEBMELE L
SNE S =R

PG — B E AR E 2 E
B
AHEEEZRENAAEED

R E 2 A R EE 1R
BREEGakaER

BERRSREBLTOITE
BT ABN X
BN AR EHE

FEZHEWEETE

[SADEES,
RIBABAC B 5t 81T

RS H & PG Cafe Deco 2 st

B T IR R R
IR R E AR

R=ZB-—XRF=ZA=+—8H

Equity
attributable
to equity Non-

holders of the controlling Total

Company interests equity
PN )

BEABGER FEIE IR R HREs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T
7,889,251 509,498 8,398,749
315,056 45,090 360,146

55,564 - 55,564
(137,248) (9,825) (147,073)
(3,865) - (3,865)
(48,538) - (48,538)
17,160 - 17,160
(6,857) = (6.857)
191,272 35,265 226,537
(360,377) - (360,377)
26,295 - 26,295
3,243 (42,270) (39,027)

- (14,355) (14,355)

- 433 433
7,749,684 488,571 8,238,255
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEESBXR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

Equity
attributable
to equity Non-
holders of the controlling Total
Company interests equity
AN AR AE
ESZ=PN P AR b A
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
At 1 April 2014 R-E—NEMA—H 6,614,231 462,568 7,076,799
Profit for the year € R A 1,637,162 53,161 1,690,323
Exchange difference on translation HEBINMHEB AR - B QR
of operations of overseas subsidiaries, REEEIEBEEXZ
associates and joint ventures SN 5 IR A= RE (91,617 (1,427) (93,044)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale ~ AJfHEZIREH Q1 EE
investments (28,365) - (28,365)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A E 2 IRE R RERIE
investments transferred to EESRARER
consolidated income statement 44,685 - 44,685
Fair value adjustments on the derivative 5 AR & mE ¥ MHITA
financial instruments designated as i T BB AR s 8
cash flow hedge in respect of interest BN AR ETFE
rate swap contracts (1,437) - (1,437)
Total comprehensive income for the year &€ 2 EUN 4850 1,460,428 51,734 1,612,162
Dividends paid EfRRE (249,777) - (249,777)
Issue of shares under scrip dividend BB S FT 81317 IR (D
schemes 91,826 - 91,826
Step-up acquisition of a subsidiary E—FRE—FNE QA - (212) (212)
Disposal of subsidiaries SR E A A (27,496) - (27,496)
Deemed disposal of interests in RABHEMENB AR 2 #i
subsidiaries 39 251 290
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests E.45 T 3EIE AR HE2E A% 2. - (8,968) (8,968)
Capital contributions by non-controlling FEIERRAE R B AR A
interests - 4,125 4,125
At 31 March 2015 R-E—-HF=HA=+—H 7,889,251 509,498 8,398,749
The notes on pages 66 to 164 are integral parts of these consolidated F66 B £ 1648 W I FERE IR 2 8K
financial statements. #ho o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE—T—R"F=A=1+—HItFE

2016 PAONES)
—T—XRF —T—RF
IN[e} ] HK$'000 HK$’'000
BfaE BETT PSR T
Operating activities REEK
Cash generated from operations KELEZRS 43(a) 335,046 833,842
Interest paid EAFE (114,252) (121,093)
Profits tax paid BB RIS (83,336) (85,753)
Profits tax refund BEFIS TR K 3,406 3,108
Net cash from operating activities RELEEBKHSFE 140,864 630,104
Investing activities REER
Interest received BEUF B 23,646 57,181
Dividends received from associates A SNCT ) o) 102,454 92,684
Dividends received from joint ventures BEErEIRE - 1,050
Dividends received from investments EIRE 2R B 22,687 32,731
Purchase of investment properties BEREME - (15,019)
Proceeds from disposal of an HE—HIREMEZ TBHIE
investment property 6,052 4,642
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME - BEREZE (66,085) (86,509)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEDE - BEKERE
plant and equipment WA= o] 2,364 3,715
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (137) (38)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisition of ~ WEELATREZEEHEA
(i) &8
- Dolce Field —#E 43(b)(ii) 2,304 -
- 51% equity interest in WPGCs — R WPGCs Z 51% &1 - (12,979)
— other subsidiaries —HiHBRR - (212)
Net cash inflow from disposals of HENTSIEZREMAFRE
— Peak Gain Limited —REIBRAF 43(b)(iv) - 1,399,112
— other subsidiaries —EH A E AR - 21,951
Deemed disposals of interests in subsidiaries R &HEMEMB AT 2 - 290
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco R AL EFTE Cafe Deco 2 43(b) (i) (24,563) -
Capital contributions by non-controlling RS EARIEA
interests 433 4,125
Investment in an associate R—HEBEARZIRE (9,450) -
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEErEZRE - (1,050)
Advances to associates M E N RIFTEZ B (38,564) (219,846)
Repayments from associates REBE AT ZEERIE - 286,766
Proceed from disposal of an associate & — R & A R Z FTE KA 300 -
Advances to joint ventures AGEREMEZER (13,529) (82,053)
Repayments from joint ventures REEEPFEEERE - 25,300
Purchase of available-for-sale investments BEAHEEZRE (769) (495)
Proceeds from disposals of HEAMRBEEZREY
available-for-sale investments FTiSF0A 23,907 29,129
Increase in unpledged bank deposits =B A& BB KPR T
maturing after three months TFEFIE N (196,612) (105,179)
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (FR), MRERELK2REFE (165,562) 1,435,296
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—"F-A=1+—HLFE

2016 PAONES)
—nE —T—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
FfaE BET T SR I
Financing activities REER
Dividends paid B E (334,082) (157,951)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR E R (14,355) (8,968)
Drawn down of bank borrowings IREVRITIE R 868,672 1,817,790
Repayments of bank borrowings BIBIRITIEK (1,333,745) (2,352,057)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits 2RI TIFRL (4E0) R (189,845) 56,108
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEXE 2 HESFHE (1,003,355) (645,078)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
cash equivalents D), R (1,028,053) 1,420,322
Cash and cash equivalents at EF?JJ ZEERBESEEY
beginning of the year 2,413,878 1,001,162
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates JMEEREE) 2 8,4 (11,744) (7,606)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FERZBEERESEZEY
of the year 1,374,081 2,413,878
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBEEB/YIN
Bank balances and cash RITEF LIRS 28 2,009,282 2,662,622
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEERIRITER (333,410) (143,565)
Less: Unpledged bank deposits maturing B =1{E A& EIHE 2 KR
after three months HRITIFR (301,791) (105,179)
1,374,081 2,413,878
The notes on pages 66 to 164 are integral parts of these consolidated F66EE 1648 2Lt A M ISTRE 2 MK
financial statements. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE

1

66

“E-REZA=T-BILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company has its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 27 June 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, staff quarters, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by HK$392,180,000. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) believe that the Company will continue as a going
concern taking into account committed available banking facilities
and cash flows from operations and consequently prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Amendment and improvements to existing standards that
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1
April 2015

The following amendment and improvements to existing
standards, that are relevant to the Group's operation, are
mandatory for the financial year of the Group beginning on
1 April 2015:

e HKAS 19 (2011) (amendment), “Defined benefit plans —
Employee contributions”

e Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
2010-2012 Cycle

e Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the amendment and improvements to
existing standards does not have significant impact on the
Group's consolidated results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group's accounting policies and the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come
into operation during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.

New standards and amendments and improvements
to existing standards that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following new standards and amendments and
improvements to existing standards, that are relevant to the
Group's operation, have been issued but not yet effective for
the financial year of the Group beginning on 1 April 2015 and
have not been early adopted:

. HKAS 1 (amendment), “Disclosure initiative”!

e HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (amendment), “Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”!

e HKAS 27 (2011) (amendment), “Equity method in
separate financial statements™’

e HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”?

e HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (amendment), “Sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture”#

R B BmaRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—"F-A=1+—HLEFE

2 ERSHEEHE ()

(a) mEEE(H)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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KB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE VB RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-_T—R"F=A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) New standards and amendments and improvements
to existing standards that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

e HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (amendment),
“Investment entities — Applying the consolidation
exception™’

e HKFRS 11 (amendment), “Accounting for acquisition of
interests in joint operation”’

e HKFRS 14, "Regulatory deferral accounts”’
e HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”?
e HKFRS 16, “Leases™?®

e Annual Improvements Project — Improvements to HKFRS
2012-2014 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to state
whether there will be any substantial changes to the Group's
significant accounting policies and presentation of financial
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B BmaRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2 ERSHEEHE ()

(b) Basis of consolidation (b) #HREREER

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entities and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entities. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the date
of acquisition. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE—

E-REZRA=T-HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

70

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwvill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the Company's statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at costs less impairment losses. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable during the year.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwvill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(¢) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate
or a joint venture, representing the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree at the date of acquisition. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at the fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportional share of the recognised amount of acquiree’'s net
identifiable assets.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a joint venture
is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant associate
or joint venture.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might
be impaired. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and joint
ventures is included in investments in respective associates and
joint ventures and is tested for impairment as part of the overall
balance. For the purposes of impairment testing, separately
recognised goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a joint
venture, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a joint venture represents the excess of the share
of net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business combination and
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition.

R BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F-A=1+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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72

(d)

(e)

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of profit or loss and of changes in other comprehensive income
of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of loss of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of loss is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profit and loss are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that
unrealised loss provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of loss is recognised.
Accounting policies of the associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company's statement of financial position, interests in
associates are stated at costs less impairment losses. The results
of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable during the year.

Joint arrangements
A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control and over which none of the participating parties
has unilateral control.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified
either as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has.

Joint operations

Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets
and obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement. Investments
in joint operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly held),
its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly), its
revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation) and its expenses (including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts for the
assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses, relating to
its interest in the joint operation in accordance with the applicable
standards.

Joint ventures
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Joint arrangements (continued)

(f)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’'s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between
the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses of
a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the joint venture), the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of that joint venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
relevant joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received or receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i
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Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set
out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including amounts
due from subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and non-
controlling interests, debtors and receivables and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

As at 31 March 2016, loans and receivables represented
amounts due from associates, joint ventures and non-
controlling interests, debtors and receivables, bank balances
and amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(i

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories set out above. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment loss on available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are re-
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including amount due to an associate
and a joint venture, creditors and payables, outstanding
insurance claims, bank borrowings and amounts due to
subsidiaries of the Company are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk. Such
derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair values
of such derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss,
except for those derivatives qualified for hedge accounting
are recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed
as held-for-trading when the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to
those of the host contracts, and the combined contracts are
not measured at fair value through profit or loss. In all other
circumstances, derivatives embedded are not separated
and are accounted for together with the host contracts in
accordance with appropriate standards. Where the Group
needs to separate an embedded derivative but is unable
to measure the embedded derivative separately, the entire
combined contracts are treated as designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.

Gains and losses from the changes in the fair values of the
derivatives (excluding the interest component and those
derivatives qualified for hedge accounting) are recognised in
other income, net. The interest component is reported as part
of interest income from investments included in revenue.

2 ERSHEEHE(#)

(f)

BT A (&)

(ii)

(iii)

BBEERKRATA (H)
HMHHR A

Hipfi e EaiEmM —HEER
AR —HAERERR - BERR
RERNFRIR - RARRBRE - RIT
AR RN AR RIE R RRR
BEIR IR B IR A R R D B IR
FHHE o

KA TA
ARRETZ AT ARSI 2
BB ERBEITRARALR -

FTETIR
AREBATAERE T AERMAT
ZEERRRMNEERE - ZFITE
TABRAREFE - ZFTET
Az RrERBTHEENERNE
R EEEBEIPEERZ20TE
TARAEENEERERER

iz IR AT E T R Z BRI K
R B IENTA M E T A LI BT
BE - AEXZTAORZRANITE
TAREMBEETENDFEE RS
REBEEERSE  MZefanl
FRAREINANEREE - B
HpER T HARTETAT S
DHERE - WARBERERER T
BRIk - EAKEFENH
BB Z I ARITE T AEREEDH
K28R BHAHAORD%R
HRREHIEE R AR EIAEE
BRI o

METARAEEHZRERER
(TBEMNBED RFAHhgatLE
AZPTHETR) REAIKA - SFEER
HER o MBE D IIMERFFARAZ
RAREZFEWAZ 2D T A

24 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B BmaRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EASHBEHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(g) Investment properties (9) REWSE

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases is classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by
professional valuation conducted as at the end of the reporting
period. Changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes. If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation
of property, plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transfer from an investment property carried at fair value to
properties for sale is at its fair value at the date of change in use.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BASHERSE(#)
(CONTINUED)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (h) Y% BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses except for staff quarters.

Staff quarters are measured at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses recognised at the date of
revaluation. Revaluation are performed with sufficient frequency to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the
fair value of a revalued asset at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss,
the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an
existing surplus on the same asset recognised in equity.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to the
retained profits is made for the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and
depreciation on the original cost. Additionally, accumulated
depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any asset
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is
transferred to retained profits.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Depreciation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and other assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or fair values to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives at the following rates per annum:

Annual charge
Building Over the shorter of 20 to 50 years

or the remaining lease term

Leasehold land classified as Over the remaining lease term

finance lease
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Machinery 10%

Furniture, fixtures, office equipment 10%-33"/:%
and motor vehicles

Others 10%-20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

(i

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than its
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceed and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development which are intended for sale upon
completion comprise prepaid lease payments, development
expenditure and borrowing costs capitalised.

The carrying amount is written down immediately to its net
realisable value if it is greater than its net realisable value. The
net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less costs to complete development and selling
expenses.

Impairment of investments in associates and joint ventures

Management regularly reviews whether there are any indications
of impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures primarily based on value-in-use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these future cash flows and discount rate. Management estimates
the future cash flows based on certain assumptions, such as
revenue growth.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds in the ordinary course of business less
applicable selling expenses.

Properties for sale

Properties for sale, which comprise prepaid lease payments and
buildings held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The costs of properties for sale comprise cost of
acquisition of properties and related development costs.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by the proportion that the value of
work carried out during the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
When it is probable that estimated total contract costs will exceed
estimated total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown
as an amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
shown as an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position, as a liability, as
creditors. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customers are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks with original maturities of three months or less and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current
liability in the consolidated and Company’s statements of financial
position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade creditors
Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EASHBEHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(q) Provisions and contingencies

(q) BERIRER

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect
of mortgage facilities provided by banks and housing retirement
fund management centers to certain properties’ buyers, and
credit facilities provided by financial institutions to its subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and a joint venture partner as contingent
liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Unearned insurance premiums and unexpired risk reserves
Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portions
of the premiums written which relate to periods of insurance
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and are deferred to
subsequent accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed
on the basis of net premiums written for all classes of insurance.
Net premium written represents gross premiums received or
receivable after deducting reinsurance premiums.

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from the expected
value of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods
of policies in force which, at the end of the reporting period,
exceeds the unearned premiums provision in relation to such
policies.

Insurance claims

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported
(“IBNR") as at the end of the reporting period which is calculated
with reference to foreseeable events, past experiences and trends.

Insurance claims are recognised when they are incurred and
reported. Incurred claims include the losses, related costs and
expenses paid during the year and the change in the reserve for
outstanding claims during the year. Reserves for outstanding claims
are reported on an undiscounted basis which include reserves for
reported claims and reserves for IBNR claims.

Every notified claim is assessed on a case-by-case basis. The
reserve of a reported claim is made by the claims handler based
on his experience and based on the information, documents and
the claim amount submitted by the claimant and is checked by the
officer before updating the information into the claims system.
The reserve is reviewed and revised regularly to reflect the
development of the claim and the change of the market practice.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group performs a liability
adequacy test to ensure the adequacy of the insurance claim
liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of
all future contractual cash flows are made. Any deficiency is
immediately charged to profit or loss.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EASHBEHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(u) Revenue recognition (u) WAFERR

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured with reference to the value of work carried
out during the period. When the outcome of a contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sales of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever
is later.

Income from sales of goods such as information technology
equipment, motor vehicles and food and beverage are recognised
when goods are delivered and title to the goods has passed to
the customers. Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales
return, discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services such as provision of maintenance
and property management, warehouse and logistics services and
hotel and senior housing operations are recognised at the time when
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services
are accounted for as deferred income.

Premiums for direct insurance business are recognised as income
when an insurance policy is accepted and the relevant debit note is
issued.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
with reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to its net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group's
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the respective leases.
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(CONTINUED)

(v) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as an obligation under finance lease. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged
directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs as stated in note 2(x) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
Benefits received and receivables as incentives to enter into
operating leases are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses
over the lease terms on a straight line basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Employee benefits

(x)

(y)

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Bonus plans
Provision for bonus plans is recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

(iii) Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged
as an expense as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes profit or loss
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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(y) Taxation (continued)

(z)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are
determined based on the presumption that the carrying amount of
such investment properties will be recovered through sale with the
corresponding tax rate applied.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the exchanges rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
has determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, which are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that gain or
loss are also recognised directly in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EASHBEHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(z) Foreign currencies (continued) (2) 5h8s(4E)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’'s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income as a separate component of equity, the
exchange fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences so arising are recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

(aa) Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGU). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

(ab) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current
assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position except prepaid tax, unallocated bank balances and cash,
deferred tax assets and other unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-
current liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement
of financial position except current income tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.

MEIEEPBHERME - NEEFIH
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E-REZRA=T-HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial instruments, debtors and receivables, creditors and payables,
outstanding insurance claims, amounts due from/to related companies
and non-controlling interests, bank balances and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes
to the consolidated financial statements. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk
(i) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises from derivative
financial instruments, bills payable, floating rates bank
borrowings and floating rates bank deposits. Majority of
the Group’s bank borrowings carry interests at floating
rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The management monitors interest rate exposure
and hedges significant interest rate exposure by using
financial instruments such as interest rate swap contracts.
Certain instruments are qualified for hedge accounting.

As at 31 March 2016, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by one percentage point and all other
variables were held constant, the post-tax profit of
the Group, excluding impact of fair value changes of
derivative financial instruments would decrease/increase
by HK$10,282,000 (2015: HK$11,352,000), resulting
mainly from the change in the interest expenses of bank
borrowings and interest income of bank deposits.

(i)~ Foreign currency risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from various currency
exposures. Foreign currency risk arises when the Group's
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies that are not the entities’ functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

3 MEEBEEBFEREEK(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HEEBREZ(E)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WiEE (E)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i)  SMEESR ()

The Group's financial assets that are exposed to foreign
currency risk mainly comprise of investments in debt and
equity securities, accounts receivable balances arising
from sales to overseas customers, bank balances and
cash and amounts due from related companies and non-
controlling interests and group companies (on entity level).
The Group's financial liabilities that are exposed to foreign
currency risk mainly comprised of accounts payable
balances arising from purchases from overseas suppliers
and amounts due to group companies (on entity level). It
is the Group’s policies to ensure that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances. The management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and hedges significant foreign
currency exposure by using financial instruments such as
foreign currency forward contracts. Certain instruments
are qualified for hedge accounting.

Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other than
the functional currencies of the Group's entities) that are
exposed to foreign exchange risk are mainly denominated
in Australian dollar, Canadian dollar, Euro, Hong Kong
dollar, Japanese Yen, Macau Pataca, Renminbi, Singapore
dollar, United States dollar (“US dollar”) and Vietnam
Dong. The carrying amounts of the Group’s (on entity
level) foreign currency denominated financial assets and
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
Assets
EE

2016

—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Australian dollar SEIT 18,101 145,413
Canadian dollar mexT 143,114 186,468
Euro Bz 2,435 24,320
Hong Kong dollar B 406,071 184,524
Japanese Yen = 18,538 16,320
Macau Pataca SRPTHE - 3,012
Renminbi AR 256,656 406,017
Singapore dollar b 117,684 102,292
US dollar ET 1,497,211 1,197,183
Vietnam Dong WA 41,124 27,119
Others HAh 17,303 33,944
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(EBM) ASNE BB 2 B
BEERVHABENREHR
ZEREEMT

Liabilities
af&
2016

—NE

HK$'000

AT T
(248) -

(10,798) (47, 111)
(23,006) (70,601)
(4,587) (697)
(423,500) (449,166)
(1,219) (42)

(3,448) (21 ,766)

(326) -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to every
percentage point increase and decrease in the functional
currency of corresponding group entity against the above
foreign currency. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for every percentage point increase in
foreign currency rates. Positive numbers below indicate
an increase in profit/investment revaluation reserve where
the above foreign currency strengthens every percentage
point against the functional currency of corresponding
group entity.

3

UHEREERBERBER (&)

3.1 BEEBEZ(E)

(a)

miSEE (F)
(i) SMEmER (F

TREAJIAEE 2 HEEE D
EUBEEB I EINE 2 BIE
MBS — BB D # 2 BR
B - URRESMABER IS
HIRADLASNE B FE AL 2 1 R4S
HERMEE - YERFREK
ERFGEN—EANHIHRE
FLAGHEE o AT EBGERIA L
SN S IR SR B 2 7 T BE
EREHE—ERADHZBER
TEEAN,REEHEEEMR
e

2016 PAONES)

—E—RE —ZT—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Increase in profit S AN 19,098 15,200
Increase in investment revaluation reserve %4 & {4 f#1E0 1,294 2,011

(iii)  Price risk
The Group is exposed to the price risk on listed debt and
equity securities held by the Group which are classified on
the consolidated statement of financial position either as
available-for-sale investments or investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective debt and equity instruments
of the Group had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables held constant:

(i) 1E15/E Sz

R | T B BT (B 5 MRS
FERER  IHRAKE
B 2 REREZEFBIRR
RPRBERTHEEZRE
IR AR EINABRETE 218
BFTEL o

HASEERRRATAZR
PR B M, 5 —(@
BOH - MAAHMA#EER
BT Al

- the post-tax profit and investment revaluation reserve - XAEBEHEHZE-ZT—X~F
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 would —A=+—HLFEZ
increase/decrease by HK$3,265,000 and HK$400,000 Bigm A kR EE M
(2015: HK$1,727,000 and HK$256,000) as a result 5 RIS G, E A B
of the changes in fair values of investments at fair #3,265,0007T K & &
value through profit or loss and available-for-sale 400,000T(ZZE—h % :
investments respectively; 75 151,727,000 7T N B

256,0007T) * LETYEMNIZ
DABEIINBREE 2K
BERAHLEZREZA

RIEEBATE
(b) Credit risk (b) EEREM

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale FTEUBEEREIHLE 2K
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, E RBRARBEIABRERZE
derivative financial instruments, debtors and receivables, B TEMBIE - EBRERERRE
amounts due from related companies and non-controlling U ZhTE - FEUR B A B I FEYE AR
interests and bank balances. The Group’s maximum exposure =HERRBRITET - WRHEFE
to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to FRITHRSEZER  ASERBE
perform their obligations at the end of the reporting period RS EC R B EEMET
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the ZEANEERKAZRAVBHKRE
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated WATSIRZEEE 2 BREE -

statement of financial position.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 MKEREBEEAZERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 H¥RREZE(H)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) &R (&)

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also
have an impact on management’s cash flow forecasts and
assessment of the impairment of receivables. To the extent
that information is available, management has properly
reflected revised estimates of expected future cash flows in
their impairment assessments.

The Group has established different credit policies for
customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit
period granted to trade debtors is 60 days, except for insurance
business where credit period granted to certain debtors is over
60 days. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from related companies and non-controlling
interests are continuously monitored by assessing the credit
quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. Where necessary,
impairment loss is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Available-for-sale investments, investments at fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments,
interest receivables and bank balances are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparties with high quality.
The Group controls its credit risk to non-performance by its
counterparties through monitoring their credit rating and
setting approved counterparty credit limits that are regularly
reviewed. The Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individual
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure
that the limits are strictly followed.

The Group has assessed the credit risk arising from guarantees
given to financial institutions and housing retirement fund
management centers for mortgage facilities granted to certain
properties’ buyers, credit facilities provided to subsidiaries,
associates, joint ventures and a joint venture partner taking into
consideration the realisable value of the underlying projects/
assets. The Group does not expect any significant credit risk
arising from these guarantees.

The Group does not have any significant exposure to any
individual debtors or counterparties.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

92

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)
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Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed
short term and medium term credit lines available.

The Directors believe that the Group has obtained sufficient
committed and uncommitted general credit facilities from
banks for working capital purposes.

The Group's liquidity position and compliance with loan
covenants are monitored closely by the management of
the Company. The following table details the Group's
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

3 MEEBEEBEREEE)

3.1 BEEBEZ(E)

(c)

ALRBAR
AREE N MHER2E S HDA
REEREBRERHA S FE
" - ATRER R A EE S REK
MR BEERE AR ES
WEHE -

ERAAE  AEBERTIEY D
FERFAE—REERE - 20
FEAT BB E S PR -

ERRERERNEREER N
BE MR LB T ERZ BN -
TRAVNAEERHERRTH A
BEZEHEEBER - RIRTIREAR
SEARERNZHEAR 2
BRBEZABRRSRNERE - &
RERENEREAEZRBRE

Total
Less than More than undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
ABRES
DPR—F —En=liE —EREF BBRF TELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BT
2016 ZE-RF
Amount due to an associate [ —FEEE A R 240 - - - 240
Creditors and payables JETBR S R FE1 5UIE 638,440 - - - 638,440
Outstanding insurance claims R FHBRIE 352,519 - = - 352,519
Derivative financial PTEMBTA
instruments (net settled) (F#E) 6,830 5,422 2,151 = 14,403
Derivative financial THBBTA
instruments (gross settled) (fazarts)
- outflow — it 119,043 18,940 - - 137,983
~inflow —mA (118,859) (19,114) - - (137,973)
Bank borrowings RITIER 1,060,711 397,110 1,129,157 1,245,525 3,832,503
Financial guarantees in SARBERZHMBER
contingent liabilities 14,081 527,468 2,496 3,232 547,277
2015 —E-FRF
Amounts due to associates  EREEE A RIER 29,685 - - - 29,685
Amount due to a FET & —3FiE iR
non-controlling interest B 3,638 - - - 3,538
Creditors and payables JEAT RS R S 5U0E 449,181 - - - 449,181
Outstanding insurance claims A RRBZRE 376,048 - - - 376,048
Derivative financial PTHEMBTIA
instruments (net settled) (F#E) 4,931 8,102 8,999 - 22,032
Derivative financial PTEMBIA
instruments (gross settled) — (4A%EAE)
- outflow — it 74,137 - 3,058 - 77,195
- inflow —RA (66,170) - (2,422) - (68,592)
Bank borrowings RITRER 686,543 907,592 1,386,344 1,321,371 4,301,850
Financial guarantees in SARBERZHBER
contingent liabilities 166,120 154,939 316,025 - 637,084
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 MKEREBEEAZERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXEBRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its group
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The Group monitors the capital on the basis of net debt to equity
ratio, which is expressed as a percentage of net debt (comprises
bank borrowings less bank balances and cash) over total equity.

The net debt to equity ratio of the Group is as follows:

AEEERER 2 B RREAR S
B zaeh ANEBREZEBRR
=AYl S ey S PN &

AEEFRR TR REREELRLE
B UAAEEKHEE N EE QAR
HakAREzE WK
EEBRZECHEREBELRE -

ANEEEFEREES R 2 BERR
AR ZEERFER (BRERITEIR
RITHEFIARES) BRER 2B -

AEE 2 FEREERL RN

Bank borrowings RITEK

Bank balances and cash WITHEFLRES
Net debt SRETS

Total equity warEs

Net debt to equity ratio SFER RS &

Net debt to equity ratio increased from 10.3% as at 31 March
2015 to 13.4% as at 31 March 2016 mainly due to the accelerated
settlement of debts by strong bank balances and cash.

Pursuant to Chapter 41 of The Hong Kong Insurance Companies
Ordinance, all authorised insurance companies are required to
maintain an excess of assets over liabilities of not less than a
required solvency margin. For the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015, the Group's relevant subsidiaries complied with the solvency
margin requirements as set out by the relevant authorities in Hong
Kong.

2016
S —z—a%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT
3,112,536 3,628,128
(2,009,282) (2,662,622)
1,103,254 865,506
8,238,255 8,398,749
13.4% 10.3%

FEFEESLER T —HAF=A
Z+t—HZ103% L AZE-_ZT—XRE=
A=+—H2134% T ERFHRIEIT
HEHE MBS MMREREK -

REEERBARGIENE  RAK
RERRARBARKEEBHEEL
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 UREREERSEREEK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 ARfEME

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried TRIZEANRGTEAREZEETERB

at fair values by level of inputs to valuation techniques to measure BASBHNER ST AKERARE

fair values. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair PR TE - BEAMAZIRI AR
value hierarchy as follows: RANEERBERNZ T =EER

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical o LEHMEREESABEBEERMEZ
assets or liabilities (level 1). WECRAR)(E—A) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are s EFHEBERBEBEZHWAZBETEIE
observable for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as RE—RAZIRE - AT EE (ANE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). ) S (B8 B85 H) 8

(B -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable o HFHHEEENBEZH AZIELIEMK

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). BBz SEE (TR 25
ANBHR) (B=H) »

The following table presents the Group's financial assets and TEREINR_E-—R"F=-A=+—HiZ

financial liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31 March AABEFEZASBNBEERTBKE

2016: &

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—R BER E=H Fokc)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BT T BT BT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value  ZAAREYIAEZE
through profit or loss BB VAR
— debt securities —(EEH 296,016 55,265 - 351,281
- equity securities —BRAEE 72,492 - - 72,492
- exchange-traded funds —-REGMEEES 2,717 - - 2,717
— mutual and hedge funds —HEREHRES - - 79,358 79,358
Derivative financial PTHEMBIA
instruments - 1,606 - 1,606
Available-for-sale financial AR E s REE
assets
- equity securities N 40,015 = 7,760 47,775
— private funds —fLEES - = 81,653 81,653
411,240 56,871 168,771 636,882
Liability =0
Derivative financial PTHEBBIA
instruments - (9,557) - (9,557)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3 MEEBEEBFEREEK(E)

3.3 AnfEfhE (8
TRV _ZT-—RAF=A=+—HK

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair values as at 31 March AREFEZAEBRUKREERT KR
2015: f&
Level 1 Level 2
F— ER B=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT T
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value AR EIAEZE
through profit or loss BEMBEE
- debt securities —EBES 129,890 72,335 - 202,225
- equity securities N 76,941 - - 76,941
— equity linked notes — IR - - 7,816 7,816
- exchange-traded funds —-RGMEBEES 592 - - 592
— mutual and hedge funds —BEREFES 1,378 - 75,382 76,760
Derivative financial PTEMBITA
instruments - 13,220 18,073 31,293
Available-for-sale financial AR E S EE
assets
— equity securities —BRAES 25,627 - 7,750 33,377
— private funds —NEES - - 167,715 167,715
234,428 85,555 276,736 596,719
Liability =V
Derivative financial PTHE BT A
instruments — (13,247) - (13,247)

The Group uses quoted market prices for financial assets included
in level 1. The quoted price which is used, is the price within the
bid-ask spread that is most representative of the fair value.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

AE—RAZHBEER= - AEBEIR
RS HmE - AANRESEEZET
RERKRRAEZERE -

WRAERTS L8 & M TA (15
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TE o RAEMERIRERAAERZT
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FEMET e MEtE TEARBEMH 2
EEZHETEE  AIZIAEEFSAE
e

i —IARZIAERBIEI IR E AT
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3

96

—E-REZA=tT-HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments;

e The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves;

e The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined by using forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period with the resulting value discounted back to
present value;

e For unlisted securities or financial assets without an active
market, the Group establishes the fair value by using
valuation techniques including the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, reference to net asset value of
investee and discounted cash flow analysis, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs. If none of the valuation techniques results in a
reasonable estimate on the fair value, the investment is stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses; and

e  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial

instruments.

There were no transfers of financial instruments between levels in
the hierarchy for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 MKEREBEEAZERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREMF (&)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value THRENE=ZRAABERENMBHET
hierarchy of financial instruments for the years ended 31 March BEHE_FT—RERZT—H1F=A
2016 and 2015: —+—HIFEEE
Equity/foreign
exchange  Mutual and Call Equity Private
linked notes  hedge funds option securities funds Total
B/ HNE BER
ANZE HhES REmE RARES LEES o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2015 RZE-RFWA—A 7,816 75,382 18,073 7,750 167,715 276,736
Purchases/capital contributions BN/ BREA - 34,067 - - 769 34,836
Receipt for capital returns WEEX - - - - (23.917) (23,917)
Fair value gains/(losses) recognised in - FAE {2 E U5 HEA L
other comprehensive income MEkE/ (58) - - - 10 (41,314) (41,304)
Fair value losses recognised NERERZ
through profit or loss DrEER - (10,768) (18,073) = = (28,841)
Impairment loss recognised in NEERZRESE
profit or loss - - - - (17,160) (17,160)
Disposals & = (19,323) - - (4,440) (23,763)
Derecognition £BERER (7,816) - - - - (7,816)
At 31 March 2016 RIZ—RF
=R=1-H - 79,358 - 7,760 81,653 168,771
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 UREREERSEREEK(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 ARfEMEE ()
Equity/foreign Convertible
exchange  Mutual and Call Equity Private preference
linked notes  hedge funds option securities funds shares Others
GE 2
o
HK$'000
B¥TR
At 1 April 2014 RZT-IEmA—-A - 15,387 - 11,640 214,093 200,408 6,307 447,835
Purchasesfcapital contributions B A /A7 A 8,680 57,154 26,045 - 438 - - 92317
Receipt for capital returns WEER - - - - (27,984) - - (27,984)
Fair value losses recognised R Ef 2 AR
in other comprehensive LRREER
income - - - (3,890) (17,638) (2,507) - (24,035)
Fair value (losses)/gains RE&REAZANE
recognised through (B8)/ Wi
profit or loss (864) 2,841 (7972) - - - 2,073 (3,922)

Fair value losses hedged EHNERNMENH
by foreign currency forward AR ERE

contracts - - - - - (32,200) - (32,200)
Impairment loss recognised ~ RBHERZAESE
in profit or loss - - - - - (165,701) - (165,701)
Disposals & - - - - 1,194) - - (1,194)
Derecognition REER - - - - - - (8,380) (8,380)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-1%
=“B=1-H 7816 75,382 18,073 7,750 167,715 - - 276,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

(a)

(b)

Fair values of investment properties and staff quarters

The valuations of investment properties and staff quarters held
directly by the Group are made on the basis of the “Market Value"
adopted by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS"). They
are performed in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards on
Properties published by HKIS. The valuations are reviewed annually
by qualified valuers by considering the information from a variety of
sources including (i) current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less active
market, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those
prices; and (iii) rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect its
tenancy and cashflow profile. The fair value of each investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income from future leases
in light of current market conditions including open market rents,
appropriate capitalisation rates and reversionary income potential.
For the year ended 31 March 2016, discount rate in the range of
4% to 6% (2015: 4% to 6%) were used in the discounted cash flow
analysis. The fair value also reflects on a similar basis, any cash
outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

As at 31 March 2016, if the market values of investment properties
and staff quarters had been 10% (2015: 10%) higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the carrying values of the
Group's investment properties and staff quarters would have been
HK$366,363,000 and HK$48,744,000 (2015: HK$368,050,000 and
HK$43,927,000) higher/lower respectively.

Impairment assessment for property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on the higher of their fair values less costs to sell and value
in use, taking into account the latest market information and past
experience.

R B BmaRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

4 BREIEERHE
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(a)

(b)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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Impairment assessment for goodwill and other intangible assets
The Group tests whether goodwill and other intangible assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies
stated in note 2(aa) to the consolidated financial statements.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or their fair values less cost to sell,
whichever are higher, and both bases require the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The Group expects that any reasonable
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts
are based would not cause the carrying amounts of goodwill and
other intangible assets to exceed their recoverable amounts.
Please refer to notes 15, 16 and 36 to the consolidated financial
statements for details.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its other
intangible assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of comparable intangible
assets in related industries. Actual economic life may vary from
estimated useful life. Periodic review could result in a change
in amortisable lives and consequently increase or decrease in
amortisation expenses in future periods. Please refer to note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements for details.

Impairment assessment for investments in associates and joint
ventures

The Group regularly reviews whether there are any indications
of impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures primarily based on value-in-use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these future cash flows and discount rate. Management estimates
the future cash flows based on certain assumptions, such as
revenue growth.

Impairment assessment for available-for-sale investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when
an available-for-sale investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the
financial health of and short-term business outlook for the investee
and historical price volatility of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair value of available-for-sale investments
below cost are considered significant or prolonged, an additional
loss of HK$6,984,000 (2015: HK$4,000) would be incurred in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016, being the transfer of the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity on such available-for-sale
investments to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

0]

1)

Fair values of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments

The fair values of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period.

Net realisable values of properties under development and
properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under development and
properties for sale to net realisable values based on assessment
of the realisability of properties under development and properties
for sale which takes into account cost to completion based on
past experience and net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. If there is an increase in cost to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease
which may result in writing down properties under development
and properties for sale to net realisable value. Write-downs are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, the carrying
value of properties under development and properties for sale is
adjusted in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group’s insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on
the basis of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing
modeling and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance
liabilities are affected by assessed net loss ratio. As at 31 March
2016, assessed net loss ratio was 65% (2015: 73%). Differences
resulting from reassessment of insurance liabilities are recognised
in subsequent consolidated financial statements. The Group
continually reviews the estimates and makes adjustments as
necessary, but actual results could differ from what is envisioned
when these estimates are made.

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as
stated in note 2(n) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group uses the percentage of completion method to determine the
appropriate revenue to be recognised in a given period. The stage
of completion is measured by total amount of work done certified
by customers over total estimated contract sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group
needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction
contract, which is determined based on the estimated total
construction contract costs and estimated total construction
contract sum, including variation orders and claims. If the actual
gross profit margin of construction contract differs from the
management'’s estimates, the construction contract profit to
be recognised in the following years will need to be adjusted
accordingly.

R B BmaRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(k)

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2016, deferred tax asset of HK$39,194,000
(2015: HK$41,068,000) in relation to unused tax losses had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. In cases where the actual taxable profits
generated are more or less than expected, additional deferred tax
assets or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such an addition
or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group, including associates and joint ventures, is subject
to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant judgment
is required in determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

5 REVENUE

4 BREIEERHE ()

(k) @

RZTE—XNE=ZA=1+—8 BXH
ArZREEEEENEEREEES
#39,194,000c( = & — A & B &
41,068,000 7T ) B ARG BATSAR IR 3R
R BEHRBEEE/RTEE 28T
Hi&REE RHARNRIERT R ER
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B J8 [ 3R BRI A B S R RERR

A AEE(BEBEERARRAED
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RIS MTEEEREHIA - KNEE
AR AR R G DHIRERINGUIR - HE i e
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EEHZBERBRBBERBEARRVIAKRZ
T REFEARTENFETHRNZ
PRST RIRIE B IR RE A -

WA

2016
e

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Revenue represents amounts received and

receivable from:

Construction and installation contracts BERTELHD
Sales and leasing of properties YEHEREE

Sales of information technology equipment,

motor vehicles and others

Senior housing operations LR EEE

Food and beverage BN

Warehouse and logistics services BB R RS

Maintenance and property management RERMEEE RS
services

Insurance premium R &

Hotel operations I &8

Dividend income from investments REKRE 2R BWA

Interest income from investments RERE ZFBIA

Leasing of vehicles and equipment AERERERE

Total revenue (note 35) #UA (PHFE35)
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WAIERBIATEIEZ B EIFIA

AARHRE - TEREM L HE

2,517,064 2,395,785
812,704 218,216
709,889 744,305
528,152 505,659
458,948 605,346
199,251 187,151
174,334 157,542

51,904 108,214
40,794 37,969
22,687 32,731
15,933 13,225
6,103 6,508
5,637,763 5,012,651
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F-A=1+—HLFE

OTHER INCOME, NET

(Loss)/gain on investments at fair value
through profit or loss
— held-for-trading

(Loss)/gain on derivative financial instruments

Other investment income

Commission income

Marketing and promotion income

Sales and marketing services income from an
associate (note 42)

Interest income from an associate (note 42)

Management fee income from associates and
joint ventures (note 42)

Others

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Increase in fair value of investment properties
(note 13)

Gain on disposal of an investment property

Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment

(Loss)/gain on disposals of
— other subsidiaries
- Peak Gain Limited (note 43(b)(iv))

Loss on disposals of associates

Gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (note 14)

Impairment loss on amount due from an
associate

Impairment loss on amounts due from joint
ventures

Impairment loss on goodwill (note 15)

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Impairment loss on trade and other debtors

Exchange loss

6 HA - FHE

BARBEIIABREE ZEERN
(E18) MW=
—BHEEERR

PTHEMBTAZ (E518), ek

HAEEWA

LA

M58 MR A

RE—MEHBE R R ZHERTIBHE
BRISUA (MI7E42)

RE A AR 2 FBUWA (FFE42)

REBENFIRALTEEEE
A (PI7E42)

Hib

7 Hf(B1R), Wi - FHE

WEMEZ A EEMFFE13)

HE—RIEEME 2 Wen
HEME - BB KEBZER

HENT &R (F18),
—EHE AR
—WAIBR AR (FHFE43(b)iv))
H S B R E 2 i
HEAHBE 2 RE W (B1R)
M W R R RERE (T 14)
U — RIS & A RIRR R 2 R (B 18
FEU & E RN RERE

Rz R AR (H1E15)
AR E 2 RERRERE

B 5 N Bl R R R RUE R 1R
bE &8

2016
S

HK$°000
BYTT

(23,258) 19,547
(1,569) 15,977
11,359 6,158
8,404 9,068
4,830 5,024
26,037 24,651
- 37,866
24,478 26,315
13,129 10,497
63,410 155,103

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
BT T
31,997 193,312
52 642
(188) (368)
(97) 16,819
= 1,247,689
(147) -
12 (49)
- (3,452)
(118,832) (66,831)
- (153,874)
(4,656) -
(17,160) (210,386)
(8,644) (31,835)
(13,179) (34,618)
(130,842) 957,049
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FE VB RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

8 FINANCE COSTS, NET 8

RITBE X LIRITEFEF S

Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and
bank borrowings
Less: Amounts capitalised to properties
under development (note)

B BHEERPYEZ 28 (M)

B IRITIE RE A B

Less: Interest income from bank deposits

Note:

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the development of
properties was between 4.6% and 5.9% per annum (2015: 5.9%).

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after BFFTDEF KR THIER -

charging the followings:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BE R&RE 2 E (K 14)
(note 14)

Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

B BIERNTIEZ 2

BT (Mizta)
B BHER RN IRZ 2R

Staff costs (note a)
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work

Operating lease payments in respect of leasing fAELATIBR 2 2EHEEHA

of

— premises (note b) —EF (3Eb)

— equipment — i@
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN &

— audit services — ZERT

— non-audit services — IEERTE

—BEFERETR(BEEH)

— under/(over)-provision in prior years

HA @& EE (K52 16)

Amortisation of other intangible assets
(note 16)

and crediting the followings: Wi ATSIER :

Write back of inventories to net realisable EEGFEEA IR FE
value

Gross rental income of HK$147,291,000 (2015: #)% & 42U A B 147,291,000 7T
HK$148,716,000) from properties less direct  (ZZ—HF : ¥ 148,716,000 7T)
operating expenses (note c) BEELETE (MiEc)
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BKER FH
2016
S
HK$'000
BT T
114,252 121,093
(9,096) (6,467)
105,156 114,626
(23,646) (19,315)
81,510 95,311
B3
AR KGR BN ERE 2 ES AR

FERNFTA46%E59% (ZF—H%F :59%) e
BRBE AR T

2016

2015
—ZT—HRF

HK$°000
BT T

HK$'000

BT

106,361 110,790
(2,166) (1,896)
104,195 108,894
1,079,220 1,045,896
(201,715) (145,504)
877,505 900,392
110,846 102,241
3,789 3,435
114,635 105,676
11,239 11,307
2,144 5,655
154 (5680)
13,537 16,382
2,619 5,272
1,839 2,126
132,501 139,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 9

Notes:

(a)  Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Included in staff costs are amounts of HK$1,582,000 (2015: HK$1,277,000)
in respect of termination benefits made to staff and HK$36,018,000 (2015:
HK$37,754,000) in respect of contributions to defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes, net of forfeited contributions.

(b) Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises are
contingent rentals of HK$5,439,000 (2015: HK$5,697,000).

(c) Included in rental income is an amount of HK$4,971,000 (2015: HK$4,082,000)
less outgoings of HK$831,000 (2015: HK$876,000) from joint operation.
Included in rental income is a gross amount of HK$139,136,000 (2015:
HK$140,718,000) derived from investment properties less direct operating
expenses of HK$10,492,000 (2015: HK$7,904,000).

R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

BRBLADER ()
i -

a EFEMELEREEEIRXA  HiFBEGS
PATS SRR M 1 37 P EE -

EBTIM%BERE TIEL 2 BRABKILEFBE
1,682,000 7C(=Z— A4 : %% 1,277,000 7T)
REINRE QTR 2 R e HERGR R E Fl5T
Bl FRE % 36,018,000 L (= ZF— R F « BE
37,754,000 7T) °

b MEBFZREMREEMAREXANS AN
5,439,0007T( = F — F 4 : /& #5,697,000
7T e

© FEERARERAELCERMZESHBE
4,971,00070( = F — f F ¢ & # 4,082,000
TL) R B 831,000T(—Z B —RE : B
#876,0007T) - WA BIEREZEWE
2B S WA B% 139,136,000 (=T —H
& F#140,718,000 7)) M E B L AT HE
#10,492,0007C( = — R4 : % 7,904,000

JT) °
INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10 FIERIZE
2016 PAONES)
—E-XRE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current tax BNERTIE
Hong Kong BB 55,394 66,585
Mainland China and overseas H A g AN 28,188 24,164
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBRERE (770) (1,885)
82,812 88,864
Deferred tax RAETIE
Origination and reversal of temporary R ER 7 EA KB (FIFE34)
differences (note 34) 20,154 31,291
102,966 120,155

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits. Taxation on Mainland China and
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EBMNEBRIBEEERY R AR X
16.5% (ZZF—HF 1 165%) 5T HE - FEA
i K G AN F R B TR F A AT R R R 7
KRR EBSEEBMERR CRITHERAHE -

BN Z 7

& o

BEREFAMEHMRM T4 AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

1"

Income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per consolidated income statement as follows:

Profit before taxation

Adjusted for:
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary difference
not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and
deductible temporary difference not
previously recognised

Over-provision in prior years

Others

Income tax expenses for the year

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

10 FriE#i i (&)

iR ek R BRI AR B B AR R RS TR S

2 EEE0 T
2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
BT A E A 463,112 1,710,478
-
FriGE & AR EE (116,932) (249,406)
FriEa e nEER 25,407 28,753
371,587 1,489,825
BTSRRI E 16.5%
(ZZ—FH%F 16.5%)sTE 2 FHE 61,312 245,821
TEEHMBEEEELE 2 WBAR
AR R Rz 2 14,064 2,870
AN 2 HIEE 45,344 95,637
BARBBAZ RIBFE (31,845) (270,664)
RTERT BB HEBEVE 47,082 39,928
RPHERUMBEREEZRE 2 HIETE
2,368 10,407
HABAERTFRAZHEEEER
AR E R R 2 FIEE
(28,077) (5,880)
BEFEREEE (770) (1,885)
Hftb (6,512) 3,921
FEAMEHEZE 102,966 120,155
11 BREF
(a) BE&

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended

31 March 2016.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company

RRBBHERS B ARIEG N

BRERBANIDIREARRRERE

ABEENBRABE —T—

RNE=ZR

=+ RIEFEEBETEARZ NET

BBIGHE -

2016
—B-AEF

HK$°000
B¥TT

315,056

2015
==
HK$'000
BT

1,637,162

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue ('000 shares)

Basic earnings per share (HK$)

FRERRN (EE)
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BEETE BB T (TR

300,801

294,897

1.05

5.21




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F-A=1+—HLFE

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 11 BREF ()
(b) Diluted (b) #F
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted RESENTDEBRABREEITEAR
average number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion 2 DN BUAR R E B Efiﬁ SHEEB
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As at 31 March 2016, the BEHBmMFAESH R —RE=
Group had potential ordinary shares in an associate, which were A=+—8" $%*Fﬁﬁﬂ§ﬁf£@ ARE
issuable upon exercise of share option being granted. There was EERR - ZRDARD ZEREETT
no potential dilutive effect from such share option held during the EREA] 31T 2D o ANFEEZPTIF Lt
year. As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, associates of the Group had ERETEREEBETHELE N2
potential ordinary shares which were issuable upon exercise of —NERZZFE-RF=A=+—H" &
share options granted. There was no potential dilutive effect from SE-FEBERARAEBEEEEK 2K
such share options during both years. MREL 7 EREREI TR T2

ftn o Ut R4 B ot i R A S SR A AR
BEEETE -

12 DIVIDENDS 12 BRE

2016 PAONES)
—RE —T—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2015: HK$0.20) EJk+ R EFR B 020 (=ZZF—H

per share paid F 1 0.207T) 60,386 59,409
Final dividend of HK$0.50 (2015: HK$0.50) per #tRAKHIR BEFREE 050t (=ZZF—H
share proposed & A% 0507T) 150,964 149,995
No special dividend (2015: HK$0.50) per share TEURFFRIRE (ZZT—H4F : A% 0.50
proposed JT) - 149,995
211,350 359,399
In respect of the dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2016, MHE_ZE—XRF=ZA=Z1+—HIEFERND
HK$26,390,000 was paid in form of shares under the Company's scrip ERZIEEMS  EhEHE—_ZT— ﬁi =
dividend schemes in respect of the special and final dividends for the A=+—ALFEZENRRAREEE
year ended 31 March 2015. In respect of the dividends paid during the 26,390,000 7T B 1R #& A 2 5] LA R K B 5T 2
year ended 31 March 2015, HK$39,157,000 and HK$52,743,000 were RS 2 - T —hF=A=+—
paid in form of shares under the Company's scrip dividend schemes in HEFERNBRNZBREME  EHEZE=
respect of the interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 and T-—RAF=-RA=+—HLEFEZFHRE
the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 respectively. rEE-_Z--NEF=A=+—HILEEZ

KEIRE B 5 Bl A7 #39,157,000 7T & 78 #&
52,743,000 7T 2 1R & AR 2 &) LARR A B 58I BA

MR 1 o
Final dividend of HK$0.50 per share totaling HK$150,964,000 has been EERRARHREER0508TT - & HAK
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders 150,964,000 7T + EERFEEA %Zﬂxﬁﬁi
in the forthcoming annual general meeting. The amount will be reflected Rg LERFAER  FAEE - @FHER
as an appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31 March HE-_ZT—tHF=HA=1+—HIEFEIER
2017. Bz 9Dk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE VB RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13 REWME

At beginning of the year =)
Exchange realignment PE 14 s
Addition RE

Disposal of an investment property HE—IRIRE Y
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited (note 43(b)(iv))
Transfer to properties for sale

Increase in fair value (note 7)

HERGEYE
R EEIN(PHEET)

At end of the year FR

The Group's investment properties at their carrying values are analysed
as follows:

Hong Kong BA
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) REIBA (TERTH)
Mainland China and overseas A B A RRF SN
Freehold KA ZFERE
On long-term leases (over 50 years) REBH(RATFALE)
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FEEA(TER+F)

Notes:

(a)  The fair value of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and overseas as at 31 March 2016 had been arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited or DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, which are independent firms of qualified valuers
having appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation
Standards on Properties published by HKIS, is arrived at with reference to
market evidence of transaction prices of similar properties or calculated on the
net income allowing for reversionary potential. For all investment properties,
their current use equates to the highest and best use.

(b)  Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of
HK$45,000,000 (2015: HK$42,667,000) represented the Group's share of
interests in joint operation.

(c)  Charges were created on the investment properties with a total carrying value

of HK$2,196,284,000 (2015: HK$2,171,795,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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HERAIER AT (FIEE43(0)(v)

2016
—E—XREF
HK$'000
BET T
3,680,497 3,646,873
(21,831) (49,411)
- 15,019
(6,000) (4,000)
= (121,296)
(21,038) -
31,997 193,312
3,663,625 3,680,497

REE 2 REYEREEEZDITNAT

2016 2015
—E—XKE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT EEETIT
2,388,866 2,370,121
502,844 508,986
728,481 735,255
43,434 66,135
3,663,625 3,680,497

GEE

(a)

(c)

AEBMRES - REAM RGN R EYE
RZE—AR"F=A=+—BZRARBEIBRES
BRI RIETRTT AR A AR EERITARR
Al (WERB LA BRTEANIT - WK BRI
EREAETYEGEZEBEERRER) RZ
KT 2 MERELEMGE - ZHEDHETE
R BREGETEM 2 BB ERMBEG YR
BEAWE 2RSS EEUMEZZHER
o RBEEWR A FEREE - BATER
BWEmME  HANBRENESSNRER

MREBZEEMEZEEHAREER
45,000,000 7T (=F — 1 9 : /&% 42,667,000
TU) RAREFE 6 B 2 M o

SR A8 (E 555 2,196,284,000 T (—ZE— A4 -
76 2,171,795,000 7T) Z R B Y B VR -
AR TAEERITEEZER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 13 REY* (&)
Notes: (continued) MisE (&)
(d) Valuation of investment properties d ®EWMEZHE
The following table presents the changes in level 3 fair value hierarchy of TREVNE=RRAAERENREMEHE
investment properties for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015: T-RNFERZZ-RAF=A=+—HLFEZ

Commercial properties Residential properties Industrial properties
[EE2/ES x2S IRNR
Mainland EIENT

Hong Kong China Overseas  Hong Kong China  Hong Kong Overseas

) HER s BA HE A BA =3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETT BETT BET BETT BT BB

At 1 April 2015 T-HENA—B 1,068,326 46,913 22,899 34,840 712,284 1,266,955 528,280 3,680,497
Exchange realignment B - (1,036) (540) - (28814) - 8559  (21,831)
Disposal of an investment property (& —TR#H&E - - - (6,000) - - - (6,000)
Transfer to properties for sale BREENE - (21,038) - - - - - (21,038)
Increase/(decrease) in fair value AR EZM,/CHA) (HFE7)

(note 7) 33,330 - 1,546 (260) 19,661 (8,325) (13,955) 31,997
At 31 March 2016 RZE—~"E=A=1+-H 1,101,656 24,839 23,905 28,580 703,131 1,258,630 522,884 3,663,625

Residential properties Industrial properties
S FehE IEm=
Mainland Mainland
Hong Kong China Overseas  Hong Kong China  Hong Kong Overseas
B ‘ ] 0 85
HKS$ " 000 HK$" 000 HK$ " 000 HK$" 000
BT BET ; 7 ; BETT BETT

At 1 April 2014 RZZE-NENA—H 994,535 46,590 5,405 33,470 712,072 1,283,557 571,244 3,646,873
Exchange realignment BN A% - - (2,453) - - - (46,958) (49,411)
Addition NE - - 15,019 - - - - 15,019
Disposal of an investment property Hi&—IBIEME - - - (4,000) - - - (4,000)
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited HERBIBRAR

(note 43(b)(iv)) (B 43(0)(Iv)) - - - - - (121,296) — 121,296)
Increase in fair value (note 7) ARBEEMET) 73,791 323 4,928 5,370 212 104,694 3,99 193,312
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=ZA=t+-H 1,068,326 46,913 22,899 34,840 712,284 1,266,955 528,280 3,680,497
The Group includes a team that reviews the valuations performed by the REBEESEMEB LM RMBERER N
independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and reports directly to the FiEBEZEN  BEZEBREERRREEA
senior management. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held BWRE - SRERAERZLEAEA (BEXE
between the senior management and valuers at least once every six months, in AR FE RS BB — B0 B ET A AT —
line with the Group's interim and annual reporting dates. RAEEBIE RAERTH ©
At the end of each reporting period, the Group: REREHR - NEH -
e verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report; s ZEUBUMHERSHMBERNEAZ

%
e assesses property valuation movements when compared to the prior year o  FIEMEMEREFEMRERELERT
valuation reports; and WEH Rk

e holds discussions with the independent valuers. o EUBETHADMETTER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-_T—R"F=A=+—HILFE

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(d)

10 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

Fair values of commercial, residential and industrial properties in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and overseas are generally derived using the income
capitalisation method and wherever appropriate, by direct comparison method.
Income capitalisation method is based on the capitalisation of the net income
and reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates,
which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and valuers' interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing market rents
adopted in the valuation have reference to recent lettings, within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. Direct comparison method is
based on comparing the property to be valued directly with other comparable
properties, which have recently transacted. However, given the heterogeneous
nature of real estate properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required
to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be
achieved by the property under consideration.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Significant unobservable inputs used to determine fair values

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on recent lettings for Hong Kong
and Mainland China investment properties, within the subject properties and
other comparable properties. The lower the rents, the lower the fair values.

As at 31 March 2016, the prevailing market rents of HK$23 (2015: HK$22) per
square feet (“sq. ft.”) per month and HK$118 (2015: HK$121) per square meter
(“sg. m."”) per month were used in the income capitalisation method for majority
of commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China respectively. For
residential properties in Mainland China and industrial properties in Hong Kong,
the prevailing market rents of HK$88 to HK$860 (2015: HK$74 to HK$825) per
sqg. m. per month and HK$9 to HK$12 (2015: HK$10 to HK$12) per sq. ft. per
month were used respectively.

Capitalisation rates are estimated by valuers based on the risk profile of the
investment properties being valued. The higher the rates, the lower the
fair values. As at 31 March 2016, capitalisation rates of 3.56% (2015: 3.5%)
and 5.5% (2015: 5.5%) were used in the income capitalisation method for
commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China respectively; and the
capitalisation rates of 2.0% to 6.0% (2015: 2.0% to 6.0%) and 4.5% to 5.8%
(2015: 4.5% to 5.8%) were used for residential properties in Mainland China and
industrial properties in Hong Kong respectively.
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13 REW= (&)

M ()

(d)

REWHEZ HEGE)

T PEABRSINEE  EERTEDE
ZRARE—REAKEEMEER (ER) B
BEULEOEFTERY - WEEAMOETIENER
RAEE 2 ENMeE - SR AOFERIAESR
ENTURENE  MEMERTEBEHER
ZZ AT EMEERIREE 2 ERAHPE
BEEMSH - EfHETRABZRTTSED
TyRIEE 2 Y 3 R B AT L S 25 2 SR ER
HERMETE - ARLBEDERNBEEBEZ
MEEGIT QRS 2 LA L B R FE &
LER - 28T - RN EHEMEZ ZELIEE
BEARERAETEEERTOYEMEL
EBROERZRELEEHE -

HETDNERAFELBEE -

EERAABIHZ EXT BB AZE
BITMSHES DERBTERTPEAN ZREY
¥ REZEENEREMATHEEYER
2R ERER - HEBE - BIRARE
MUK o

R-ZE—A"F=ZA=+—8 " #BERTER
2 KEBAEEMEMS - WEEANED IR
BRAAMERSEAGFHR(FHR])BE
237 (=T —R4F B2 D) KRB ATFHK
(TFHARDBEENST(ZE—RF  Bk121
To) e BRE R Z EEMERESZ TEY
¥Ms  DREBRTMSHSEREFK
B 88 L EB B0 L (=T — R Bk 74
TEBKEGB L) REBABFARBEITER
12 (ZE—RF - 10T EBEB127T) -

BACERTYBEMERATEEZIRENMEZ
R o bR ME - BIRREBE - ®
—ZE-RFEZA=Z+—8 " BBEBERTFER
MEEMENS - WEEANED BIRA35%
(ZZE—A%F :35%) R55% (ZF—RHF:
5.5%) 2 EAMEE o g B Rt 2 (FEMHE R
BAZIEDENS * PAIKMB2.0% £6.0%
(ZZ—AF :20%F6.0%)%45% E58%
“E-AF 45%E58%) ZEMNER o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE—Z—R"F-A=+T—HILFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 V¥ BERRZE

Furniture,

fixtures,

Other properties for own use Plant, office

HftBANE machinery  equipment

Cold storage Hotel Other Staff and  and motor
warehouse  properties  properties quarters  equipment vehicles Total

fi - 2B

BE- #%  BAERE
REER BENE e ERRGE FES kg AR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI AT BT BRI BT BETR

(note ¢)

Cost or valuation RASEE

At 1 April 2014 RZE-mERA-A 239,038 149,018 1,364,258 446,660 92,704 400,989 2,692,667
Exchange realignment BT - (18,722) (12,174) - 2173) (7.011) (40,080)
Acquisition of subsidaries KRB AR - - - - 297 27 3,068
Additions RE - 17,855 8,652 - 19,326 40,676 86,509
Disposals it - - - - (3.678) 10,406) (14,084)
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited (note 43(b)v)) ~ HEREIEHRAR

(B 43(b)iv) - - (109,040) - - (3.810) (112,850)
Disposals of other subsidiaries HELHHBAR - - - - (1,358) (5,557) (6,915)

At 31 March 2015
Exchange realignment
Acquisition of Dolce Field (note 43(b)fii)

E-RE=f=1-H 239,038 148,151 1,251,696 446,660 105,118 417,652 2608315
ke - (2,968) (1,384) - (1,732) (4,414) (10,498)
2903 (MFE43(bI) - - - - 312 4,120 4,432

Additions - 121 8,175 - 19,012 38,777 66,085
Disposals - - - - (2,121) (9,434) (11,555)
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco RIEE Cafe Deco 7 1%

(note 43(b)(i) (B 43(bil) - = = = (38,864) (109,679) (148,543)
Increase in fair value AffEEm - - - 41,000 - = 41,000
At 31 March 2016 WZE-rE=A=1-H 239,038 145,304 1,258 487 487,660 81,725 337,022 2,549,236

Accumulated depreciation and impairment  E3HHERFE

At 1 April 2014 RZE-MENA—H 74,520 62,813 187,150 - 46,190 227471 598,144
Exchange realignment B - 6,104) (5,367) - 1,602) (4,017) (17,090)
Charged for the year note 9) EREME(WEI) 6,125 2474 32,458 7392 12,611 49730 110,790
Impairment loss (note 7) BESE () - - - - - 3,452 3,452
Disposals ﬁﬁ - - - - 2,960} (7,041) (10,001)
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited (note 43(bliv)) ~ HEHEIERAR

GEZE V \/ - - (38,843) - - (3,489) (42,332)
Disposals of other subsidiaries HEEHHER - - - - 1,243) (3,494) [4,737)
At 31 March 2015 W-ZE-1F=A=1-H 80,645 59,183 175,398 1392 52,996 262,612 638,226
Exchange realignment ER - (936) (614) - (946) (3,765) (6,261)
Charged for the year (note 9) EEE(FF9) 6,125 2,281 30,328 7,392 12,813 41416 106,361
Disposals e - - - - (2,056) (6,947) (9,003)
Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco 1R 1M & Cafe Deco 2 &

(note 43(0)(i) (B 43(bi) = = = - (12,163) (52,725) (64,888)
Increase in fair value DREEN - - - (14,564) - = (14,564)
At 31 March 2016 WZE-rEzA=1-H 86,770 60,534 205,112 220 50,644 246,591 649,871

Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2016 WZE-rE=zA=1-H 152,268 84,770 1,063,375 487,440 31,081 90,431 1,899,365
At31 March 2015 RIE-RTE=A=1-H 158,393 88968 1,076,298 439,268 52,122 155,040 1,970,089
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE VB RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)  The carrying value of properties comprise:

14 9% - BERHZE (E)

BRE
(@ WEZEEESLE:

2016
—E-NEF

HK$°000
BETT

Freehold land and buildings thereon KAEEL M RERE EZ2EF
Leasehold land and buildings thereon HELHRERE E2EF

(b)  Charges were created on the properties, plant and equipment with a total
carrying value of HK$1,281,830,000 (2015: HK$1,216,013,000) for the purpose
of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

(c) Revaluation of staff quarters

The Group had measured the staff quarters under the revaluation model. The
fair value of staff quarters as at 31 March 2016 had been arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited, which is
an independent firm of qualified valuers having appropriate qualifications and
experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The valuation,
which conforms to the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by
HKIS, was arrived at with reference to market evidence of transaction prices
of similar properties or calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary
potential.

Fair value of staff quarters are generally derived using the direct comparison
method. Direct comparison method is based on comparing the property to
be valued directly with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate properties,
appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative
differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under
consideration.

If the staff quarters were measured under the cost model, the carrying value
would be as follows:

748,575
1,029,278

762,699
1,000,228

1,777,853 1,762,927

(b) BREI#A{EH%1,281,830,0007L (ZF—FF :
7#5#51,216,013,000 7T) 2 W13 - WE REED
EEE  (ERRTALERITEEZIER -

© BHEIES®

AEERREGREAGERIRES - RIES
HE_ZT-—ARF=A=+—HZR2nBERE
HOREENIT AR AR (WA B RBILAER
FHEEITT - YR AR EREEETYEGESZ
BEERRER)RZRETZHEEMSS
FEETESTEENEMBGHBG 2 FEA
BMBEMEGELIL D 2RHS LEUD
X2 RSEFEL - RBBBEERAFESE R
.

BTHEEZANE-RRBERLEATHES
e BEEEBOATDEREEMEZ MERRT
B2 HEMAIHL B EEER LR - A
o EREHEYEZZHEANE - BEAR
AR EEERTOMEMEZ ERNE
=ERFLEERE -

HERRAEAFEETES - BIRREEN

Cost %N
Accumulated depreciation REtITE
Carrying value AREE

15 GOODWILL

At beginning of the year F1)

[& 3 s %
U BE R WPGCs 2 51% A1

Exchange realignment

Acquisition of 51% equity interest in WPGCs

Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco
(note 43(b)(i)

Impairment loss (note 7) BEER (H3E7)

At end of the year FR

Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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fRIEHE Cafe Deco Z #Ez (FIFE43(b)(i)

-
—EB—REF
HK$'000
BET T
63,263 63,263
(40,372) (37,943)
22,891 25,320
15 B8
2016
—EB—XREF
HK$'000
BET T
690,184 681,743
733 (733)
- 9,174
(57,247) -
(4,656) -
629,014 690,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cost
At 1 April 2014
Exchange realignment
Disposal
Addition

At 31 March 2015

Exchange realignment

Deemed disposal of interest
in Cafe Deco (note 43(b)(i)

Addition

At 31 March 2016

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
At 1 April 2014
Exchange realignment
Charged for the year (note 9)
Disposal

At 31 March 2015

Exchange realignment

Charged for the year (note 9)

Deemed disposal of interest
in Cafe Deco (note 43(b)(i))

At 31 March 2016

Carrying value
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

16 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A
RZZ—MFENA—H
(B 5 3%

HE
hE

R-Z-—RF=A=1+—H

EH AR

181E & Cafe Deco 2 1z
(P 43(b)(1))

AE

RZZE—"F=A=+—H
RIMERAE

N-2-mEmA—H
B AR

FENE (H59)
&

RZE—RF=-A=+—H
IR

FEEATE (HF9)

18 {EH & Cafe Deco 2 125
(P 43(b)(1))

RZZ-RE=A=+-H
fREE
RZZE-RE=ZA=+-H

RZZ-RF=A=1+—H

R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_Z—XEZA=+—HLFE

16 HtEFEE

Cold
Roads, storage and
drainage public
and bonded Trademarks
waterworks  warehouse of restaurant  Favourable
license licenses and bar leases Others Total
BE - RH RERE
Rk RAR £ER
IBER RBRMR EEZEE BHHE Hits L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BETR BRI BETT BRI
26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 14,944 80,109
- - - - (596) (596)
- - (5,682) - - (5,682)
- - - - 38 38
26,534 3,000 18,094 11,855 14,386 73,869
= = = = (130) (130)
- - (18,094) (11,855) - (29,949)
- - - - 137 137
26,534 3,000 - - 14,393 43,927
26,534 3,000 6,298 9,633 8,445 53,910
- - - - (591) (591)
- - 1,269 2,222 1,781 5,272
- - (1,957) - - (1,957)
26,534 3,000 5,610 11,855 9,635 56,634
- - - - (131) (131)
- - 865 - 1,754 2,619
- - (6,475) (11,855) - (18,330)
26,534 3,000 - - 11,258 40,792
- - - - 3,135 3,135
- - 12,484 - 4,751 17,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE VB RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

16 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks
license) (“License”) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of following estimated useful lives or license period:

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years
Trademarks of restaurant and bar 15 years
Favourable leases 4 years
Lease-in-place 3 years

The Directors are of the opinion that the upkeep of this License is at
minimal cost and the Group would renew this License continuously.
This License is considered by the management of the Group as having
an indefinite useful life and will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite upon reassessment of its useful life annually by
the management of the Group. Instead, it will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.
Particulars of the impairment testing are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The lease-in-place of senior housing business was purchased as part
of business combination in prior year. The lease-in-place is considered
by the management of the Group as having finite lives of 3 years.
The lease-in-place will be tested for impairment whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of impairment testing are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Non-current: FETRE

Interests in associates, including goodwill
Amounts due from associates (note b)

T D

JREWBs 2 2 R BR AR (MRt D)

Current: RE
Amounts due from associates (note b) FEUEs A RIBR R (FisEb)

Amounts due to associates (note b) FESHE & A RIBRE (M FED)

The movements in the Group’s interests in associates during the year
are analysed as follows:

PGB &N E 2 s - BHEEE

16 HtBPEE (&)

Hib I ERE (FRER R Mok TR
(TheBR 1) 51N THAEARER T FIME T AT A 4
Hg BRI E 2 SR E TR

RERBERATREE R T
ERMBEZ AR THF
BEMHEE M4
AEHEE =%

BEERA EBENERBREARYERE X
E@MIASEIEBTEES - AEEEEE
RENEBEGERAIFEATS TS
WEHE HEERAEASEETEEREAUEASF
HEFEHTEE BTHAERTHER
Bl o HENEF R BB ATREREZ DS E
EITRERR - BREBERNG 2 FIBE N
A TEHRRMIFES6 -

wEREEG CAGTFHRENRFELRERE
HF—HomMBA - AEEERERRREFE
EZARAERFHA=F - REHEKRN
HIRATRERE 2 P RS ETTRE R - BRE
WMERIH 2 F BN A S IMRMEES6 -

17 FHEBE DRz &S

2016 2015
—E—KE “T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
685,110 657,286
235,960 341,194
921,070 998,480
18,074 11,298
240 29,685

AEBRAFEEREBERT ZEREDH 2
DT

At beginning of the year F1)

Exchange realignment P& 5 S
Addition NE

Disposals k=

Share of results FriG%4E

Share of other comprehensive expenses FriGEmE2m
Dividends i

At end of the year FR
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657,286 507,344
(10,832) (6,780)
57,945 -
(29,902) -
116,932 249,406
(3,865) -
(102,454) (92,684)
685,110 657,286




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31 March 2016 were set out
in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free, except for
the Group's balance of HK$92,193,000 (2015: HK$194,668,000) which bears
interest at rates mutually agreed between relevant parties.

Amounts due from associates of the Group under non-current assets of
HK$235,960,000 are considered equity in nature (2015: HK$242,560,000 are
considered equity in nature and HK$98,634,000 are not repayable within one
year) while amounts due from/to associates under current assets/liabilities are
repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates under current assets/
liabilities approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates are denominated in
the following currencies:

R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

17 & QT2 R ()

BEE

(a)

(b)

R-FE-RF=ZA=+—HEXEBLRFZ
AR DA M mKRATL46 o

JEESE = A B BRREIER R R 8 0 HAEE
2R EY92,193,000 7L (ZE—HF - BE
194,668,000 7T ) =274 B4 73 $k R 175 58 #O 7 & 5
e

BIETEVEETA 2 A AR & A B AR K
75 #235,960,000 LR ABREREE (=T
— R4 : B 242,560,000 AR A BIERSIE
B} 75 98,634,000 ST 1R A B R = 1 E
BAR—FHRAEE) MBRBEE BE
BT 2 e FE B 4 R R AR R RIZE IR Bk (E
= .

BRBEE AEET ZEE ENBEQR
R REERE DR ERE

e, FEATE AR BR R Z R ETIA T I E
BREM

Australian dollar i
Hong Kong dollar it
Renminbi AR

Chevalier (HK) Limited and its subsidiaries (together, “CHK Group”), Toshiba
Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. (“TCE") and Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Ltd.
("STE") have a similar risk profile, are engaged in similar business activities and
related to each other which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material to the
Group. Set out below is the summarised financial information for CHK Group,
TCE and STE. CHK Group, TCE and STE are engaged in the manufacturing,
marketing, installation, repair and maintenance of the lift and escalator business
and accounted for using equity method.

Summarised consolidated statement of financial position

(c)

= 98,915
77,152 48,364
176,642 175,628

HE(FB)AERARRAMB AR (5[ EL
FEKE))  RZEH(FE)BRAA(RZ
BES(PED) ) KR ZER CBS) BRAR(TR
ZEHCER) ) ABUURBAIL - HERUR
EEBRBILFBEEE  BEFRA - B
SEMEBEKN - ATHRHINELFEEE - R
R (RE) KR ZEROESR) MBS BRI
EoHIHFEEE RZER(TE)RRZE
B OBG) BT R ERERE - 2 %
£ HIERRERED  AERENR -

FREMBRRERYE

Non-current assets FREEE
Current RE
Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Net current assets MBEEFE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Net assets EEFE

_________ SBOAESS 341089
4,055,532 4,247,248
(3,010,523) (3,200,636)
DR ERReaN 1046612
e
1,394,539 1,387,322
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 17 FribBE AR 2= ()
Notes: (continued) et - (48)
(c)  (continued) © (8
Summarised consolidated statement of comprehensive income FEEZERERYE
2016
—E-NEF
HK$°000
BT T
Revenue A 7,207,812 8,204,000
Profit before taxation BB A& T 340,203 424,588
Income tax expenses FrisBiz it (59,803) (69,214)
Profit for the year FEBR 280,400 355,374
Other comprehensive expenses for the year FEHMEZESTH (1,110) (13,899)
Total comprehensive income for the year EEREWSELE 279,290 341,475
Dividends received from associates 2 s A FIAR S 84,358 82,924
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the consolidated FUER BB S N R A SRR AZIE
financial statements of the associates, adjusted for differences in accounting S8 IRAEEEBEATS T HETREM
policies between the Group and the associates. The information above is the EHAEE - FER IR ARBHIEN 2
amount before inter-company eliminations. 2E o
Reconciliation of summarised financial information B ERE YR
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the carrying 2% ER BB LBt S A TR 2R
amount of the interests in associates is provided as follows: HEEZ RS T :
2016
—E—XEF
HK$°000
BETT
Net assets at beginning of the year FHzEERFE 1,387,322 1,275,106
Exchange realignment P 5 % (38,105) -
Profit for the year attributable to shareholders R R4S S s A 280,400 355,374
Other comprehensive expenses for the year BREREEFEEMEES L
attributable to shareholders (1,110) (13,899)
Dividends %8 (233,968) (229,259)
Net assets at end of the year ERZEETE 1,394,539 1,387,322
Interests in associates* Sty NG o 419,100 402,849
Goodwill S 32,795 32,795
Carrying value at end of the year FRZEEE 451,895 435,644
#  Asat 31 March 2016, the interests held by the Group in CHK group, TCE RSB AREZA=t B AKEDSIRA
and STE as associates were 49%, 20% and 20% respectively (2015: 49%, H+EBEE RZEH(FE) RRZER
20% and 20% respectively). (&) (BABEAR]) Z249% * 20% K& 20%
ZE-RF: HRIFEE49% - 20% & 20%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes: (continued)

17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(d)  The aggregate summarised financial information of Group's associates that are

not individually material is set out below:

R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—X"F-A=1+—HLFE

17 FrEBE DT 2R ()

B ()

d  ERTERZ REEHE SN RBTEERME
T

The Group's share of results

The Group's share of total comprehensive income

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
interests in these associates

18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Non-current:

Interests in joint ventures, including goodwill

Amounts due from joint ventures (note b)

Current:
Amount due from a joint venture (note b)

Amount due to a joint venture (note b)

REBATGEE
The Group's share of other comprehensive expenses 7<% [E A5 E Ath 2 57 H

AEBPE 2 H AL

REBPG U SH L AR 2 BIREE

R
it aehEz n  BEHE
U & B 2R (D)

nE

fEU—FE & &R ERK (R b)

e —MA &R (D)

The movements in the Group's interests in joint ventures during the year

are analysed as follows:

At beginning of the year

Exchange realignment

Addition

Acquisition of Dolce Field (note 43(b)(ii))
Share of results

Dividends

At end of the year

Notes:

&%)

PE 3 A

NE

U BE BB (B 5E 43 (b))
REES |

eSS

FR

(a)  Particulars regarding the principal joint ventures as at 31 March 2016 were set
out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors were of
the view that as at 31 March 2016, there was no individual joint venture that

was material to the Group.

8,157 129,017
(3,865) -
4,292 129,017
469,175 562,836

18 ke bk iR

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI
119,460 272,066
401,245 1,238,066
520,705 1,510,132
59 50

53,230 -

AEBRAFEAMEEECEZREZEH Y
DT

2016 VAOKES)

e —F-n4
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
272,066 300,895
(18,794) (76)
65,808 1,050
(174,213) -
(25,407) (28,753)
= (1,050)
119,460 272,066

@ MITE-—RFEZA=ZT+—HRTIEEEL%EZ
AR DHNGRA P RRNE47 - EERR/RN
“E-RFZAZT—HB - BEAERNeERE
HALEMSBEKX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FE U RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

do A Se
18 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 18 kG hF 2R (&)
Notes: (continued) BcE - (8)
(b)  Amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured and bear interest at rates o) BREECERAREERRIZEGETHR
mutually agreed between relevant parties except for the balance of HK$59,000 HEMFIE S - EESREE 59,000 (=%
(2015: HK$50,000) which is interest-free. — R4 : BH¥50,0007T) BRE
Amounts due from joint ventures under non-current assets of HK$264,171,000 BIERBDEERTZERAECERK
(2015: HK$329,974,000) are considered equity in nature and HK$137,074,000 7 #264,171,000t( =2 — A F: B
(2015: HK$908,092,000) are not repayable within one year while amounts due 329,974,000 ) # 1R B = B kB
from joint ventures under current assets are repayable on demand. ¥137,074,0007t( — & — 1 F: B K

908,092,000 7T) 7R —F MR AEE - T/E
MBAEIE T 2 ERE BRERFRANIZERE

i o
The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to joint ventures under current BRBEE /BEETZREK TENFEEE
assets/liabilities approximate their fair values. BRR 2 REEREEQARERS
The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to joint ventures are denominated U FER A S RERRZREEATIE
in the following currencies: MR

2016

—E-NEF

HK$'000

BT T
Hong Kong dollar pitid 401,304 710,308
Renminbi ARE (53,230) 527,808

(c) The aggregate summarised financial information of Group's joint ventures that (©) ERTEAZAEESECXBIBERME
are not individually material is set out below: s

The Group's share of total comprehensive REBFTE2E S H4A%8
expenses (25,407) (28,753)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's KREBF ISR S ERER Y
interests in these joint ventures REREE 520,705 1,510,132
(d) No charge on the interests in joint ventures for the purpose of securing (d) WEMGAECEZESHEER  FAERTAR
banking facilities granted to the Group and a joint venture partner (2015: EEN —ZEEPERBEZRTEEZER
HK$174,213,000). (ZZ—hF : B%174,213,0007T) °
19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19 AHEZRE
2016
—E—XREF
HK$°000
BT T
Listed investment, at fair value: EHRE - mARE:
— equity securities listed overseas (note a) — I LT 2R ES (Mizta) 40,015 25,627
Unlisted investments, at fair values: FELTRE  RANE:
— equity securities —BARESH 7,760 7,750
— private funds (note b) —FLEES (Fistb) 81,653 167,715
89,413 175,465
129,428 201,092
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 19 AIEEZRE (&)

The carrying values of available-for-sale investments are denominated in ARHEZREZREETA TS REN
the following currencies:

2016 PAONES)
—E—XEF —ZE—hHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Euro L7 - 11,852
US dollar eI 81,021 152,305
Vietnam Dong M E 40,015 25,627
Others Efh 8,392 11,308
129,428 201,092
Notes: B eE
(a)  The fair value of the listed investment of the Group is determined based on (a) ALEEEMREZARBEIIREBRX SR
the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchange. 25 BANBETE °
(b)  The fair values of the private funds of the Group are primarily determined (b)) AEBZAEESZAABENHEBEEELD
based on the quoted market prices of the underlying listed investments. KREZ TIHMEETE °
20 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20 BREFRYE
2016 PAONES)
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BB T T
At beginning of the year F1) 1,412,825 1,168,207
Exchange realignment IE 5 SR (71,308) -
Additions NE 362,541 244,618
Acquisition of Dolce Field (note 43(b)(ii)) U RE &P B (BI3E 43(b) (i) 546,750 -
Transfer to properties for sale EEFEME (779,984) -
At end of the year FR 1,470,824 1,412,825
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBMEREINE -
Non-current assets ERBNEE 1,128,747 789,476
Current assets MENVA B 342,077 623,349
1,470,824 1,412,825
The balances are related to property development projects in Changchun FEERERRRRET MK EERIE
and Chengdu, Mainland China. BB -
The borrowing cost capitalised to properties under development is ERPMEER 2 BRKARERE TR
disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. KMsEe HE -
Properties under development are classified as current assets unless BRAMEODERRBERE - BRIEFHE
the construction periods of the relevant projects are expected to B2 @REE B E EELEERTK -
complete beyond normal operating cycle. The amounts classified as GREAERDEECSHEENTERERR
non-current assets were not expected to be realised within the next T EAAREE o

twelve months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE U RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

21 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

21. At RBEE

2016
S

HK$°000
B¥TT

Deposits paid for a property development
project (note a)
Others HAh

Notes:

(a)  The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in
Changchun, Mainland China.

(b)  Charges were created on the other non-current assets with total carrying value

of HK$21,579,000 (2015: HK$21,826,000) for the purpose of securing banking
facilities granted to the Group.

22 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed investments: LEHRE
Held for trading FIEEEAE
— debt securities —E%ES
- equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LM ZRAEES
— equity securities listed overseas — BN LT 2 BRARRE
— exchange-traded funds —RHFMEEES
— mutual and hedge funds —BEREFES
Unlisted investments: ELEMIRE :
Held for trading HFIEEEAZ
— debt securities —EIBE 5
— equity linked notes —RERREE
— mutual and hedge funds —BEREFES
Designated upon initial recognition RAIE ERIF 1515
— debt securities —BEBES

The fair values of the listed investments of the Group are determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant
exchanges and the unlisted investments of the Group are determined
based on financial models or with reference to quoted prices from
relevant financial institutions.
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EN—EMEERER 2k (fiEa)

64,104 87,215
57,019 66,954
121,123 154,169

BiRE -

(a) FEHBATEAMEED —AYERREARZ
EffiEE -

(b) BRMEAZEB21,679,000 (=T —HEF:

21,826,0007T) 2 KA FE R BN B E O FHER -
ERETAKERITERZER -

22 BAREIABEREZRE

2016 2015

—E—XRE —ZE—RF

HK$°000
BYTT

HK$'000
BT

296,016 129,890
46,454 65,195
26,038 11,746

2,717 592
- 1,378

371,225 208,801

55,265 40,661
- 7,816
79,358 75,382
= 31,674
134,623 155,633
505,848 364,334

AEBEz FTREZ AR BENREBERSH
Pz miBEABMERE  MASKEZIEL
MEREZDAEDRYBEAEE - %22
KEBHPBHEZWE -



22

23

24

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or loss
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar paticd
Japanese Yen H
Renminbi AR
US dollar ET
Others E At
INVENTORIES

22

23

R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

BRARBIABREE2RE (K)

BAREIIABREE ZIRE 2 REETIA
TINEEREL

Raw materials R
Finished goods BURK i
Consumables EAYR

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$590,829,000 (2015: HK$712,543,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with total carrying value of
HK$81,994,000 (2015: HK$22,983,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.

PROPERTIES FOR SALE

Unamortised prepaid land leases REESHTBN TS
- Hong Kong — B
— Mainland China — B
Development costs RN

Properties for sale included the Group's share of joint operation with an
aggregate book value of HK$18,129,000 (2015: HK$18,129,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$439,334,000 (2015: HK$10,441,000).

24

2015

—T—RF

HK$'000

BT T

49,171 65,195

17,654 11,756

31,032 7,816

406,882 279,567

1,109 -

505,848 364,334

3

2016
—E—RE
HK$'000
BET T

3,957 86,990

131,216 65,802

1,144 2,011

136,317 154,803

ERRAEIHIIAEEKNE 2 FERR
575 16590,829,000C ( ZE—FHF: B
712,543,000 7T) °

BEE4A{E)81 81,994,000 L (—Z T — 14 : /8
¥ 22,983,000 7T) 2 FEEMEER - (ERET
REBIBITEEZER -

FEME

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZT—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

15,882 17,766

544,042 7,581

673,104 19,020

1,233,028 44,367

FEVELERmEAE A 18,129,000 7T
—E R B118,129,000T) 2 ANEE

PG EKE -
BEETNABERAZDERERE

#439,334,0007c( — & — A F: B K
10,441,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE U RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

25 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

25 FEUWERFX

GBS REMRE

Trade debtors B 5 RIEER
Less: Provision for impairment W REREE

B D REBERR - R

Trade debtors, net

Retention receivables FEMUREE 2IE
Less: Provision for impairment W RERE

Retention receivables, net FEWIRBFTE - F5

HoAth fE AR TR

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in
each of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade
debtors is 60 days, except for insurance business where credit period
granted to certain debtors is over 60 days.

The ageing analysis of trade debtors, net is as follows:

FibRe RIENFIA

0 - 60 days 0-60X
- 90 days -90K
Over 90 days #I0K

As at 31 March 2016, gross trade debtors balances totaling

HK$32,452,000 (2015: HK$45,629,000) were individually determined
to be impaired, which were related to customers that were in financial
difficulties. The management assessed that only a portion of these
balances was expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
provision for impairment of HK$27,099,000 was recognised (2015:

HK$24,686,000). The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. The movement in the provision for impairment during the year

is as follows:

2016
—~E
HK$'000
BETT
641,104 669,863
(27,099) (24,686)
614,005 645,177
309,785 262,502
(33,570) (33,570)
276,215 228,932
197,267 361,617
1,087,487 1,235,726

AEBHERZOLEBEPEELAR2F
B - Bﬁf%¥ﬁ DEBZETEPHNEE

HHB6e0X K TESERFZFHEEHA
60K °
B HEBERT - FEZEEROTWT ¢
2016 2015
—RE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI
535,860 501,743
22,395 38,642
55,750 104,792
614,005 645,177

R_E—RNE=ZA=+— EX@EWXI
HEFESBUBETBERE L BB
32,452, oooﬁ(:;f FF - B 45, 629 000
gL)  BERWEEAS TRE - BEEEBZ
TG TBEREREWNEE o SRR o Bt -
R BRI ER S BB 27 ,099,000 L (==
— R4 : B¥E 24,686,000 7T) o ANE [E N MRk
I EEBFETMERR - RAFEERER
ﬁz“@mw:

At beginning of the year F1)

Exchange realignment b 5%
Impairment loss recognised BRI (EE1E
Impairment loss written back B EEREEE
Uncollectable amounts written off MEE AT E 2 £ 58
At end of the year FR
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2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
BETT
24,686 19,920
(99) (118)
9,797 11,251
(1,189) (88)
(6,096) (6,279)
27,099 24,686




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade debtors that are not considered
to be impaired is as follows:

R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

25 W - FHEERBECKE ()

TR TRES E S RUER B0
T

Neither past due nor impaired I 8 B slR (B
Up to 60 days past due #HI60 KA
61-90 days past due w61 - 90K
Over 90 days past due #HRIE 90 K
Amount past due but not impaired B EERRE
Total “azE

Trade debtors balances that are past due but not impaired mainly relate
to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s customers for
more than six months with no history of default in the past.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade debtors are denominated in
the following currencies:

Australian dollar SBIT
Hong Kong dollar pidins
Macau Pataca JRFHE
Renminbi AREE
US dollar ETT
Others HAth

As at 31 March 2016, retention receivables amounted to HK$33,570,000
(2015: HK$33,570,000) were individually determined to be impaired,
on which the Group experienced unexpected difficulties during the
collection process from the customers. The management assessed that
the balance was not expected to be recovered and full provision for
impairment loss was recognised.

The carrying amounts of retention receivables and other debtors as at
31 March 2016 and 2015 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of debtors and receivables as at 31 March 2016
and 2015 approximated their fair values.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments included the Group’'s share of
receivables of HK$2,010,000 (2015: HK$785,000) in relation to a joint
operation.

Charges were created on the debtors, deposits and prepayments with
total carrying value of HK$63,320,000 (2015: HK$49,204,000) for the
purpose of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

2016 2015
—E—XREF —ZT—ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BEEFIT
324,483 212,584
226,473 383,567
15,880 18,614
41,816 9,469
284,169 411,650
608,652 624,234

BERECBNEZERITRFEHRIZEEK
RAREZEPEB/NEABBEBRGCEZA
THRAFER -

REEEZRYERRZREETIA TG
ARRENL

2015

=

HK$'000

BETT

36,376 12,441
491,578 519,219
15,338 37,926
10,098 13,888
47,651 43,261
12,964 18,442
614,005 645,177

HE-Z—RF=A=+—0 EKRE
FRIB A 33,570,000 L( —F—RHF : Bl
33,570,000 7T) BRI EE A FRE - T
AEEPEEFPRERFBREF B FERY
SN EE o IREIRE 251G - TEERR AR
HERIWZBEERBRERRE -

R-E-—RFEFR-ZT-RF=A=+—8H"
JEUK (R R SRR N H A EW AR R 2 PR (E = 2
IABEE R AREREN -

R-FB—ARER-FT-AF=A=1t—H8"
FEU AR R I e R R 2 IR EE B A A (B4R

EO

BRER TR RBEARBEARND BE
REBMB B —EEEEE L2 BEER
o ABH2,010,000 (T —FF B
785,000 7T) °

BRTH 48 (B8 % 63,320,000 T (ZZE— R4 : &
#49,204,00070) 7 FEUWBRSK ~ R HRE KT8
NHREEEEE  FARTASEERTEER
ZHER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

26 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 26 RAENIRERNZEFWE XRzR

WORK 15
2016 PAOKES)
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Contracts in progress at end of the year: RERZEIRAEL :
Contract costs incurred BEAZ B 8,705,640 8,057,470
Recognised net gains B iR 55 68,702 229,494
8,774,342 8,286,964
Less: Progress billings L EE IR (9,589,729) (9,105,012)
(815,387) (818,048)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEREINRE -
Amounts due from customers for contract EBENREEEARE L TIZRER
work included in current assets BREUWE 2 58 119,283 133,437
Amounts due to customers for contract EERERREDAEARE N TIEER
work included in current liabilities BEINZ3IE (934,670) (951,485)
(815,387) (818,048)
Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to ALK TIRKENE PN AB 934,000 7T
HK$934,000 (2015: HK$37,517,000) and included in creditors. —ZT—FRF B 37,517,0000) EBRER
FETBRFRA ©
27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 TTHEMBIA
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Financial (liabilities)/assets in respect PHEMBIT A (BR) AE
of derivative financial instruments
— interest rate swap contracts (note a) —MEEE L (HiEa) (7.231) (4,677)
— foreign currency forward contracts (note b) ~ —=HASNE A 4 (FizEb) (720) 4,650
- call option (note ¢) — R AR (faEC) - 18,073
(7,951) 18,046
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEREINR -
Non-current assets ERBEE - 18,073
Current assets MEVEE 1,606 13,220
Current liabilities mEAaE (9,557) (13,247)
(7,951) 18,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The derivatives are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Their fair values are determined with reference to
fair values of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices
from counterparties. The net carrying amounts of derivatives are
denominated in the following currencies:

27

R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

TEMBITA (&)

TETAREMEMRZAAENE - TE
TEZARETREAIHERTAZ TSR
REXETWEMmMTE - TETAZREF
BETATIERE BB

Australian dollar SBRIT
Euro ¢S
Hong Kong dollar ot
US dollar ETT
Others HAth
Notes:

(a)

Interest rate swap contracts of the Group with a total notional amount of
HK$800,000,000 (2015: HK$1,600,000,000) were entered to swap floating
interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap between different floating
rates. These contracts will mature on 10 October 2018 (2015: period from 29
September 2015 to 10 October 2018).

Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group with a total notional amount
up to HK$239,328,000 (2015: HK$362,815,000) were entered to swap various
foreign currencies to other cross currencies. These contracts will mature within
the period from 5 April 2016 to 5 February 2018 (2015: period from 1 April 2015
to 16 June 2017).

The fair value of the call option was assessed at nil as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$18,073,000). This resulted in a fair value loss of HK$18,073,000 (2015:
HK$7,972,000) included under other income, net of the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 March 2015 (the “Valuation Date”), the fair value was
assessed by Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent
valuers, using a number of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
analysis, binominal option pricing and liquidation preference pricing models. The
significant inputs into the model included the value of the equity interest at the
Valuation Date, exercise price, expected life of the option, annual risk-free rate
and expected volatility which was based on the statistical analysis of volatility of
weekly share prices of comparable companies over the last three years before
the Valuation Date.

(248) 13,200

96 (7,768)

(7,231) 4,677)

372 18,073

(940) (782)

(7,951) 18,046

B

@ AREAEIDFEEHAETHELETH

BRI 2R AR IR A L) - K
HFE S A 800,000,000 (ZFE—HEF ¢
7511,600,000,0007T) © LEEE IR =T
—N\F+A+A(ZE—"F : RZT—AF
NAZ+HAAZE=Z—\F+A+HR)EEH -

b AEEAETRINEIEE AR MR N EE AT
RHNESH) - Hie 25 &5 A7 239,328,000
JTL(ZZ A« B1362,8150007T) © HEAL
BR_E—ANFNAREE-_Z—/\&-AHRA
HEAN(ZE—AF : RZT—RFMNA—AZ
ZE—FNAHNHERER) BIEE o

© REHER-T—XRE-A=1+—HZ2Ah#E
Tz AE(ZZT—RF 5% 18,073,0007T)
EMSIBA R EEEER18,073,000L (==
— R B 7,972,00070) 5t AL A B SR
REMBA - FEEAT - R_T—AF=A
=t+—B(#EB]D ZARBIHBLEER
LRI TR B ET AR ARERRES
RESN - ZEARETERSEELETE
BREZBTERG T - ZIEXZEZHA
YIRBIEMERMREEE - TEE - HiEE
FTHARR « FEERRFIE RTEEKIE - BHIK
EATTE LA RINEEB A =0T ARE
RIRFET DT AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FE U RRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

28 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity period over three months, short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and cash
placed with financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets
approximate their fair values.

28 BITHEERAE

RIOTEFLASREMBRS - REIHH
RAE =A< BHERTFR - RA I
R =1{EA AR ZERRITFERREFAY
BREZRE HWEEEZREEREAR
ERE -

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITER

Unpledged bank deposits maturing after
three months

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in the
following currencies:

={EARBIEZ BRI TIF K

1,374,081 2,413,878
333,410 143,565
301,791 105,179

2,009,282 2,662,622

RITEFRREZEREDATINEERE

fi :

Australian dollar SBIT
Canadian dollar g
Euro R 7%
Hong Kong dollar ok
Macau Pataca JRPEE
Renminbi AREE
Singapore dollar KT
US dollar E
Others Hith

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's bank balances of HK$333,410,000
(2015: HK$143,565,000) were pledged to banks for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2016, the effective interest rate on short-term bank
deposits of the Group was 1.0% (2015: 1.0%) per annum; and these
deposits had an average maturity of 73 days (2015: 22 days).

As at 31 March 2016, bank balances and cash of HK$95,411,000 (2015:
HK$124,084,000) were held in Mainland China and are subject to local
exchange control regulations, under which the balances could not be
exported freely out of Mainland China. The repatriation of funds out
of Mainland China is possibly conducted by way of dividends or other
means as complied to the regulations.
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2,135 30,780
27,108 19,434
1,875 12,448
1,254,183 1,922,664
6,833 32,597
85,102 289,048
6,522 10,255
588,330 319,834
37,194 25,662
2,009,282 2,662,622

HE-_Z-—R"E=A=+—0 K&£EE
1T4E1E78 333,410,000 T (—E—F4FE :
#143,665,0007T) BB FIRIT - tEAE T
REBRITEEZER -

HE-_ZT-— X F=-A=+—H0 A£EEZE
HETERZERENER1.0% (ZE—h
F:1.0%)  WEFRZFARNEBED A A
T3R(ZE—FF 1 22K) °

HE-Z—XRE=A=1+—0 #ERHE
A2 IR1T4617 IR £ 781 95,411,000 7T (=
T—F 4 B 124,084,000 7T ) BIEEE
SNEEBHRE - Bt WEEFTEEHE
MR - BES ] FERREHHMETIR
FEZ A A AR A o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

29 CREDITORS, BILLS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

29 ENKRY - BARE - FARERE

RER

2016
o

HK$°000
BETT

2015
—ZT—hF
HK$'000
BT T

Trade creditors and bills payable B RNERRENERE 211,982 249,154
Retention payables FERHREE KIE 151,978 113,679
Deposits received BIFEALS 55,357 649,585
Accrued contract costs TERA LR 422,302 84,221
Other creditors and accruals EENERRIERER 456,118 360,058
1,297,737 1,456,697
The ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as follows: B O RMNERRENRIE ZBREDITIAT -

2016 PAONES)

—E—RF —T—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

0 - 60 days 0-60Xk 175,503 223,334
61 - 90 days 61 -90K 17,192 9,502
Over 90 days #190K 19,287 16,318
211,982 249,154

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable are
denominated in the following currencies:

REE 2 B S RENER R ENER 2 REE

TIATINEE BB

2016 PAONES)

—E—REF —ZT—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Euro BLZE 10,334 -
Hong Kong dollar ot 146,242 204,141
Macau Pataca SBPIHE 21,226 9,963
US dollar ET 18,684 21,124
Others Hit 15,496 13,926
211,982 249,154

The carrying amounts of retention payables and other creditors as at
31 March 2016 and 2015 were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi.

The carrying amounts of creditors and payables as at 31 March 2016 and
2015 approximated their fair values.

Creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals included the Group's
share of liabilities of HK$1,249,000 (2015: HK$776,000) in relation to a
joint operation.

REE-RFR_ZT-RF=A=+—H"
JEASS (R B8 SR IR N ELA B AN PR SR 2 R T (B DA VB
BRARB BB -

R-E—XEFR-T-AF=A=+—8 "
FEMERRREMNREZ REEREAAER

Eo

ERRR - BERE - TARSRIERER
NEBEAEEREHE—ERELEEEZ
BEABE1,249000L( —E—RF : B
776,0007C) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE—

30

E-REZRA=T-HILFE

OUTSTANDING INSURANCE CLAIMS

Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually
settled within one year:

—  Employee compensation
—  Motor third party liability
—  Public liability

The claims development, net of reinsurance, are disclosed as follows:

30

RARREBRE

THRBRB 2 RBRE—RTIE—FRL

/B

NREE

FRlE SR (R BRR) BN T

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
“BEN\F -“BENF -B-BF -B--§ -E--fF -E-=fF -E-MF -E-1f -E-Rf @
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETr BYTn B%Tn B%Tn BTz BT B%Tn  #%Tn  B%Tn BT
Estimate of cumulative claims fEEt 25t & (E
At end of accident year BIERRER 88,767 39,575 57615 87099 131,582 155800 175730 161,549 140,112
One year later —% 84866 50,541 57,145 54009 105001 122,921 139,004 109,443 -
Two years later e 55288 45852 52,207 67,992 113384 137,083 152,912 - -
Three years later —Fk 44324 40146 46556 63648 91,456 120451 - - -
Four years later Mm% 44418 38954 43356 62724 87,170 - - - -
Five years later hEk 45508 39814 42,636 60,170 - - - - -
Six years later NEE 46,140 40427 42,595 - - - - - -
Seven years later tER 46,952 40,438 - - - - - - -
Eight years later NFi& 46,971 - - - - - - - -
Cumulative claims ZiEE 46,971 40438 42595 60,170 87170 120451 152912 109443 140,112 800,262
Less: Cumulative payments ~ J5i : 221508 (46,022)  (38,878)  (40,795)  (57,649)  (76,810)  (84,629)  (68,662)  (25591)  (8,707) (447,743)
Claims outstanding at RZE—R%
31 March 2016 =A=t-H
LRRR(E 949 1,560 1,800 2,521 10360 35822 84250 83852 131,405 352519
Claims outstanding at RZT-1%
31 March 2015 =ZA=t-A
LRRR(E 1380 1752 1,881 9288 25175 79785 107,790 148,997 - 376,048

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will
occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting
claim. The principal risk the Group faces under such contracts is that
the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount
of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims,
severity of claims, actual benefits paid which are greater than originally
estimated and subsequent development of long tail claims.

The Group manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits,
approval procedures for transactions that involve new products or
that exceed set limits, pricing guidelines, centralised management of
reinsurance and monitoring of emerging issues.

The Group manages the variability of risks by careful selection and
the implementation of underwriting strategies, arrangements of
reinsurance, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing
claims as well as the investigation of possible fraudulent claims. The
Group also enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing
of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future
developments that can negatively impact the Group.

The Group's underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced
portfolio and is based on a large portfolio of similar risks over a number
of years and, as such, reduces the variability of the outcome.

128 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RpaHBET ZREBRTIELCAREFZR
% BRESBEc I TERRREMHLES
ZRERH  AEBERBLEANEE T
ERBABERRERENEEBARRAE
BREE - WHXHREHAE  REBRSER
B BERENBHREG RBRIEERE

BREVE -

REBBBEGRREE  SIEESHED
HEHRBRH 2 EMERF - AL EBIE
5~ S IE BRI % B R B B PR R DA
EIEERERER o

AREBEFEATHAERRAR 28N - (F4
BERERARRKR - REDR - BBRR
RRBENFEAEETRFEREZRE
AR AEEHFREZRE - ARETRETT
BT M AR IEREE 2R LR A
BRI AREBER T MFE 2 TR FRHARRE
Rz ER -

REE A RKI RS —ED AT FEH
HAMEZZFRER —ERRZEUER
AR EEAAS UREHRTIEE N -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

31 BANK BORROWINGS 31 BITER
2016
—E—REF
HK$°000
BT T
Bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITEFEEHOT -
Within one year —FR 960,852 589,848
More than 1 year but not exceeding 2 years ~ —&F A _HE BB E 529,521 823,266
More than 2 years bur not exceeding 5 years M A B BB RF 809,412 1,258,047
Exceeding 5 years BidRF 812,751 856,967
3,112,536 3,528,128
Less: Amount due within one year disclosed & : ZERBIAGBAFEEIL R —FR
under current liabilities Rz &5 (960,852) (589,848)
Amount due over one year disclosed EIERB B BERNETELBR—FA
under non-current liabilities Eal B o 2,151,684 2,938,280
Represented by: EYy-
Secured HEMR 1,817,931 1,962,295
Unsecured I 1,294,605 1,565,833
3,112,536 3,528,128
The carrying values of the bank borrowings approximate their fair values EKZAEZTILF IR R B - $B1T71E =&
as majority of the borrowings carried interest at floating rate. The bank ZEREMERENAERSE c RITERTIAT
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: Y| EHE AR
2016
ZE—REF
HK$'000
BET T
Canadian dollar meXT 26,360 22,486
Hong Kong dollar B 1,970,688 2,534,332
Renminbi AR 259,200 94,375
US dollar xET 856,288 876,935
3,112,536 3,528,128
The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings as at 31 R=ZA=+—08  RITERZERFFEN
March were as follows: T

Canadian dollar EXTT 1.9% 2.3%
Hong Kong dollar paticd 2.4% 2.3%
Renminbi AR 4.7% 5.9%
US dollar Y 4.2% 4.2%
Bank borrowings of HK$1,817,931,000 (2015: HK$1,962,295,000) were IRITERUEYE1,817,931,000 T ( — T —F4F ¢
secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 13, 715 1,962,295,000 7T ) Jh AR £ E & E EIR
14,18, 21, 23, 25 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements. o RERA SRR EEIZ 141821 »

23 25 M 28 N EE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL 32 RA&

Number of
shares
=

Share capital
B
HK$'000
BT

Ordinary shares of HK$1.25 each SFREEBE 125 2 TRk
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and R-ZE—NFMA—H - - _T—HF
31 March 2016 —A=t-—HRER=_ZE—XRE=A
=+—H 540,000,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBERZE :
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMA—H 299,990,835 374,989
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RIE AR BETEIZ TR 5
schemes 1,937,605 2,422
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—R"F=R=+—H 301,928,440 377,411
At 1 April 2014 RZZF—MHFmPA—H 292,874,003 366,093
Issue of shares under scrip dividend RIE AR BETEIZ TR 5
schemes 7,116,832 8,896
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=1+—H 299,990,835 374,989

130 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_Z—XEZA=+—HLLFE

33 RESERVES 33 f&f&

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARARERA AR RS

At 1 April 2015

Profit for the year

Fair value surplus of properties for own
use

Exchange difference on translation of
operations of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

Share of reserves of an associate

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments transferred to
consolidated income statement

Fair value adjustments on the derivative
financial instruments designated
as cash flow hedge in respect of
interest rate swap contracts

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Dividends paid

Issue of shares under scrip dividend
schemes

Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe
Deco (note 43(olil)

At 31 March 2016

ERER
BRNEZ MR ERS

)
THHE2 B
HAES AN

AERE

EEAREREHN
fTEBBIARR
HEmHaD

DAERE

FE2ENECR

Bfike

RENRKSHE
Bkl

R BMEF(E Cafe Deco
s (M 43(0)i)

e SESLERE

Capital Investment Otherassets  Hedging Exchange
Share  Capital redemption revaluation revaluation revaluation Other fluctuation  Retained
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Total
&% k& HfEE B HERE
RitaE &ABE RORE ERRRE EMREE  EMRE  BMBE  FBRR  RER ]
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
EMTn  ERTn  ABTn  BBTn  BBTR  EMTR EMTn  E¥Tn  ERTn B%Tx
(note)
(&)
680214 364,096 8,785 73978 566,711 (1,801) 1057 402446 5418776 7,514,262
- - - - - - - - 315056 315,056
- - - - 51,420 - - - 4144 55,564
- - - - - - - (137,248) - (137,248)
- - - - (4,254) 1,446 (1,057) - - (3,865)
- - - (48538) - - = = - (4853
- - - 17,160 - - - - - 17,160
- - - 5 - (685 - - - (6857)
- - - (31378) 47,166 (5,411) (1,057)  (137.48) 319200 191,272
- - - - - - - - (360377)  (360,377)
2813 - - - - - - - - 2813
- 1,703 - - (322) - - 1,862 - 3243
704,087 365,799 8,785 42600 613555 (1212) - 267,060 537759 7372213

HitEBREEERLA

| &% 2016 131
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A I ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

33 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 33 fifs (&)

Equity attributable t oe utyho\ders of the Company

Capital  Investment  Other assets Hedgmg Exchange
Share Capital  redemption  revaluation  revaluation  revaluation ther  fluctuation  Retained
premium reserve feserve reserve reserve feserve reserve reserve profits

HKS 000
BT
At April 2014 RZE-MERA-A 597,284 364,057 8,785 57,658 598,351 (364) 1,057 494,063 4,127,247 6,248,138
Profit for the year FEEH - - - - - - - - 1537162 1537162
Change in fair value of properties for ~ BRYEZALEED
own use - - - - (4,144) - - - 4144 -

Exchange difference on translation of ~ BEENHEAR - BELH
operations of overseas subsidiaries,  RAEMECERMELE

associates and joint ventures UNEREER - - - - - - - (91617) - (91617
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A1 HHE 2 R A

investments DMEES - - - 28,365) - - - - - (28,365)
Impaiment loss on availableforsale  ATELHE 7 R EATAIE

investments transferred to FREAERANER

consolidated income statement - - - 44,685 - - - - - 44,685

Fair value adjustments on the derivative 16 AR & FiE 44
financial instruments designated NERBIALH
as cash flow hedge in respect of FlE=ie @A 16
interest rate swap contracts NMERZ - - - - - (1437) - - - (1437)

Total comprehensive income forthe B2 ENREE

year - - - 16,320 (4,144) (1,437) - (91,617) 1,541,306 1,460,428
Dividends paid EfRE - - - - - - - - T 9T
Issue of shares under scrip dividend ~ RIELRI 85T BIEARA

schemes 82,930 - - - - - - - - 82,930
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - - (2749 - - - - (2749
Deemed disposals of interests in RALEMENE

subsidiaries NAlZER - 39 - - - - - - - 39
At 31 March 2015 RZE-REZA=1-A 680,214 364,096 8,785 73978 566,711 (1,801) 1,067 402446 5418776 7,514,262
Note: The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the past ff5E - Zi%IEXEL£QIE%I§ZE$IE BiE

including redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation of group AAREM  EECEZDRMLABI
entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

34 DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years:

34 EEBIE

TXABHIALWMERELBEZ RFEER
ZEBRRBUEAG(BE) RAZ

Amortisation
Accelerated of goodwill

tax and
depreciation trademarks Revaluation
MEHIE #BIEEER  of properties Tax losses Others Total
HE e EffmE BIEEE Httr k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT BT BT T
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFNA—H 38,730 36,167 211,573 (41,068) 1,554 246,956
Exchange realignment 0 5 3% 32 (44) (5,470) 153 (653) (5,982)
(Credited)/charged to TFEReREx
consolidated income GUNVES
statement for the year (FFzE10)
(note 10) (140) 12,450 715 (5,441) 20,154
Deemed disposal of interest 17 & & Fifl Cafe Deco
in Cafe Deco (note 43(b)(i) 2 s (FIZE43(b)(1)) 334 (1,793) - 1,006 - (453)
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—"F=H
=t+—H 38,956 46,780 (39,194) (4,540) 260,675
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—NFNA—H 49,662 22,999 (44,553) (2,733) 228,565
Exchange realignment B AR 85 (26) 37 235 596
Charged to consolidated TEEERANER
income statement for Mk (FEE10)
the year (note 10) 2,479 13,194 3,448 4,052 31,291
Disposal of Peak Gain Limited & &I ERA ]
(note 43(b)(iv)) (BHZE43(b)iv)) (13,496) - - - (13,496)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—AF=H
=t+-A 38,730 36,167 (41,068) 1,554 246,966

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

REGHEEHBHINEKZE/INAGN - BTIE
ERIREEMBEEDFIRE o EEHIRLS
MEMTEIME B 2 AT

Deferred tax assets EERIBE E
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIBERE

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$2,425,039,000 (2015: HK$2,340,045,000) available for offset
against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset had been recognised
in respect of HK$150,855,000 (2015: HK$160,722,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$2,274,184,000 (2015: HK$2,179,323,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses were
losses of HK$131,039,000 and HK$152,831,000 (2015: HK$70,347,000
and HK$115,920,000) of subsidiaries in Mainland China and the United
States of America (“US") that will gradually expire until December 2020
and March 2035 respectively; the remaining tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

2016 PAOKES
—EB-—XE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT PEEEFIT
(18,547) (16,255)
279,222 263,211
260,675 246,956

HE-Z-XRNF=ZA=1t—H0 AE£EXH
B2 IEEE A8 2,425,039,000 L ( ==
— R4 B 2,340,045,0007T) - A AAEE
S TR 2 FERR T A1) o ELAR 5 150,855,000
T(=ZT — R F: ##160,722,0007C ) 2
RMEBEBEECERAECHEBERE - BARK
i R BEDATECR - MW ERESR TN 2 HIBEE
& #52,274184,000L( Z T — A F : B
2,179,323,0007T ) R ABIEEFH B E E -
RIEEEERE N R ENEARE ([
HDKBARERBEL N EZE T _FF+=
ARZZTE=R%=H 2% 131,039,0007T
N & #152,831,000( ZF —AF: B
70,347,000 7T & 5 % 115,920,000 7T ) ¢ M &4
T2 FIAES B AT R B A -

HtEBEEBRLE | F£H 2016 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE—

34

35
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DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2016, deferred tax liabilities of HK$30,237,000 (2015:
HK$24,081,000) had not been recognised for the withholding tax that
would be payable on the unappropriated earnings of certain subsidiaries.
Such amounts were expected to be reinvested.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had unrecognised deductible temporary
differences of HK$18,733,000 (2015: HK$75,587,000). No deferred tax
asset had been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Directors, the chief operating decision-maker,
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Directors consider the
business from a product/service perspective. Principal activities of the
segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering works for
aluminium window and curtain walls, building construction, building
supplies, electrical and mechanical and environmental engineering, lift
and escalator and pipe technology.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft,
aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment in securities.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and logistics, hotel operations and senior housing.

Food and beverage: Restaurant and bar.

Others: Sales and servicing of information technology equipment and
business machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles,
food trading and fresh produce supply.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement, except that it also includes the Group's
share of revenue of associates and joint ventures on a proportionate
consolidated basis. The sales from associates and joint ventures to the
Group and sales between individual associates and joint ventures are not
eliminated.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results. This measurement includes
the Group's share of results of associates and joint ventures on a
proportionate consolidated basis. Unallocated corporate expenses,
finance income and costs, income tax expenses and other major items
that are isolated and non-recurring in nature are not included in segment
results.

Segment assets mainly consist of current assets and non-current assets
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except
prepaid tax, unallocated bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and
other unallocated assets.

Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
except current income tax liabilities, bank borrowings, deferred tax
liabilities and other unallocated liabilities.

34

35

JEERE (%)

HE_Z—R"E=A=+—0 RABH#ET
B8 2 Rl R 93 R 2 ) 1 AT A Sk A 2 TR B A
RIEEFIE A &A1 30,237,000 (- Z—H
F ¢ #1524,081,00070) ¢ FEELSHRIBEESH
ERRE -

HE-_Z-—RF=A=+—HB A£EZK
R ] HUR B = 2 A 75 18,733,000 7T
(ZZ—H%F : B¥75587,0007T) ° FBHE
RO 4 R S 2 FE R B i F) A R /EIR $H B
ZATREREER - I kBRI ZR
BAFEREAE -

EEBREBEES(TELEREE)DEMMU
EHREAREZ REETELEDE - BEMN
ER/REAEEEER ZEPHBE2EE
ES 3 NE

RERMWMIRE  ARRERER BT
& EMEE - BERRRTIRE  FHEER
BB BB

R RIRE « —RRIRRES (TBERE - R
BEERERRR) REFKE -

WEYRERE  BRELEE  REEER
R EEBEEBERERE

B BREEE -
Hith : BABRREREABEZHE LR

B AERE
BRI -

BH MR RmE S EM;

DRWAZFETRNEGEWRmR 28T
KB BRI ASNIR B8 2K B 7R 5 B P A B
ERRANREBEERLIGAEEZHA -
BERRARAECEHE T AEEARER
BERR AL RERZ HEWARE

EFRBEIRREZFEFHEENR
R o L EBREREANEEPEE 2R A

BECERPIREERE LS - ROB
EXH  UBRARER  MEHXHE
HuEHNFERE 2T ERBTABER
DEREE -

DHREETECERBEEVBINRAREZ
MBEENIERBEE - ERENBE - K5
RRiTHRFERRE  REFIBREEREMAK
DEEERID -

DHREBIEZEEGAMBRARAREZ
RBEBELRERBEE EEMAEHEA
B RITER - BEEHREEREMARDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_Z—XEZA=+—HLFE

35 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 35 S EER(F)
Revenue and results WAREE
Construction
and Insurance
engineering and Food and
BER investment Property beverage
BRIRE REBEREE L/ BN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT T BT T BETT
For the year ended BZE-E-XE=A
31 March 2016 =t+-HILEE
REVENUE WA
Total revenue BRA 2,709,256 129,517 1,744,764 458,948 589,980 5,632,465
Inter-segment revenue ABEZEBA - (38,993) (45,495) - (10,214) (94,702)
Group revenue SEWA 2,709,256 90,524 1,699,269 458,948 579,766 5,537,763
Share of revenue of PR AR A RAEDE
associates and joint A
ventures 1,958,585 - 41,991 139,011 1,661,958 3,801,545
Proportionate revenue froma EHERE—HaEhsE
joint venture eliminated IR BIMA (10,050) - - - - (10,050)
Segment revenue SRR 4,657,791 90,524 1,741,260 597,959 2,241,724 9,329,258
RESULTS ES
Segment profit/(loss) SERR/ (FR) 290,273 16,233 402,637 (5,015) (140,683) 563,445

Included in segment profit/ 2 ¥E5EF],/(E518) B4 -

(loss) are:
Share of results of associates  FTfEH#E N R ELE 115,191 - 143 9,098 (7,500) 116,932
Share of results of joint FhaBEREE

ventures 59 - (25,466) - - (25,407)
Increase in fair value of REMEZRRELM

investment properties - - 31,997 - - 31,997
Depreciation and WEREE  HREXL

amortisation, net of

capitalisation (7,663) (157) (72,177) (21,131) (5,686) (106,814)
Impairment loss on amount  fEYr—FEES & R EIEZ 2

due from an associate REBRE - - - - (118,832) (118,832)
Impairment loss on goodwill B2 ZR(ERE - - (4,656) - - (4,656)
Impairment loss on available- A iH& Z 1% EHIE

for-sale investments BiE - (17,160) - - - (17,160)
Unrealised gain on derivative $T4HEET A RER

financial instruments Wes 79 3,690 - - - 3,769
Unrealised loss on BRORBINEREEY

investments at fair value RENREHAFE

through profit or loss - (26,550) - - - (26,550)
Write (down)/back of (Ms) / BOEEEA 2

inventories to net RFE FE

realisable value, net (175) - - - 2,014 1,839
Impairment loss on trade and & 5 R A EWES 2

other debtors BEBE (2,473) (14) (6,130) - (27) (8,644)
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35 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 35 DEER(H)

WA R & (8

Revenue and results (continued)

Construction
and Insurance
engineering and

Food and

investment Property beverage
HK$'000

HK$'000
BETR

HK$'000
BETT

HK$'000
BB

For the year ended 31 March HZ=-F—h&=H

2015 =t+—BILEE
REVENUE WA
Total revenue BIA 2,545,134 174,076 1,098,156 605,346 669,965 5,092,677
Inter-segment revenue vl ON - (19,906) (48,126) - (11,994) (80,026)
Group revenue SEMA 2,545,134 154,170 1,050,030 605,346 657,971 5,012,651
Share of revenue of PR A RA RAEhE

associates and joint A

ventures 2,154,243 - 60,512 95,026 2,235,519 4,545,300
Proportionate revenue froma BHHRE—HAEME

joint venture eliminated IR (15,545) - - - - (15,545)
Segment revenue LE:TON 4,683,832 154,170 1,110,542 700,372 2,893,490 9,542,406
RESULTS ES
Segment profit/(loss) SERR/ () 317,806 50,261 1,576,473 25,771 (139823 1,830,487
Included in segment profit/ #1857,/ (E58) B -

(loss) are:
Share of results of associates  FT{HEf & N AL 124,214 - 156 7,980 117,056 249,406
Share of results of joint FE a8 EEE

ventures 242 - (28,995) - - (28,753)
Increase in fair value of BEME AR BEIEM

investment properties - - 193,312 - - 193,312
Depreciation and EREE  HREXL

amortisation, net of

capitalisation (6,656) (180) (71,690) (29,435) (6,205) (114,166)
Impairment loss on property, #1% * BiE & 2R E

plant and equipment B - - - (3,452) - (3,452)
Impairment loss on amounts  FEYEE & 1\ IR S 2 ME

due from associates B - - (39) (307) (66,485) (66,831)
Impairment loss on amounts  [EMA & EERZRIE

due from joint ventures BB - - (153,874) - - (153,874)
Impairment loss on available- A& 2 % EME(E

for-sale investments BB - (17,639) - - (192,747) (210,386)
Unrealised (loss)/gain EBBIAEZRER

on derivative financial (18) s

instruments (77) (4,320 2,073 (2,802) (5,126)
Unrealised gain on BOREIIANBREEEY

investments at fair value RENREBENE

through profit or loss - 17,213 - - 17,213
Write (down)/back of (om0 BEFEEA#

inventories to net REEFE

realisable value, net (308) - - 2,434 2,126
Impairment loss on trade and &5 R EWEZ 2

other debtors REEE (3,156) (65) (7,857) (282) (20,475) (31,835)

ENBZHBAZRZERBELBKRED
SEREE -

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management
with reference to market prices.
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35 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Revenue and results (continued)
Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group's revenue in the
consolidated income statement as follows:

o FEUA

Total segment revenue

Add: Proportionate revenue from a joint venture

eliminated B A
Less: Share of revenue of associates and W T E AR REE
joint ventures A

Construction and installation contracts BERTESH
Sales of motor vehicles and others B R EAM 2 HE
Fresh produce supply R Ve
Maintenance and other services RE R EAIRS
Food and beverage B

Hotel operations B E &8

Sales and leasing of properties MEHEREE

Total revenue in the consolidated income statement
(note 5)

Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation is provided as
follows:

Segment profit S A
Unallocated corporate expenses ROMMEHEZ T
Finance income BRI
Finance costs 15 & A

Profit before taxation B 250 AR A

R BB IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F-A=1+—HLFE

35 PEER (&)

WA R & (&)
B BWANBAREBERGERERAZBA
HERIOT ¢

n:EBERE —MeEhEL

e Rz U (HEE5)

2016 2015
i —F-n%
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
9,329,258 9,542,406
10,050 15,545
t¥
1,538,034 1,766,890
1,133,865 1,103,482
506,699 1,131,615
442,098 388,041
139,011 95,026
37,391 30,456
4,447 29,890
3,801,545 4,545,300
5,637,763 5,012,651

DR NI BRI AT N 2 R T

2016 2015
—B—XREF —Z—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
563,445 1,830,487
(18,823) (24,698)
23,646 19,315
(105,156) (114,626)
463,112 1,710,478
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

35 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 35 PEER(E)
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Construction Insurance
and and Food and
engineering investment Property beverage Others Total
BER
BRIR RERRE L A Hify aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BT BYTR BT BETT
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-~E=A=t-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 1,852,348 1,234,580 9,784,395 126,133 649,017 13,646,473

Included in segment assets are: D EEEALE

Interests in associates FEBE ARz iR 469,955 - 2,294 97,220 351,601 921,070
Interests in joint ventures it A‘*ﬁ%z &ﬁn 11,755 - 508,950 - = 520,705
Amounts due from associates ~ EUEZ A AR 18,072 - - - 2 18,074
Amount due from a joint venture  FEIR— Fﬁ“ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ 59 - - - - 59
Additions to non-current REFREEE ()

assets (note) 15,442 153 936,088 30,092 3,266 985,041
LIABILITIES 8F
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,611,548 552,670 584,548 470 57,821 2,807,063
Included in segment liabilities are: D3R EALRE :
Amount due to an associate ER—HBE LR - - 240 - - 240
Amount due toajoint venture  JER—HIALLEEN - - 53,230 - - 53,230
At 31 March 2015 WZE-RF=A=1—H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEEE 1,551,076 1,308,137 10,822,428 332,455 809,834 14,823,930

Included in segment assets are: ~ HREEERE

Interests in associates e Nz ER 454,787 - 30,732 44,722 468,239 998,480
Interests in joint ventures Ffrf NA@%ZT&m 11,696 - 1,498,436 - - 1,510,132
Amounts due from associates ~ EMEHE R AR 10,102 - 915 - 281 11,298
Amount due from a joint venture  EY(—F A“ﬁ%% 50 - - - - 50
Additions to non-current %E?Fw@ﬁ? (PizE)

assets (note) 15,065 97 100,858 41,604 5,194 162,808
LIABILITIES g
Segment liabilities AEER 1,424,080 629,723 845,603 82,222 71,018 3,052,646

Included in segment liabilities is: ‘@J,\@%

Amounts due to associates EREEATER - - 29,400 285 - 29,685
Note: Bi3E

In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments (including EADHS  ERBDEETBEVB LA (BIFEMG
interests in associates and joint ventures) and deferred tax assets. BENRIREEDE#ER) REEHBEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

35 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 35 PEER(E)

Assets and liabilities (continued) EEREEE

Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and ’\*EQF&E\E BEENBEZHRIOT ¢
liabilities is provided as follows:

2016
— N

HK$°000
BETT

2015
—=—nE
HK$'000
BT T

Segment assets DEEEE 13,646,473 14,823,930
Prepaid tax TEfTFRIR 6,834 6,492
Unallocated bank balances and cash ROBLRITHEFTRIAS 838,810 473,574
Deferred tax assets IREFIBE & 18,547 16,255
Other unallocated assets EfbRAIEE 9,029 8,929
Total assets BEAE 14,519,693 15,329,180
Segment liabilities NEAE 2,807,063 3,052,646
Current income tax liabilities EHFMSHAaE 62,964 60,808
Bank borrowings RITIER 3,112,536 3,628,128
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE 279,222 263,211
Other unallocated liabilities HinknELBE 19,653 25,638
Total liabilities wafE 6,281,438 6,930,431

Geographical information

The Group’s operations in construction and engineering business are
mainly located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Australia.
Insurance and investment business is mainly conducted in Hong Kong.
Property business is mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
the US, Canada and Singapore. Food and beverage business is carried
out in Hong Kong, Macau and Australia. Other businesses are mainly
carried out in Hong Kong, the US, Canada and Thailand.

The associates’ and joint ventures’ operations in construction and
engineering business are mainly located in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Macau and Singapore. Property business is mainly carried out in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Food and beverage business is carried out
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Other businesses are carried out in
Mainland China and Australia.

K%E*kﬁifé*f&l%f%ﬁ%}%&%}% a3
B ORI RORIMNENE o RIR RIE KT
‘I%‘EE%%}J’E MEEBTEGCETE 5
BAi - XB - NEA R INEERE o B
EBAEES  BPIRRMEE - HMEBKA
TEERE  XB  MERRFEEE -

BERNRRAEREZRE &%WIE%%
FTEEEE - PENM - RPN E
1 e %%%WIREE/‘%&EPIWFMEVE
EREBERTBERTENMEE - HEH
I B P 3t SOBOMAE A o
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BHE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

35 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 35 ZEER(H)

HEEH (F)

Geographical information (continued)

Segment revenue by geographical areas

BHEHS ZABRA
Company Associates Company  Associates
and and joint and and joint
subsidiaries ventures subsidiaries ventures
APAR  HEARR
HEAH RELE : Qs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT A%Tn BN Tx BETT A%
Hong Kong Ak 2,947,593 551,792" 3,499,385 38 2,411,245 413,802" 2,825,047 30
Mainland China FEA 663,680 2,415,707 3,079,387 33 73,887 2,593,846 2,667,733 28
Macau EF 680,185 49,407 729,592 8 1,267,832 67,101 1,334,933 14
Australia SEM 195,751 506,699 702,450 7 164,663 1,131,615 1,296,168 13
us e 633,077 - 633,077 7 620,784 - 620,784 6
Canada nex 359,731 - 359,731 4 397,473 - 397,473 4
Singapore sk 12,594 267,403 279,997 3 13,318 322,954 336,272 4
Thailand ZE 34,553 - 34,553 - 53,455 - 53,455 1
Others Hft, 10,599 487 11,086 - 10,004 537 10,541 -
5537,763 3,791,495 9,329,258 100 5,012,651 4,529,755 9,542,406 100

' The proportionate revenue from a joint venture is eliminated. ! RE—BEEREIREOIMABHE S -
AEBERBFERELTEH 2 EFHESE - HE
ZE-RE=ZA=FT—BHLFE B
665,729,000 TTHI YT A B B I SE R A TA2 20
BB —INDRP - EAEE ZBKR AR 10%
AL (ZF—R%EF : B668,198,0007T)

The Group maintains a healthy and balanced portfolio of customers.
For the year ended 31 March 2016, HK$665,729,000 (2015:
HK$668,198,000) was derived from a single external customer in
construction and engineering segment and accounted for more than
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

AT REMBIA(BEMLBERRRAE
R ER) MEERIREENIMNZbERE D
ZIEmBEEREENN -

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-current
assets other than financial instruments (including interests in associates
and joint ventures) and deferred tax assets analysed by geographical
areas:

Non-current assets

EREBEE
2016 PAONES)
—EB—XE —ZT—HRF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong B 3,533,080 3,610,900
Mainland China AR A 1,940,771 1,653,968
us ESE 1,252,701 1,278,834
Singapore ¥ hns 472,632 481,684
Canada meEx 169,062 172,022
Thailand =E 9,512 13,147
Macau SR 2,238 22,828
Australia SEM 263 10,684
Others Hit 7,731 6,691
7,387,990 7,250,658
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F-A=1+—HLFE

36 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

36 MEREMELEE ZRERR

RETREND  REBEGEAZEHE
AR AR - BAHE REM TR UERE D

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business
combinations, licenses, trademarks, favourable leases and others are
allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from
such intangible assets. The respective carrying amounts as at 31 March

RERRERZELEETREZREE
BB R-_T-RNER-_ZE-HF=A

2016 and 2015 had been allocated as follows:

=t+—H BEZEREEDESRNAT

Goodwill License
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cost 5%
Construction and engineering R R MR T A2

- roads, drainage and waterworks — B - B RKIETRE - 26,534 -
Insurance and investment R RIEE - - 4,664
Property LY/

- cold storage and public bonded —REEERABREE

warehouse (note a) (MffzEa) 66,027 3,000 =

— senior housing (note b) —ZEk& (WiEb) 569,104 = 5,199

Others Eh - - 4,530
635,131 29,534 14,393
Accumulated amortisation/ Rty RERE

impairment loss
Construction and engineering REE M TR

- roads, drainage and waterworks — B - B RKEIE - (26,534) —
Insurance and investment RBe R IGE - - (4,551)
Property LY/

— cold storage and public bonded —RERERARREE

warehouse (note a) (MfzEa) (1,461) (3,000) -

— senior housing (note b) — L& (i) (4,656) - (4,803)

Others HAh - - (1,904)
(6,117) (29,534) (11,258)

Net book value at R-E-XRE=ZA=+—H
31 March 2016 ZREFE 629,014 - 3,135
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36

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Cost
Construction and engineering
— roads, drainage and
waterworks

Insurance and investment

Property
- cold storage and public

bonded warehouse (note a)

— senior housing (note b)

Food and beverage
— restaurant and bar

Others

Accumulated amortisation/
impairment loss
Construction and engineering
— roads, drainage and
waterworks

Insurance and investment

Property
— cold storage and public

bonded warehouse (note a)

— senior housing (note b)

Food and beverages
— restaurant and bar

Others

Net book value at
31 March 2015
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Goodwill
G
HK$'000
BT
5%
RREE M TR

—85% - RBIOKB IR

36 BEREMELEE ZRERNR(E)

License

b
HK$'000
ART T

Trademarks
of
restaurant

HK$'000
BT

Favourable

leases
BAEE
HK$'000
BET T

- 26,534 - - -
R R IRE - - - - 4,663
W%
—REEERABIREA
(Pfff5Ea) 66,027 3,000 - - -
—ZEhE (f7Eb) 568,372 - - - 5,193
B
—ZRE&BE 193,054 - 18,094 11,855 -
Hib - - - - 4,530
827453 | 29534 18094 11855 14,386
2y RERE
BRI TR
— K BRERKEIRE
- (26,534) - - -
R IR E - - - - (4,663)
SIS
—RERERAZRER
(FiwEa) (1,461) (3,000) - - -
—ZEk e (3Eb) - - - - (3,068)
B
—ZRE B (135,808) - (5,610) (11,855) -
Eith - - - - (1,904)
_187.269)  (29534) (56100 (11855 (9,635
R=-B-FEF=A=+—H
ZREFE 690,184 - 12,484 - 4,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL AND OTHER

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if
there are indications that they might be impaired.

The Group tests other intangible assets for impairment whenever there
is an indication that they might be impaired.

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired
require estimations of the higher of the value in use or fair value less
cost to sell. Both approaches require the entity to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from CGUs and suitable discount rates in
order to calculate present value.

The recoverable amount of CGU in restaurant and bar business are
determined from fair value less cost to sell approach while recoverable
amounts of CGUs for other businesses are determined from value-in-use
calculations approach.

The key assumptions for both approaches requires the entity to estimate
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs. Management estimates appropriate discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs.

Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market. Management
determined budgeted growth rates and gross margins based on past
performance and market expectation. The discount rates reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant CGUs.

(a) Cold storage and public bonded warehouse business
Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$64,566,000 (2015:
HK$64,566,000) is allocated to the cold storage and public bonded
warehouse business. The estimated recoverable amount is
determined based on value-in-use approach. The calculation uses
post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the
period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per annum and a
9% discount rate per annum.

(b) Senior housing business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$564,448,000 (2015:
HK$568,372,000) and lease-in-place, after amortisation, of
HK$396,000 (2015: HK$2,125,000) are allocated to the senior
housing business. The estimated recoverable amounts are
determined based on value-in-use approach. The calculation uses
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering three to four-year period. Cash flows
beyond the period are extrapolated using a 4% growth rate per
annum and a 10.5% discount rate per annum.

R B BmaRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

36 BEREMELEE ZRENR(ER)

AEESFHEAHNBEREHBERE K
BERETRE - §EMATETAR -

REBEREMELEEEHIRE TR ED
SEFETTRIERR °

EEREREMELEES BRERMETE
AREER AR EINGREERNAZRSE
Az mER EER - ZhERMFZER
SEABUELZRRRERE B R
T NETEHERE -

EREMECEBZREELSBM 2 AIKEOE
BMIORARENREERANFELEE &
MEMEG 2R EL B2 A WE S5
RERTEEFEEEE -

ZMEFEE ETR2RRFSLEMGFER
ROMERFEBHERARKAZIANED) -
EHREMERREAITSEHES 2 KRHEIE
BERRSEAREMSAERR  AEMER -

MEBREZRARZ B CAIRBEBEET R
LIS ARKRER ZAHTE - ERERER
EXRBEMGERABECEFRRELERN
o AR RREMBRESEETELTS R
ZFERR -

(a) RERERABRRBAEKE

SRETS % 64,566,000 T ( —E—RE :
751 64,566,000 7T ) Z BB D L2 R
BERABRRMEELR - hrrJkE@E
BIVRERAPEBELIETE -  AHETEF
RREEREI & —FHKEE 2
BREERSREEN - BBRHRZIRS
MERETFI%BRRNI% IR FR
HH o

(b) RERDER
B 1% 78 564,448,000 ( — T —F
& A5 568,372,000 70 ) 7 R I
% 396,000 ( —F —AF : B
2,125,0007C) 2 REFHER P RELE
PRe 375 o et ATk el & 58 TR E A
BELET BAEFETHEREERE
iz ZZNFHRMSEE 2 HRBIAIE
EREBR - BBHRZREREFH
BFEI%IEREN105%RFREL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_Z— R FZA=+—HLFE

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 EEEARER
Directors’ emoluments EEME
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: ENRENTESEZMEMT

2016
“E-NE

Salaries Retirement

and other scheme
Directors’ fee benefits contribution Total
HFEeRk EBIRGtEIZ
EEMSE HinigRl e g
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BET T BEET T
Executive Directors HITES
Chow Yei Ching (Co-Chairman) BRIV - 15,235 - 15,235
Kuok Hoi Sang (Co-Chairman and 2084
Managing Director) (MErRRESRLE) - 13,000 624 13,624
Tam Kwok Wing RS
(Deputy Managing Director) (BlESHBKIE) - 10,800 423 11,223
Ho Chung Leung SRR - 3,300 210 3,510
Ma Chi Wing HEE - 4,000 225 4,225
Lily Chow JEESiEs - 1,700 128 1,828
Non-Executive Directors FETES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph* JEIERRE 250 - - 250
Sun Kai Dah, George* FRE 250 - - 250
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles® i 300 - - 300
Poon Chung Kwong* ER 250 - - 250
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar* JEHEIE * 50 2,512 169 2,731
Ko Chan Gock, William SEBE 100 = = 100
1,200 50,547 1,779 53,526
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) 37 EEBARER (&)

EEME (8

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Salaries Retirement
and other scheme
Directors’ fee benefits contribution
Fek RRETEIZ
=E=Me Hbtz A HazE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETR BETR BETR
Executive Directors HITES
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) AT (EFE) - 15,412 - 15,412
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and /84
Managing Director) (BlEmRERALIR) - 11,800 585 12,385
Tam Kwok Wing BRI
(Deputy Managing Director) (RlESHBEE) - 9,900 398 10,298
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JEHEIE - 4,000 300 4,300
Ho Chung Leung fAsRIR - 2,900 180 3,080
Ma Chi Wing HEE - 3,200 195 3,395
Lily Chow SRS - 1,600 120 1,720
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph* R 250 - - 250
Sun Kai Dah, George* RRFE 250 - - 250
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles® S 300 - - 300
Poon Chung Kwong?* ERN 250 - - 250
Ko Chan Gock, William =EE 100 - - 100
1,150 48,812 1,778 51,740
# Independent Non-Executive Director # B IERITES
* Re-designated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director on 1 October * R-E-—TAE+A—BHRTEEEHET

2015 and entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$100,000 per annum

RIVDTESREDSFESHE RAENR
100,0007C
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals include four (2015: four) Directors,
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments
paid to the remaining one (2015: one) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

37 EEZEAN K& ()

EEMS
REGESFMALeENE(ZE—RHF N
FIER WEZHEHB Eﬁkﬁl Lk o S2fF
THH-Z(ZZT—RF: —B)RaFMA
T2 ARHNS

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R R EAMER]
Performance-based bonus ?R%LQ?XEKZ TEAL
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRETEI 2 73K

The emoluments of the remaining one (2015: one) highest paid
individuals fall within the following bands.

2016
— N
HK$°000
BT
2,265 2,571
4,458 3,944
18 18
6,741 6,533

#H(ZE-LF: —B)RSHFMZA
TRZEEE DA T?‘Jiﬂ?ﬂ

HK$6,000,001 - HK$7,000,000 75 6,000,001 7T — 8% 7,000,000 7T 1 1

The above emoluments paid and payable to Directors and employees
also represent only benefits paid to the Group's key management during
the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was
a party or were parties and in which a Director of the Company or any
entities connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38 FHAEE
The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees issued for REERECDBAERMIED 2 EROKA
utilised borrowings in relation to: AaEs:
2016 PAONES)
—E—REF —T-AhF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEETFIT
Banking facilities granted to associates BTBERNR ZIRITER 14,081 23,320
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture BT —HeEEZRTEER 184,232 154,939
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture partner ~ EF—ZALCEBHEZRITEE - 142,800
Guarantees given to banks and housing retirement 43 FRITRERAEEHLHET
fund management centers for mortgage facilities ETMEBER 2 RBEENER
granted to certain properties’ buyers 348,964 316,025
547,277 637,084
The Group's share of contingent liabilities of its joint ventures was as REBEMEHEEEMEZIABELT ¢
follows:
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT R IT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities BTRITHETAREEZMEN
granted to certain buyers of the joint ventures’ BETERZIZBEENER
properties 4,208 6,408
39 COMMITMENT 39 Aig
The Group had commitment as follows: REEE 2 AN

2016 2015
—E—KE —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Contracted but not provided for in the consolidated 3t 71|18 B 2 & 5] & 4B R ELEE

financial statements in respect of ISR ANFHR 2 #IE
— property development projects —YEEEIRR 637,158 255,272
— acquisition of plant and equipment —BARE & &iE 1,311 5,277
— acquisition of an investment property —BA—EREmZE 5,970 -
644,439 260,549
The Group's share of commitment of its joint ventures was as follows: REBMEEEEREZAENT

2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Contracted but not provided for EEAVBRETIR 307,619 515,698
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40 OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which
fall due as follows:

—FR
EETFN(RIEERERSF)
HFNUE

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
Over five years

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic
rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

As at 31 March 2016, investment properties and properties for sale
with carrying values of HK$3,620,184,000 and HK$22,820,000 (2015:
HK$3,608,868,000 and HK$26,962,000) respectively were rented out
under operating leases. These properties have committed tenants
within the next five years. The future minimum lease payments
receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each
of the following periods is as follows:

—FR
EERFN(REERRF)
HBiBhF

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
Over five years
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40 EERE

REBEREBEA
AEESEFHERBTIRE 2 EEHE
MARRRIN Z REHESHE - BOER
BT

2016 2015
—E—KE —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
24,078 108,132
7,752 122,209
3,730 19,784
35,560 250,125

Pt EAREREEAESEE X TE
EERINENE S (HAES) (NE) ZA&HE
WERINMEE —REBAKBEE ZBRED
RS HEZ EAREMET - Fitk TRl 6
ERETERINAS 2N -

AEEERHEAA
HE-_Z-—RE=A=+—0 ULEHEE
HHRZEEYMERGEMEZRAES B A
75 #3,620,184,000 7T & 7% # 22,820,000 7T
— TR B%3,608,868,000 7T M B #E
26,962,0007T) ° W) BAGEN AR R
AFEREA - AEER TS HSERERA
By S EREMRARRER, ZERES
AT

2016

i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
107,576 100,017
27,133 25,504
1,041 -
135,750 125,621
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41 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes") established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group and in
funds under the control of trustees. The ORSO Schemes are funded
by monthly contributions from both employees and the Group at rates
ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending
on the length of service with the Group. For members of the MPF
Schemes, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per
employee, at a maximum of HK$1,500 per month during the year ended
31 March 2016, to the mandatory contribution of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required
to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage
or sum of the monthly payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. As at 31
March 2016 and 2015, there were no forfeited contributions, which
arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Schemes and which would be
available to reduce the contributions payable in future years. No forfeited
contributions utilised in this manner during the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: nil). As at 31 March 2016, contributions of HK$3,196,000
(2015: HK$2,818,000) due in respect of the reporting period were paid
over to various schemes in April 2016.

R B BmaRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

41 RIKER

REBSEENBIMEE ZBMERLZHE
RTEHEHE o

MNEE - NEE 2 BRIZCR R RN BRG]
Mz REHAE B ([ DESEE ) Rt —
ERTE+ - ARAsIIERTES T BE)
Rz @bt AEEF B ([@EEeEtE ) -
Zat Bl BETIRERAZENZESRES
HAKEEENHER - HREDHE &
BRAEEESAREEEH 2% E7.5% R
HEE - CFRERAKEZFEME ° &
SERBESTEZKE  REEEHEA
ABZb% A H(HE_T-—R"F=A=+—
BILFESA K% REE1,5007T) taiEs
FHEIMEH SR B MR -

AEBETF2EAREELEER 2 ARKME
ZRBRREEE - AEEBRIAE AFHH
ZETENLSIBAFE 2R EREHER -

WEENEREHRBRIIELATRSTE
R R AT E A AN BIR B R
M- R_B-—REF_E-—FHF=A=+—
B YERESREEAES BN R RFEN
BIET R - BEZZ—RF=
B=Z+—RILEFETENULFERBHAZER
WHK(ZE—HF  8B) - RZT—RF
“A=+—H pmEHEENZ S EIE
FABE3,196,000L( T —HEF : B
2,818,000 ) ER =T — NFWMAZS -
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HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42 EEEALTZRS
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with PAFEHEMEBEATZEEZFFBENOT ¢

related parties are as follows:

2016 2015
—EB-XE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BEFT

Contract income from a joint venture RE—BEELEZEHEA 20,100 30,935
Contract services fee to an associate BT —HEME RN ZANREER (505) (1,181)
Management fee income from associates (note 6) REBE DR ERERA (HE6) 21,340 24,503
Management fee income from joint ventures (note 6) REGETEIERERA (E6) 3,138 1,812
Maintenance fee to an associate KT BBEARZREER (6,004) (5,419)
Management fee to an associate LT BBERARZEEER (336) (367)
Building management fee income from an associate RE—BEE AR IEFERERA 1,132 1,074
Rental income from an associate P E R YNNG e N 20,506 20,810
Rental expenses to an associate Ky—HEBERRzHeTH (161) (165)

Sales and marketing services income from an RE—BEE AR HERTIGHER

associate (note 6) RIS (H3E6) 26,037 24,651
Secondment fee income from an associate RE—MEEEQRZERERA 1,244 1,063
Sales of food and beverage to associates HETHERACER 1,417 3,206
Insurance premium from associates REBENFZRRE 5,829 6,405
Insurance premium from a joint venture RE—BEELEZRRE 310 -
Interest income from an associate (note 6) RE—MEEE AR FIEHA (HEE6) - 37,866
The above transactions were entered at terms mutually agreed between LR G TREBE T ERRZEE 2 GKETAL -

all parties involved.

The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be key AEEEE(BENMFEEALAEEEEEHEE
management of the Group, during the year are set out in note 37 to the KB ) 2 FE RS I IR R FEST -

consolidated financial statements.

150 CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRRMIEE
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

43 GERERERME

REEECRE

(a) Cash generated from operations

(a)

2016 PAONES)
—T—XREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Profit before taxation BrER AT & A 463,112 1,710,478
Adjustments for: TR
Share of results of associates PGBt & A RIZEE (116,932) (249,406)
Share of results of joint ventures Frih & &S 25,407 28,753
Interest income from bank deposits SRITFEREHF EWA (23,646) (19,315)
Interest income from an associate KB —fEEEE R B FLE
WA - (37,866)
P L fk
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and bank ﬁEﬁfi&ﬁEfﬂa HH 105,156 114,626
borrowings FESLH
Dividend income from investments RERE ZREWA (22,687) (32,731)
Depreciation e 104,195 108,894
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAb M & i 2,619 5,272
Increase in fair value of investment properties B2 RN BN (31,997) (193,312)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HE—BEREWHE 2 KRG (52) (642)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - BEKEREZ
8 188 368
Loss/(gain) on disposals of HENTRARZEE/
(W)
— other subsidiaries NG 97 (16,819)
— Peak Gain Limited —IREIBRAR] - (1,247,689)
- associates NG 147 -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERMHEE ZIRERN (12) 49
investments (W), iR
Loss/(gain) on investments at fair value through BARBEIABREE Y
profit or loss ENERER, (W) 23,258 (19,547)
) o Py P evyan
Loss/(gain) on derivative financial instruments f/Ta,gg}’;(I,\Zqﬂl wia,/ 1,569 (15,977)
Write back of inventories to net realisable value OEFEEA R FE (1,839) (2,126)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment YE -~ BE REE2RE 3452
B8 - '
Impairment loss on goodwill a8z REEE 4,656 -
: ; PRk A N\ S BE 2
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate F’?H%Z Fa?ﬂy: L NAIRRZ 118,832 66,831
RIEETE
Impairment loss on amounts due from joint ventures  JEU A& & D 2EBEFN 2 IRIE
515 - 153,874
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments AR E ZIRERNRESE 17,160 210,386
. J=s = Ed
Impairment loss on trade and other debtors é% & z@E&E\WE\EMZ 8,644 31835
BIEEE
Operating cash flows before movements in working ‘&Zi&& ¢ & &R 2
capital KEReRE 677,875 599,388
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

43 GEBTRERMETE (K)
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FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) REEEZRS (H)
2016
—T—XREF
HK$°000
BET T
Changes in working capital BEESEE)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from FEMFEE RS AR FUR L
non-controlling interests (1) 8,761 (13,519)
Increase in investments at fair value through profit BARBEIABRREZRE
or loss 3 (164,772) (24,055)
Decrease in inventories FERD 9,224 17,406
Decrease in properties for sale HEWERD 439,334 10,441
Increase in properties under development R AP EIL I (353,445) (238,151)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, deposits and FEMBRFR ~ PR e RIER
prepayments BRI, (3B 0) 125,448 (266,047)
Decrease in amounts due from customers for RAENTIRERAZTPIEZ
contract work FIER A 16,320 40,213
Decrease in derivative financial instruments, net PTHEMBIARY  F8 17,571 57,987
Decrease in amount due to a non-controlling interest &1~ 8 — JFHE A% HE 25 BR TR > (3,538) (2,016)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to customers MENTIRERNEPINZ
for contract work FRIE G,/ 180 (16,815) 401,976
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, bills payable, ERERR - BREER  FA
deposits and accruals RERERER(RL)/
N (363,988) 263,139
Decrease in unearned insurance premiums and RIEAR bR B KoK 3B B R B (4
unexpired risk reserves k> (60,549) (45,800)
(Decrease)/increase in outstanding insurance claims — ARRRBRE O ), 1N (23,529) 7,721
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income B A CRr ) /30 (4,364) 2,249
Exchange difference PEH =% 31,513 22,910
Cash generated from operations KREEEZRE 335,046 833,842
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43 FERERERME (H)
FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (b) WEBRHEXK

(i) Deemed disposal of interest in Cafe Deco Holdings Limited (i) A HEFTE Cafe Deco Holdings
(“Cafe Deco”) Limited ([ Cafe Deco]) Z#E#
Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 11 December BERRA-_ZE—RF+-_A+—
2015, Cafe Deco agreed to allot and issue the shares to the A2 REW# - Cafe DecoRAEM
third parties. Upon completion, the equity interest of Cafe FZTRCEREBEITRD - TRKIE
Deco held by the Group was diluted from 60% to 25.28% 7N 5 B 45 A Cafe DecoZ % 1
and no longer be an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary and 60% 8% 25.28% - ifi Cafe Deco
become an associate of the Group. THAE—HEEIEZENBRR

WAk RAEE Z B Z R E] -

HK$'000
BT T
Fair value of 25.28% equity interest of Cafe Deco Cafe Deco 25.28% ## 2 At 1B 48,495
Less: net assets disposed of: W HEUT 2 EESE
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) YIE - RS KRR (FIEE14) 83,655
Goodwill (note 15) 2 (FI3E15) 57,247
Other intangible assets (note 16) Hib &z (isE16) 11,619
Interest in an associate Frih—fEH g A A= 55
Other non-current assets HEIERBEE 14,802
Amount due from an associate JFE U — I A BIBR K 1,160
Inventories FE 11,738
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUERSR « T RS RIEN IR 49,793
Bank balances and cash RITEF LIRS 24,563
Creditors, deposits and accruals FERERF - FAKS REREA (80,351)
Deferred income PRIEUT A (3,908)
Bank borrowings RITER (80,857)
Current income tax liabilities BHFEHAE (1,541)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34) RIERIH A E (51 34) (453)
Non-controlling interests eI iRk (42,270)
Capital reserve released upon disposal (note 33) I E & R 2 A AR (M1EE33) 1,703
Other assets revaluation reserve released upon HERER 2 Bt EESHHEE
disposal (note 33) (FF5E33) (322)
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon disposal HE & R G 2 IMNE H 2 B s
(note 33) (FFE33) 1,862
48,495
Gain on disposal k=l 6 -
Net cash outflow arising from the disposal: &2 RS FRE -
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRES (24,563)
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued)

(ii)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dolce Field Limited
(“Dolce Field”)

Pursuant to the agreements dated 20 March 2015, the Group
agreed to purchase 100% equity interest in Dolce Field,
the immediate holding company of 51% equity interest in
Chengdu Chevalier Property Development Company Limited
(“CCPD" K #HAE T FEHEZER AR AF), at a consideration of
approximately HK$346,563,000, which represents the cost
of share capital and amount due to the Group. CCPD was a
company established in the Mainland China and owned as
49% joint venture by the Group as of 31 March 2015. The
transaction was completed in April 2015 and Dolce Field
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group since then.

The following table summarised the consideration paid and
the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
recognised as at the acquisition date:

Total consideration satisfied by:

43 GEBTRERMETE (K)

(b) Wi & (8

(ii)

BREZNIR

WEHEERAR(EHE])Z2100%
IR
BE—ZZ—RAF=ZA=TBHZ®
HOALERERERE Z100%
i EAKBETEHNERES
RAr([REEEFE]) Z251%
Mg BB AR - REHAES
#346,563,0007T * HEHERIRAAK A
MENAEBMER - REELEH
ERPEAMKY R-ZT—AF
ZA=+—H AXEEMEEL9%
BHEZAEDE - RHRZF—1
FAERK - BBALKATEE
Z2—ME2ENBAR -

TEREADNRERRKEBRSRE
ERWBEEENMTAEREZS
]|

HK$'000
BT T

Amount due from a joint venture

Interest originally held by the Group (note 18)

Fair values of net assets acquired (as shown below)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed as follows:

Property, plant and equipment (note 14)
Properties under development (note 20)
Other non-current assets

Inventories

Properties for sale

Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Bank balances and cash

Amount due to a joint venture
Creditors, deposits and accruals

Bank borrowings

Total identifiable net assets

Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition:

Bank balances and cash

FEY —ER E R RER
AR B RA R B RMEss (M5 18)

PR EEFEZ AR E (RIINT)

PR EE M ATAER BN

346,563
174,213

520,776

HK$'000

BT

W - BB KRR (FTEE14) 4,432
BREAPYE (M7 20) 546,750
EIERBEE 2,750
FE 637
HEYE 869,325
FEUERFR « TFHIES RIERFIE 15,166
RITEGFRIES 2,304
e —RA B EIRN (166,701)
FERERR - FAKRS REREA (612,010)
IRITER (141,877)
EHEREEFEERE 520,776
WEE 2B mARE
IBITRETF IR 2,304
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43 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Acquisition and disposal of businesses (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Acquisition of 11% equity interest in Mass Harvest Limited
(“Mass Harvest”)

Pursuant to the agreements dated 20 March 2015, the Group
agreed to purchase 11% equity interest in Mass Harvest,
the immediate holding company of Chengdu Century Jinjiang
International Hotel Company Limited (&Rt X8R, T BIRRE /&
ABR /A 7)) at a consideration of approximately HK$26,696,000,
which represents the cost of share capital and amount due to
the Group. Mass Harvest was a company established in the
British Virgin Islands and owned as 49% joint venture by the
Group as at 31 March 2015. The transaction was completed in
April 2015 and Mass Harvest remained as a joint venture of the
Group.

Disposal of Peak Gain Limited

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 11
December 2014, the Group disposed of Peak Gain Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to an independent
third party on 31 March 2015, at an aggregate consideration
of approximately HK$1,413,127,000. Peak Gain Limited is
principally engaged in investment holding and its material asset
is a property located at New Kowloon Inland Lot. No. 5972.

Pursuant to the tenancy agreement dated 31 March 2015,
the independent third party had also agreed to lease the
property back to the Group for a period of three years from the
completion date at a monthly rental of HK$2,100,000 for the
first year and HK$3,200,000 for each of the second and third
years. Management considered the monthly rental under lease
was determined based on arm’s length transaction with the
new buyer and with reference to prevailing market rental of
similar properties nearby.

R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

43 SRV RERMTE (K)

(b) WiER K (8)

(iii)

(iv)

WEEZEERAATEE) 211%
BRAE

BE-_Z—RAF=ZA-1+HZH
FHOALEREBRERZ2 1% K
o HAKESERISIEERBEEES
BARIZHEERAG  REOE
7515 26,696,000 7T * FEE ALK,
AREMAEBEER - FEREE
BERBERY  W-_ZE—hE=
AR=+—8 AASEHE49% &
mZEELE RGN —RF
MATEN  RENANER —/M

AERE-

HERAIFRATE
BE-_Z—NF+-_A+—RAZE
EHE AEER-_ZT—RHF=
A=t+—Hm—&BIF=FHE
EREBRAB (ARFZ—EE
BEWBRAR) REAENAEBE
1,413,127,000 7T ° IEIBR AR =
DRERELRR - EXEEEANM
AT NLBE A ER 5972 5% 2 2 -

BE_ZET-—AFE=A=+—H2zH
Bz ZBBILFE=FNRAER
EIZETAER  FHLOHHTTR
BHETAR=ZF F—F2i&
A4 AB%2100,0007T  &F
ZhREZFZEATRSESHEE
3,200,000 7T - EIRERE - L2
BAMRS2ENOEEMEZE
BhSHSENE A THEEET -

HK$'000

Total consideration satisfied by:
Cash received
Less: Professional fees and other expenses

Less: net assets disposed of:
Investment properties (note 13)
Property, plant and equipment (note 14)
Deposits and prepayments
Deferred tax liabilities (note 34)
Other assets revaluation reserve released upon disposal

BREZNTR
[RE K
B BEXERREMXH

Gain on disposal (note 7) & 2 s (FEE7)

Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: HEZRSRAFRE
Cash consideration received BB ERE
Professional fees and other expenses BEBANRAEMTH

(MF5E14)

1,413,127
(14,015)

1,399,112

W EU TR ARHE
& (3 13)
W - BERR
FitiRe RN R
AT BUE S 8 (3 34)
B (4RI 2 FL A B b

121,296
70,518
138
(13,496)
(27,033)

151,423

1,247,689

1,413,127
(14,015)

1,399,112
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44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Company statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2016

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Interests in associates
Other intangible assets
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from associates

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Derivative financial instruments
Creditors, deposits and accruals
Bank borrowings

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

Non-current liability
Bank borrowings

Total equity and non-current liability

ATHBERRE
RZZE—R"F=A=+—H

FRBEE
) NI o
FribB & QR 2 s
HAD BT B E
AHHEZRE

REBEE
JRE A Bf 8 X R BR R
R LBt 22 X AR K
ROpEIABGEREZIRE
FEUBRTR ~ 77 HREe RIARRIA
RITEEFELAS

REAE
FEIPIT B X AR R
PIEMBTA

FENERT - FAIRE MIRIRE A
RITRER

REBAEFE
REERRBEE
RAS K f#
EN
GG

FRBEE
RITRER

BERRIFRBAE
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44 KRB BRRARRERE R

2016 2015
—E—XE “T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT EEET T
3,599,408 3,374,335
89,594 89,594
599 599
81,653 167,715
3,771,254 3,632,243
1,969,092 3,157,774
18,074 10,375
195,694 31,455
15,034 4,299
544,590 324,039
2,742,484 3,527,942
2,872,547 3,425,056
7,861 4,677
3,313 3,383
250,943 98,675
3,134,664 3,531,791
(392,180) (3,849)
3,379,074 3,628,394
377,411 374,989
1,949,869 1,850,667
2,327,280 2,225,656
1,051,794 1,402,738
3,379,074 3,628,394




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

44 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 44 EREPBRRK EREBR (F)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: MsE -

Reserves movement of the Company RN TSRS

Capital Investment Hedging Retained

Share Contributed redemption revaluation reserve profits
premium surplus reserve reserve bl 1%
BRin&(E % BAERERE RESMRERE HK$'000 HK$'000
HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 BT T BT
AT BT BT BT
(a)
At 1 April 2015 RZE—RE
mA—A 680,214 95,413 8,799 71,105 (355) 995,491 1,850,667
Profit for the year EERF = = = = = 488,317 488,317
Change in fair value of available-for- ATt E 2R EH)
sale investments AREE - - - (62,914) - - (62,914)

Impairment loss on available-for-sale A H & 2 1% & &)
investments transferred to income  JH{EFBIEEAZE

statement sk - - - 17,160 - - 17,160
Fair value adjustments on the EEARENEY
derivative financial instruments TREDTHE TS
designated as cash flow hedge in THEBR®
respect of interest rate swap HEANN
contracts ARERE - - - - (6,857) - (6,857)
Total comprehensive income for FEXENEEE
the year - - - (45,754) (6,857) 488,317 435,706
Dividends paid BRRE = - - - - (360,377) (360,377)
Issue of shares under scrip divided ~ RIEMARI E5HE]
schemes BATR 23,873 - - - - - 23,873
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF
=A=f-H 704,087 95,413 8,799 25,351 (7,212) 1,123,431 1,949,869
At 1 April 2014 RZZ—E
mA—AH 597,284 95,413 8,799 75,023 1,082 696,547 1,474,148
Profit for the year FERET - - - - - 548,721 548,721
Change in fair value of available-for- A8 7 & H)
sale investments AREEE - - - (21,518) - - (21,518)

Impairment loss on available-for-sale At & 2 A& H)
investments transferred to income  REEESE

statement ZhER - - - 17,600 - - 17,600
Fair value adjustments on the EEAREREY
derivative financial instruments FREVLTE B
designated as cash flow hedge in TAEH
respect of interest rate swap FlE A L8
contracts DRERE - - - - (1,437) - (1,437)
Total comprehensive income for FERERGLEE
the year - - - (3,918) (1,437) 548,721 543,366
Dividends paid BHRE - - - - - (249,777) (249,777)
Issue of shares under scrip divided ~ BIEARA B 52
schemes Do) 82,930 - - - - - 82,930
At 31 March 2015 R-Z—HF
ZA=t+-H 680,214 95,413 8,799 71,105 (355) 995,491 1,850,667
(a) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of (a) BABKRDREFBERB AR ZEE
net assets of subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the FEEYEEREITARRIRGD 2 HE
Company's shares issued for their acquisition. Under the Companies Act Mz Zf - REARE—AN—FRQ
of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is available AE)  AARZBARBBRTI AR
for distribution to shareholders. ARER o
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45 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45 FEHEAT
Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of  share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests Principal activities
FEREERE
ARAREERT BRARE
N BRTRAR Ra/mhaz AftRA
RER EXHEIER Fi AR B/ BRAEM ZEM ITER
Directly Indirectly
E& Ak
% %

Changchun New Star Universe Mainland China A RMB675,000,000 N/A - % 4 Property development
Sheng Chi Real Estate hE AER ARE675,0000007 AER NELR
Development Co., Ltd. (note a)

RENETE Wﬁ

Chevalier (Aluminium Engingering) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - Supply and installation of
Hong Kong Limited B 13 BT aluminium windows and curtain
AT(BIR)ARERAA walls
BERBRHRRLE
Chevalier (Aluminium Engingering) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 - Supply and installation of
Limited [note b} B i 00T aluminium windows and curtain
LT (BTE)BRAA (o) walls
Deferred HKS? 2 - 100 - EEREEZ{ERRE
B A8
Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common CAD101 200 - 100 - Sale and servicing of automobiles
nex i 01 gAT HEHEREERE
Chevalier Bulding Supplies & Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,100 20,000,100 - 100 - Supply and installation of building
Engineering) Limited (note )~~~ &% £ 200001007 materials
AL (BHTE)ARAA Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 - REBRERTE
(Riztb) i LYo
Chevalier Cali Holding (Cal) Inc. US Common US$4,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 - Grocery trading
#H ta 401200057 #HES
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment  Mainland China N/A RMB250,000,000 N/A - 100 - Investment holding and provision
Management Limited (ote )~~~ PRI NER AR 250,000,000 TR of management service
(A8 REERERLT REARRRMEEERH
(Kiske)
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common CAD101 200 - 100 - Sale and servicing of automohiles
JIEYN il 01M8AT TEHE R BRHE
Chevalier Cold Storage and Logistics  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 25 Qperation of a cold storage
Limited B4 iR BT warehouse and logistics
LrREMRERAT business
BERRRERNTER
Chevalier (Construction] Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 99,67 (.33 Building construction and
Limited &% il 760500000 maintenance
Er(B4)ERAR BFRERRE
Chevalier Construction (Hong Kong - Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000 100 - 100 - Building construction
Limited (note b) B4 il 1,007 BFRE
E1RE(ER)BRAT Deferred HK$10,000 1,000 - 100 -
(HsD) £t EB10,0007
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45 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45 FEWBEAR (E)
Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of  share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests Principal activities
FERRGRE
‘ KOTREERG BB
RYFR BRRER R /a2 iffx
3L FiRAEH A/ A RfH%E EREAY ZAMM IZER
Directly Indirectly
BR £
% %
Chevalier (Corporate Management)  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - Provision of corporate
Limited £ il YT management services
AL(h%ER)ERAT RECEEERE
Chevalier Development (S) Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary $82,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 - Property investment
i il 2,500,000 570 ERE
Chevalier (E & M Contracting) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 - Installation of electrical and
Limited e il 169,200,000 mechanical equipment
AT (BETR)ERLE and provision of project
management service
TEREREREM
R
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc. Phiippines Common PES08,750,000 87,500 - 100 - Waste disposal treatment
FeE ] 8750 0003EEENZ senices
BEEnRERH
Chevalier [Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 - Environmental engineering
Rt (BRI BRAT X il 71148,6000007C RRIE
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - - Insurance brokerage
Limited £ il 71,000,000 RIBER

£t (RRER)ERAA

Chevalier Insurance Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - - Insurance underwriting
Limited Bk e 712000000007 RaxB
EHREARAR
Chevalier iTech Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 - Trading and servicing of
HtHRTERERAR B i BT computers and business
machines

BV U e

Chevalier iTech Thai Limited (note )~ Thalland Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 - Trading of computers and
(Hza) b5 £ 18,980,005k business machines
Preference BAHT1,020,000 10200 - 100 - ShRERREES
Bx 1,020,000%
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 4 - 100 - Bulding construction and
A1(2R)BRAR 2 il EFE1000007T installaion of air-conditioning

systems, aluminium windows
and curtain walls
BTREARERRES

BERERE
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - Network systems and solution
Limited B il eI senices
A1 (BHR) BRAR R 2SRRI
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45 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45 TERBE AT (E)
Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of  share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests  Principal activities
FERRERE
ADAREERT RES
RIGER BRARAR Ra /a2 A
EHETER FiReER R/ k%A ERAM ZAMM TEER
Directly ~ Indirectly
E# 3
% %
Chevalier Network Solutions Thai~ Thaland Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 - Trading of telecommunication
Limited %8 il 16,000,000 equipment
OR4 Laurethurst, LLC (formerly Us N/A 582,000,000 N/A - 100 - Operation of senior housing
known as “Chevaller Portand % TR 2,000000%7 T gevzRs

Laurehurst, LLC")
ORd Laurelhurst, LLC (315
Chevalier Portland Laurelhurst,

LLC)
Chevalier Property Development  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
Limited note b} B il 7360000000 T nvestment
ETNEAREERLA Deferred K51 5 - 100 - DEERIRE
fith) £t ABEIT
Chevalier Property Management ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 - Property management and
Limited (note b) B i3 EE1007 security services
ETERNZERARAA Deferred HS1,002 1,002 - 100 - NEEERRLRE
(ko) gt 007
CIH (BV) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US$1 1 100 - - Investment holding
REHEREE i 157 RERR
CPC Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$325,534,200 3205342 - 100 - General construction and trading
Limited (note b) Bk L % 305,53.2007T business
ETERERERAT Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - - - —BEERESEH
() e E5,006.2007C
Full Ascent Development Limited ~Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 75 25 Property investment
REERERLT B il LYo VES
Goldyork Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 I b1 - Property investment
SEEERAT B il #8007 VESE
Kwai Hei Investments No.1 Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 1 - 75 25 Property investment
it ta BT VESES
Lac Kar Investment Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 - Property investment
Limited Bt il 836000007 VESE
HMELERAT
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common CAD101,100 10,100 - 100 -
JIEYN i 101,100MEAT
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Comman CAD1,000 1,000 - 100 - Property investment
JIEYN ta 1000 1EAT VESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

45 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45 FEMBEAT (E)
Percentage of
Issued and issued share
Place or country paid up capital/registered
of incorporation or share capital/ Effective percentage of issued capital held by
registration/ Class of registered Number of  share capital/registered capital non-controlling
Name of company operation shares held capital shares held by the Company interests Principal activities
FERRGRE
‘ KATRERRG BEflA
RYFR BRRER R /a2 iffx
3L FiRAEH A/ A RfH%E EREAY ZAMM IZER
Directly ~ Indirectly
BR £
% %
Matterhom Properties Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 - Property investment
Hong Kong 4 1% NERE
sB4RRES/BR
NC4 Albemarle, LLC Us NA 1U5$10,067,286 NA - 9.6 14 Operation of senior housing
e+ TR 10,067 28657 TR favehs
NC4 Covington, LLC Us NA 583,574,305 N/A - 9.6 14 Operation of senior housing
i TR 35055 TR Favhs
NC4 Kingsbridge, LLC Us NA 563,116,268 N/A - 9.6 14 Operation of senior housing
28 TR 311628857 T fevshs
NC4 Magereek, LLC Us NA 1S$2,825,617 NA - 9.6 14 Operation of senior housing
8 TR 2805811%T TR anhs
NC4 Magnolia, LLC Us NA 15$3,937,168 NA - 9.6 14 Operation of senior housing
e TR 3,937,168%7 TR fanehs
NC4 Qliver, LLC Us NA 1US$2,705,943 NA - 9.6 14 Operation of senior housing
8 TR 2705 35T TR i
NC4 Wellington, LLC US N/A 15$2,852,617 NA - 9.6 14 Operation of senior housing
8 TR 2852 6171%T T fevshs
ORd Beaverton, LLC (formerly Us NA US$500,000 N/A - 100 - QOperation of senior housing
known a5 “OR3 Beaverton, LLC") 3B TR B00000%T TR ferhs
ORd Beaverton, LLC (£ 5 0R3
Beaverton, LLC)
Proud Rich Limited note b Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 - Property investment
EUERAA (Hith) B £4 AN nERE
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100 -
it AT
Quality King Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordinary US§1 1 100 - - Investment holding
Shanghai Chevalier Property Mainland China N/A 583,650,000 N/A - 100 - Property management and
Management Co, Ltd lnotec) B MR 3650,000%7 NER provision of property
HEETMEEEERLR management consultation
(M) NFEERRENEERER
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland China NA 1/S$6,500,000 NA - 100 - Trading of lifts, escalators,
note ¢) R AER 6,500,005 HER lectrical and mechanica
FRELESERDR (k) equipment
feH BHBREERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

45 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 45 TEMEDR (&)

Name of company

Place or country
of incorporation or
registration/
operation

BuER
EXMNIAR

Issued and
paid up
share capital/
registered
capital

Class of
shares held

ERfRER

FERARR B/ EmEA

shares

Effective percentage of issued
Number of  share capital/registered capital
held by the Company

L CELERE ]
B /s

EREAl
Indirectly

Directly
Bk
%

Percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
capital held by
non-controlling
interests
FERRERE

BEfTRA
i} e
ZBA

Principal activities

Ak
%

Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate ~ Mainland China N/A 1S$18,000,000 N/A - 80 20 Property development and
Development Co,, Ltd. [noteal RIS NER 18,000,000 NER investment
LRERBHERRERLA NFRRRRE
(Kista)
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT5,000,000 150,000 - 100 - Property investment
5 i 15,000,000%E NERA
Tai Tung Industrial Equipment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 30,000,000 - 875 125 Logistics services
Limited & il 300000007 kv
ARLEREERAR
Talent Luck Limited note b] Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 - Property development and
BERZERAR (Hiko) £ il 270000000 investment
Deferred HK$51 51 - 100 - MEREREE
jidld BEsIT
Winfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 - Property investment
FAERRRAT Bt il Yo VES
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Co, Ltd. ~ Mainland China N/A RMBS5,000,000 N/A - 10 30 Hotel operation
note ¢) hE AER AR 55,000,007 AER BLRERR
ERATREERRAA (Mitc)
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common CAD10 10 - 100 - Property investment
JIEYN il 10MEAT VES
Notes: FEx -
(a)  Established in Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures. (@) ARSNGB (RO B RAPRSL ©
(b)  All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to participate in (b) ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ_\m—f@%ﬂf%%\ i B IR
any distribution upon winding up. BERBERFESEMDIK
(c)  Established in Mainland China as wholly-foreign owned enterprises. e) PASNE IR R B AR L ©
(d)  Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference shares of (d) @%H,%E#ZEJ;O% RLEAPA=I )
this company carry one vote. BIREE R -
(e) The Directors were of the view that as at 31 March 2016, there was no (e) EERABE-_ZT—AF=-A=t+—8"

individual subsidiary that had non-controlling interests that were material to the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-Z—"F=-A=1+—HLFE

46 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 46 TEHE QT

Effective percentage of
issued share capital/

Name of associate

Place or country
of incorporation
or registration/
operation

Class of
shares held

registered

capital

held by the Company
indirectly

Principal activities

Measurement
method

FAREERE
BRTRE/
HfEF 2 ERED L
%

BeENREE

Fris 455 FREK SHRAE

Cafe Deco Holdings Limited British Virgin Ordinary 25.28 Investment holding Equity
Islands/ i REER by
Hong Kong
RBERRES/
%
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49 Marketing, installation and Equity
Ht (B8)BRAR 0 LiE maintenance of lifts and T
escalators and security devices
B RRRREFEHE  EHKE
RREEE
Toshiba Elevator (China) Co., Ltd. Mainland China N/A 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation, Equity
ReBH(FE)ERAF FEIA A repair and maintenance of lifts T
and escalators
S HE TR BERREAR
BRERE
Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Co., Mainland China N/A 20 Manufacturing, sales, installation, Equity
Ltd. FEIA TEA repair and maintenance of lifts iy
FeEH(ER) BARDAA and escalators
B HE TR BERREAR
R B
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Hong Kong Ordinary 25 Manufacturing and provision of Equity
Limited 0 i concrete by
BWAERTBRAR BRI AERME
T EREEER AR Mainland China N/A 1229  Trading of food and beverage Equity
HEIR TiEA EHES B
DIES AEE S ERAR Mainland China N/A 40 Trading of motor vehicles and Equity
B NEA provision of maintenance services 1E&
B E SRR MR E RS
ARG ERLHETEHERS  Mainland China N/A 21.33  Trading of motor vehicles and Equity
ARAR FEA TiEA provision of maintenance services 1z
REE S RRRRERSE
Note: The Group's entitiement to share of the profit or loss in these associates is in fisE : NEBIREEA R Z PG EEMEHE R

proportion to its ownership interest.

A2 g FISEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I RARMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-ZT—XR"FZA=T—HLFE

poy

47 PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES 47 £E

o)
T
>
M

Effective percentage
of issued share

capital/
Place or country registered
of incorporation share capital
or registration/ Class of held by the Company Measurement
Name of joint venture operation shares held indirectly Principal activities Method
, AATMERE
[ t=3ive BRITRE/
AELRLH EEHEIER  FEROEN  SRBAZEMEAL IZER
%
Lam Woo & Company Hong Kong Ordinary 50 Civil engineering Equity
Limited 0 TiE TARTRE T
BRREFRAT
Rosy Value Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50 Property development Equity
EEARRAR EE Ti® WEERE e
LR E R % Mainland China N/A 44 Property development Equity
BRAT REIR A MEERE fEm
Note: The Group's entitlement to share of the profit or loss in these joint ventures MisT : ANEEIREBEEE LA EREMEE ST
is in proportion to its ownership interest. 2T EE o
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